
1

Council
Contact Officer: Steven Corrigan

Tel: 07717 274704

E-mail: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 2 December 2020

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

Summons to attend 
a meeting of Council
to be held on 

THURSDAY 10 DECEMBER 2020  AT 6.00 PM

at

VIRTUAL MEETING

To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio cassette or CD, and email.  For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.  

MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


2

Agenda
1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence.  

2 Minutes  (Pages 7 - 26)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Council minutes of the meeting held on 8 
October 2020 - attached.  

3 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

6 Petitions  

To receive any petitions from the public.  

7 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 adoption  (Pages 27 - 35)

Cabinet, at its meeting on 8 December 2020, will consider the report of the head of 
planning on the adoption of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035.

The report of the head of planning, which Cabinet will consider on 8 December, is 
attached. The six appendices to the report are available with the Cabinet agenda 
here.   

The Scrutiny Committee will consider the report at its meeting on 7 December 2020. 
Any recommendations will be reported to Cabinet.

Cabinet’s recommendations will be circulated to all councillors.

8 Council Tax Base 2021/22  (Pages 36 - 39)

Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 December 2020, will consider a report on the council 
tax base for 2021/22.

http://democratic.southoxon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=2733


3

The report of the interim head of finance, which Cabinet will consider on 3 
December, is attached.

Cabinet’s recommendations will be circulated to all councillors.

9 Civil parking enforcement  (Pages 40 - 204)

Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 December 2020, will consider a report on the formal 
application to the Department for Transport to implement civil parking enforcement 
in the district.

The report of the head of housing and environment, which Cabinet will consider on 3 
December, is attached.

Cabinet’s recommendations will be circulated to all councillors.

10 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2020/21  
(Pages 205 - 220)

Cabinet, at its meeting on 3 December 2020, will consider a monitoring report on the 
treasury management activities for the first six months of 2020/21 and an update on 
the current economic conditions with a view to the remainder of the year.  

The Joint Audit and Governance Committee considered the report at its meeting on 
26 November 2020. The committee resolved to note the treasury management mid-
year monitoring report 2020/21 and was satisfied that the treasury activities are 
carried out in accordance with the treasury management strategy and policy.
  
The report of the interim head of finance, which Cabinet will consider on 3 
December 2020, is attached. 

Cabinet’s recommendations will be circulated to all councillors.

11 Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

At its meeting on 18 July 2019, Council appointed Councillor Bretherton as the 
council’s representative on the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Councillor Simpson as substitute. Councillor Bretherton has resigned from the 
position and Councillor Simpson is no longer eligible to be a substitute since her 
appointment to Cabinet.

Council is invited to appoint a representative and a named substitute to the 
Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

RECOMMENDATION: to appoint a representative and a named substitute to the 
Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

12 Report of the leader of the council  

1. To receive the report of the leader of the council.



4

2. Urgent cabinet decisions 

In accordance with the Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rules, a Cabinet or 
Cabinet member decision can be taken as a matter of urgency, if any delay 
by the call in process would seriously prejudice the council’s or the public’s 
interest or that the decision cannot reasonably be deferred.  Treating the 
decision as a matter of urgency must be agreed by the chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee and must be reported to Council, together with the reasons for 
urgency.

Council is requested to note the details of the following urgent decision. 

Additional Restrictions Grant 

On 16 November 2020, Councillor Leigh Rawlins, Cabinet member for 
finance, took a decision to approve South Oxfordshire District Council’s 
Additional Restrictions Grant Scheme attached in appendix A to the decision 
notice and authorise the interim head of development and regeneration, in 
consultation with the Cabinet member for community engagement, to 
determine the use of remaining funding.

The chair of the Scrutiny Committee agreed to waive call in due to the 
Government requirement for the grant fund to open and weekly update 
reports to be provided by mid November 2020. 

13 Questions on notice  

To receive questions from councillors in accordance with Council procedure rule 33.  

Question from Councillor David Bartholomew to Councillor Sue Cooper, Leader of 
the council.

“Residents quite rightly expect us to spend their Council Tax and use our time 
during Council meetings on matters relating to South Oxfordshire; would you 
therefore agree that:

1. Motions and debates should be confined to matters over which the Council 
has control or influence, or which directly impact upon the Council and its 
responsibilities.

2. Matters of national or international interest that Members may have strong 
views about but fail the test in 1 above are not part of Council's business and 
should not form part of motions.

3. Motions should not be essays or reports and should not exceed 250 words.
4. Motions should contain a call to action which can be measured or monitored, 

and the results should be reported back to Council.

If you do not agree with any of these points, I would be grateful if you could explain 
why?”



5

14 Motions on notice  

To consider motions from councillors in accordance with Council procedure rule 38.  

Motions:

A. Motion to be proposed by Councillor George Levy, seconded by Councillor 
Peter Dragonetti

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government report entitled The 
Future Homes Standard 2019 Consultation on changes to Part L (conservation of 
fuel and power) and Part F (ventilation) of the Building Regulations for new 
dwellings states that:

We propose introducing in 2020 a meaningful but achievable uplift to energy 
efficiency standards as a stepping-stone to the Future Homes Standard. The 
intention is to make new homes more energy efficient and to future-proof them in 
readiness for low carbon heating systems.

The consultation sets out two options to uplift energy efficiency standards and 
requirements:

 Option 1: 20% reduction in carbon emissions compared to the current 
standard for an average home. We anticipate this could be delivered by very 
high fabric standards (typically with triple glazing and minimal heat loss from 
walls, ceilings and roofs). 

 Option 2: 31% reduction in carbon emissions compared to the current 
standard. We anticipate this could be delivered based on the installation of 
carbon-saving technology such as photovoltaic (solar) panels and better 
fabric standards, though not as high as in option 1 (typically double not triple 
glazing)

This Council asks that the Leader of the Council writes to the Secretary of State 
requesting clarity on when local authorities will be able to use either option or 
stronger measures to ensure developers create better homes.

B.        Motion to be proposed by Councillor Alexandrine Kantor, seconded by 
Councillor David Rouane

Council notes that Trans people face significant disadvantage in society.

Council believes that:

a. Trans men are men, Trans women are women, and that non-binary genders 
are just as valid.

b. Trans people deserve respect and autonomy.
c. Transphobia has a hugely detrimental impact on the mental health and well-

being of trans individuals.
d. It is our duty as community leaders who seek to create an open and tolerant 



6

society to speak out against transphobia and make clear it will not be 
tolerated.

Council therefore resolves to:

a. Ensure that all Council services, both directly provided and through partners, 
are fully accessible to all, regardless of their sexuality or gender identity.

b. Work to provide at least one gender neutral toilet where possible in every 
public building owned or operated by the Council, and encourage partners to 
do likewise.

c. Ensure that the Council’s constitution, policies, forms, and all internal and 
external communications are gender neutral.

d. Encourage and support a network of informal LGBTQ+ allies across officers 
and councillors to support all members of the LGBTQ+ communities.

C.        Motion to be proposed by Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak, seconded by 
Councillor Jo Robb

Council supports the application for a 7.5T Environmental weight limit for Henley-on-
Thames and a five-mile radius to include villages along the B481. This 
Environmental Traffic Regulation Order aims to protect historic buildings, enhance 
safety for people on narrow pavements, improve air quality in Henley and reduce 
pollution. It will also protect the surrounding villages by ensuring HGVs stay on the 
strategic road network. 

        

15 Exclusion of the public  

To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for an item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 

1-7 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.  

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Council

HELD ON THURSDAY 8 OCTOBER 2020 AT 6.00 PM

AS A VIRTUAL MEETING

Present:

David Bretherton (Chairman)

Ken Arlett, Anna Badcock, Pieter-Paul Barker, David Bartholomew, Robin Bennett, 
Sam Casey-Rerhaye, Sue Cooper, Peter Dragonetti, Maggie Filipova-Rivers, 
Stefan Gawrysiak, Elizabeth Gillespie, Sarah Gray, Kate Gregory, Victoria Haval, 
Simon Hewerdine, Lorraine Hillier, Kellie Hinton, Alexandrine Kantor, Mocky Khan, 
George Levy, Lynn Lloyd, Axel Macdonald, Jane Murphy, Caroline Newton, 
Andrea Powell, Leigh Rawlins, Jo Robb, Sue Roberts, David Rouane, 
Anne-Marie Simpson, Ian Snowdon, Alan Thompson, David Turner, Ian White and
Celia Wilson

Officers: Steven Corrigan, Steve Culliford, Simon Hewings, Suzanne Malcolm, Margaret 
Reed and Mark Stone

92 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meetings held on 5 March and 
16 July 2020 as correct records and agree that the Chairman sign them as 
such.

93 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest 

None.

94 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

The chairman advised councillors of general procedures to be followed in virtual meetings.

95 Public participation 

Mr Peter Richardson, Executive member of the Oxfordshire Neighbourhood Plan Alliance, 
submitted the following statement in support of Motion A of agenda item 18 on the Council 
agenda. 

Public Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



2

 “Members of the Oxfordshire Neighbourhood Plan Alliance have raised concerns in 
respect of consistent officer recognition of the status of made Neighbourhood 
Development Plans as a key part of the Development Plan and in accordance with 
Paragraphs 28 – 30 of the NPPF.

This recognition relates to policy interpretation and a full understanding of the intent, 
purpose and effectiveness of made Neighbourhood Plans as a vital contribution made in 
adding a local layer of context and as a result of a lengthy and comprehensive process 
including extensive local engagement, examination and referendum.

South has 12 made plans whose groups are ONPA members.

For the past 12 months, ONPA have been seeking dialogue with the Head of Planning, 
Planning Managers, Team Leaders and Policy officers to discuss these issues with very 
little useful progress”.

96 Petitions 

None.

97 Business adjourned from the last Council meeting held on 16 July 
2020 

With the agreement of Council, Councillor Ian White withdrew Motion D as the subject of 
the motion would be addressed in the officer report at agenda item 14 of the agenda.

Council agreed to defer consideration of motions E and F until agenda item 18.

98 Treasury outturn 2019/20 

Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 24 September 
2020, on the outturn performance of the treasury management function for the financial 
year 2019/20. The Joint Audit and Governance Committee and Cabinet had considered the 
interim head of finance’s report and were satisfied that the treasury activities had been 
carried out in accordance with the treasury management strategy and policy.

RESOLVED: to 

1. approve the treasury management outturn report 2019/20; and 
2. approve the actual 2019/20 prudential indicators within the report.  

99 Budget 2020/21 

Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 1 October 2020, 
on changes to the 2020/21 budgets to reflect the financial impact of the Coronavirus 
pandemic, and other matters, on the council.

RESOLVED: to  

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



3

1. agree that the net revenue expenditure budget for 2020/21 be increased to £16.177 
million, with the increase to be funded from revenue reserves; and  

2. agree the additions to the capital programme to be funded from capital receipts, as 
detailed in Appendix 2 of the interim head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 1 October 
2020.

100 Corporate Plan 2020-2024 

Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 1 October 2020 
on the corporate plan 2020-2024.

Councillors expressed disappointment at the lack of response from the young and BAME 
community and acknowledged that more work was required to both understand the 
reasons for this and to improve engagement. 
 
RESOLVED: to

1. adopt the South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate Plan 2020-2024 set out in 
Appendix 4 to the report of the acting deputy chief executive – transformation and 
operations to Cabinet on 1 October 2020, with a marketing material launch following on 
30 October 2020; and 

2. agree that the deliverability of the measures set out in Appendix 4 to the report of the 
acting deputy chief executive – transformation and operations to Cabinet on 1 October 
2020 be kept under ongoing review.

101 Delegation of enforcement functions from Oxfordshire County 
Council to South Oxfordshire District Council under Covid-19 
legislation 

Council considered Cabinet’s recommendations, made at its meeting on 1 October 2020, 
on the  delegation of functions granted to Oxfordshire County Council under The Health 
Protection (Coronavirus, Restriction) (England) (No.3) Regulations 2020 that give local 
authorities powers relating to the control and prevention of coronavirus.

RESOLVED to:

1. accept the delegation of functions from Oxfordshire County Council to enable South 
Oxfordshire District Council to carry out the enforcement actions detailed in The 
Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restriction) (England) (No.3) Regulations 2020;  

2. authorise the head of legal and democratic to enter into all necessary contracts and 
agreements to implement the delivery of the enforcement actions on behalf of 
Oxfordshire County Council under The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) 
(England) (No. 3) Regulations 2020;  

3. authorise the head of legal and democratic to enter into all necessary contracts and 
agreements to implement the delivery of the enforcement actions on behalf of 
Oxfordshire County Council for any further period for which The Health Protection 
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 3) Regulations 2020 may be extended by 
the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care and any enforcement actions 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



4

which Oxfordshire County Council may delegate to the council in pursuance of any 
other provision (whether by statute, regulation or direction) by which The Health 
Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No. 3) Regulations 2020 may be 
replaced, amended or supplemented;  

4. authorise the head of housing and environment to perform the enforcement actions 
set out in any such agreements referred to (1) to (3) above, and to authorise other 
officers to exercise any of these actions.  

102 Report of the leader of the council 

Councillor Sue Cooper, Leader of the council, provided an update on a number of matters. 
The text of her address is available on the council’s website. 

Council noted the details of urgent decisions taken by Cabinet members and Cabinet as 
set out on the agenda in respect of the following issues:

 Discretionary grants fund 
 Discretionary business grants round two
 Discretionary business grants top up fund
 Emergency Assistance Grant policy
 Commercial negotiations with Capita and the review of Exchequer Services 

and Finance IT systems

103 Review of the council's constitution 

Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic and monitoring officer 
on proposed changes to the council’s constitution.

Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak moved, and Councillor Maggie Filipova-Rivers seconded the 
following motion:

That Council:
1. agrees to amend the Summary and Explanation section of the constitution as 

follows:
(i) to use ‘Chair’ as the default term throughout the constitution,
(ii) to add the following definition of the leader of the opposition: 
“The opposition political group which holds the highest number of seats is known as 
the 'majority opposition group' with its leader known as the leader of the majority 
opposition group. If there are two or more larger opposition groups of the same 
size, the right of the title will alternate as agreed between the leaders of the groups 
or, in the absence of agreement, by Council”.

2. agrees to amend the Council, Cabinet and all committee procedure rules to include:
“The Chair may choose to indicate how they wish to be addressed, according to 
personal preference.”

3. agrees to amend the Council procedure rules as follows:

Page 10

Agenda Item 2

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/leaders-statement-to-council-8-october-2020/


5

(i) procedure rule 4 be amended so that when the budget is discussed at Council 
meetings, questions and motions from councillors will follow consideration of the 
budget,
(ii) procedure rule 33 be amended to allow councillors to also ask questions of 
representatives appointed to outside bodies or joint committees,
(iii) procedure rule 36 be amended to require written answers to councillors’ 
questions at Council meetings, to be provided to Democratic Services for circulation 
at least 24 hours before a Council meeting to allow more time for councillors to 
digest the answer and draft a supplementary question,
(iv) procedure rule 40 be amended to state that motions to Council may not relate to 
a decision on an individual case, or a decision made on an individual case under 
planning, licensing or other regulatory legislation;

4. agrees to amend the Joint Audit and Governance Committee procedure rules to 
clarify that only South Oxfordshire District Council members should vote on matters 
that solely relate to South Oxfordshire, and Vale of White Horse District Council 
members should only vote on matters that relate solely to the Vale; 

5. agrees to amend the Joint Staff Committee procedure rules terms of reference by 
replacing “to undertake development and performance reviews for the chief 
executive and head of paid service (based on the objectives and targets for the 
chief executive and head of paid service set by the leaders)” with: “To review the 
objectives and targets set by the leaders for the chief executive and review the 
formal performance and development reviews undertaken by the leaders.”; 

6. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the chief executive to add a 
delegation to allow the authorisation of additional senior officers to sign documents 
and to attest the affixing of the common seal, if this becomes necessary; 

7. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the acting deputy chief executive – 
transformation and operations, to act as the councils’ data protection officer and the 
senior information risk owner; 

8. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the Electoral Registration Officer and 
Returning Officer as follows (new text in bold type): “1.3 As returning officer, to 
designate an alternative polling place if the designated polling place becomes 
unavailable for a particular election, referendum or poll.” 

9. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the head of development and 
regeneration as follows: 
(i) add three paragraphs to the section relating to the Community Infrastructure 
Levy, as set out in paragraph 26 of this report, 
(ii) amend paragraph 1.2 (b) regarding the surrender or termination of leases and 
licences as follows (new text in bold type): 
“To approve and accept surrenders or terminations of leases and licences, and any 
ancillary documents (including deeds of variation), and determine applications for 
the assignment, sub lettings, and transfer of leases and licences and the granting of 
sub leases and under leases and other applications for consent required by 
lessees.” 
(iii) add a new paragraph 1.2 (m) as follows: “To grant the consent of the council 
and agree to release covenants in respect of land and property matters including 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



6

retrospective consents under restrictive covenants contained in historic 
conveyances and transfers of former council housing.”

10.agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the head of housing and environment 
as follows:
(i) delete paragraphs 1,7, 1.10, 1.16, 1.17, 1.20 and 1.21, as set out in paragraph 
30 of the report,
(ii) rename the section on ‘refuse and street cleaning’ to ‘waste and street cleaning’,
(iii) add the following paragraph to the section on waste:
“To authorise an exemption for residents who wish to pay their annual subscription 
to the garden waste service by means other than direct debit.”,
(iv) amend paragraph 16.2 relating to clean neighbourhoods as follows (additional 
text in bold; deletions shown crossed through):
“To exercise the council’s powers and duties authorise town and parish council 
officers and staff nominated by the district council’s contractors to implement the 
fixed penalty provisions of the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act and the Clean 
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005.”,
(v) amend paragraph 19.1 and delete paragraph 19.2 as follows:
“19.1 To exercise the council’s powers and duties under the Animal Welfare Act 
2006, the Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976, The Zoo Licensing Act 1981, 
including licensing and registration functions, service of notices, taking of 
enforcement action, inspections, risk assessing, powers of entry and the 
appointment of inspectors.
19.2 To exercise the council’s powers and duties under The Dangerous Wild 
Animals Act 1976, The Pet Animals Act 1951, The Breeding of Dogs Acts 1973 and 
1991, The Animal Boarding Establishments Acts 1963 and 1970, The Zoo Licensing 
Act 1981, and The Riding Establishments Acts 1964 & 1970, and the Breeding and 
Sale of Dogs (Welfare) Act 1999, including licensing and registration functions, 
taking of enforcement action, inspections,  powers of entry and the appointment of 
inspectors.”
(vi) amend paragraph 22.2 relating to private water supplies as follows:
“To give authority to approved companies or organisations to carry out risk 
assessment functions and water sampling on behalf of the council under the 
Water Industry Act 1991.”;

11.agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the head of planning as follows:
(i) that paragraph 1.15 relating to neighbourhood plans also applies to South 
Oxfordshire:
“1.15 To designate neighbourhood planning areas.” (This delegation is subject to 
consultation with the Cabinet member for planning.),
(ii) add a paragraph to allow the designation of a neighbourhood plan forum, where 
there is a parish meeting but no parish council,
(iii) add a paragraph to allow a neighbourhood plan to proceed to referendum;

12.adds to the list of Proper Officer and Authorised Officer appointments, as set out in 
the appendix 1 to the report, 

13.amends the Financial Procedure Rules as follows: 
(i) amend paragraph 61 to require that any sale of property resulting in a significant 
reduction in income of £100,000 or more, impacting on the current budget and the 
medium term financial plan, must be referred to full Council for consideration, 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



7

(ii) amend paragraphs 74 and 75 to refer to head of development and regeneration 
following the transfer of responsibility for Community Infrastructure Levy spending 
from the head of planning under the management restructure; 

14.authorises the head of legal and democratic to update the constitution to reflect the 
agreed amendments with effect from 1 November 2020; and 

15.authorises the head of legal and democratic to make any minor or consequential 
amendments to the constitution for consistency.

Amendment
Councillor Ken Arlett moved, and Councillor David Bartholomew seconded an amendment 
to amend Planning Committee Procedure Rule 4 to allow members of the Planning 
Committee to participate in the debate and vote on planning applications in their ward. 

Those councillors who spoke in support of the amendment expressed the view that local 
ward councillors had the local knowledge and information relating to planning applications 
in their ward which would benefit the decision making process. Councillors who had 
predetermined their view should be trusted to step down from the committee on that item. 
However, other councillors expressed the view that the existing rule served to protect both 
the council and ward councillors from allegations of bias and predetermination and 
facilitated ward councillors in their advocacy role.

On being put to the vote the amendment was declared carried.

A councillor expressed the view that the leader of the opposition group with the largest 
number of seats should be referred to as the leader of the opposition and not merely as 
the leader of the majority opposition group as set out in1(ii).  

On being put to the vote the motion as amended was declared carried.

RESOLVED: That for South Oxfordshire District Council, Council:
1. agrees to amend the Summary and Explanation section of the constitution as follows:
(i) to use ‘Chair’ as the default term throughout the constitution,
(ii) to add the following definition of the leader of the opposition: 
“The opposition political group which holds the highest number of seats is known as the 
'majority opposition group' with its leader known as the leader of the majority opposition 
group. If there are two or more larger opposition groups of the same size, the right of the 
title will alternate as agreed between the leaders of the groups or, in the absence of 
agreement, by Council”.

2. agrees to amend the Council, Cabinet and all committee procedure rules to include:
“The Chair may choose to indicate how they wish to be addressed, according to personal 
preference.”
3. agrees to amend the Council procedure rules as follows:
(i) procedure rule 4 be amended so that when the budget is discussed at Council 
meetings, questions and motions from councillors will follow consideration of the budget,
(ii) procedure rule 33 be amended to allow councillors to also ask questions of 
representatives appointed to outside bodies or joint committees,
(iii) procedure rule 36 be amended to require written answers to councillors’ questions at 
Council meetings, to be provided to Democratic Services for circulation at least 24 hours 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



8

before a Council meeting to allow more time for councillors to digest the answer and draft 
a supplementary question,
(iv) procedure rule 40 be amended to state that motions to Council may not relate to a 
decision on an individual case, or a decision made on an individual case under planning, 
licensing or other regulatory legislation;

4. agrees to amend the Planning Committee procedure rules to allow members of the 
Planning Committee to participate in the debate and vote on planning applications in 
their wards;

5. agrees to amend the Joint Audit and Governance Committee procedure rules to clarify 
that only South Oxfordshire District Council members should vote on matters that 
solely relate to South Oxfordshire, and Vale of White Horse District Council members 
should only vote on matters that relate solely to the Vale; 

6. agrees to amend the Joint Staff Committee procedure rules terms of reference by 
replacing “to undertake development and performance reviews for the chief executive 
and head of paid service (based on the objectives and targets for the chief executive 
and head of paid service set by the leaders)” with: “To review the objectives and 
targets set by the leaders for the chief executive and review the formal performance 
and development reviews undertaken by the leaders.”; 

7. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the chief executive to add a delegation to 
allow the authorisation of additional senior officers to sign documents and to attest the 
affixing of the common seal, if this becomes necessary; 

8. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the acting deputy chief executive – 
transformation and operations, to act as the councils’ data protection officer and the 
senior information risk owner; 

9. agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the Electoral Registration Officer and 
Returning Officer as follows (new text in bold type): “1.3 As returning officer, to 
designate an alternative polling place if the designated polling place becomes 
unavailable for a particular election, referendum or poll.” 

10.agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the head of development and 
regeneration as follows: 

(i) add three paragraphs to the section relating to the Community Infrastructure 
Levy, as set out in paragraph 26 of the report of the head of legal and democratic 
and monitoring officer to Council on 8 October 2020, 
(ii) amend paragraph 1.2 (b) regarding the surrender or termination of leases and 
licences as follows (new text in bold type): 

“To approve and accept surrenders or terminations of leases and licences, and any 
ancillary documents (including deeds of variation), and determine applications for the 
assignment, sub lettings, and transfer of leases and licences and the granting of sub 
leases and under leases and other applications for consent required by lessees.” 
(iii) add a new paragraph 1.2 (m) as follows: “To grant the consent of the council and 
agree to release covenants in respect of land and property matters including retrospective 
consents under restrictive covenants contained in historic conveyances and transfers of 
former council housing.”

11.agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the head of housing and environment as 
follows:

(i) delete paragraphs 1,7, 1.10, 1.16, 1.17, 1.20 and 1.21, as set out in paragraph 30 of 
this report,
(ii) rename the section on ‘refuse and street cleaning’ to ‘waste and street cleaning’,

Page 14

Agenda Item 2



9

(iii) add the following paragraph to the section on waste:
“To authorise an exemption for residents who wish to pay their annual subscription to the 
garden waste service by means other than direct debit.”,
(iv) amend paragraph 16.2 relating to clean neighbourhoods as follows (additional text in 
bold; deletions shown crossed through):
“To exercise the council’s powers and duties authorise town and parish council officers 
and staff nominated by the district council’s contractors to implement the fixed penalty 
provisions of the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act and the Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act 2005.”,
(v) amend paragraph 19.1 and delete paragraph 19.2 as follows:
“19.1 To exercise the council’s powers and duties under the Animal Welfare Act 2006, the 
Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976, The Zoo Licensing Act 1981, including licensing 
and registration functions, service of notices, taking of enforcement action, inspections, 
risk assessing, powers of entry and the appointment of inspectors.
19.2 To exercise the council’s powers and duties under The Dangerous Wild Animals Act 
1976, The Pet Animals Act 1951, The Breeding of Dogs Acts 1973 and 1991, The Animal 
Boarding Establishments Acts 1963 and 1970, The Zoo Licensing Act 1981, and The 
Riding Establishments Acts 1964 & 1970, and the Breeding and Sale of Dogs (Welfare) 
Act 1999, including licensing and registration functions, taking of enforcement action, 
inspections,  powers of entry and the appointment of inspectors.”

(vi) amend paragraph 22.2 relating to private water supplies as follows:
“To give authority to approved companies or organisations to carry out risk assessment 
functions and water sampling on behalf of the council under the Water Industry Act 
1991.”;

12.agrees to amend the scheme of delegation to the head of planning as follows:
(i) that paragraph 1.15 relating to neighbourhood plans also applies to South Oxfordshire:
“1.15 To designate neighbourhood planning areas.” (This delegation is subject to 
consultation with the Cabinet member for planning.),
(ii) add a paragraph to allow the designation of a neighbourhood plan forum, where there 
is a parish meeting but no parish council,
(iii) add a paragraph to allow a neighbourhood plan to proceed to referendum;

13.adds to the list of Proper Officer and Authorised Officer appointments, as set out in 
appendix 1 of the report of the head of legal and democratic and monitoring officer to 
Council on 8 October 2020, 

14.amends the Financial Procedure Rules as follows: 
      (i) amend paragraph 61 to require that any sale of property resulting in a significant 

reduction in income of £100,000 or more, impacting on the current budget and the 
medium term financial plan, must be referred to full Council for consideration, 

(ii) amend paragraphs 74 and 75 to refer to head of development and regeneration 
following the transfer of responsibility for Community Infrastructure Levy spending 
from the head of planning under the management restructure; 

15.authorises the head of legal and democratic to update the constitution to reflect the 
agreed amendments with effect from 1 November 2020; and 

16.authorises the head of legal and democratic to make any minor or consequential 
amendments to the constitution for consistency.

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



10

104 Review of planning application call-in and trigger arrangements for 
decision making 

Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic on three aspects of the 
scheme of delegation to the head of planning

Councillor Anne-Marie Simpson moved, and Councillor Peter Dragonetti seconded the 
following motion:

That Council 

1. agrees, with effect from the date of this meeting, to extend the temporary change in 
town or parish trigger arrangements agreed by the chief executive under 
emergency powers on 18 May 2020 so that minor applications (e.g. 1-9 new 
houses) continue not to be automatically triggered and referred to the Planning 
Committee where the officer’s recommendation for approval/consent is in direct 
conflict with the clear and unambiguous views of the town or parish council;

2. agrees to further review the operation of these town or parish trigger arrangements 
at a Council meeting by no later than 31 July 2021;

3. agrees, with effect from the date of this meeting, that a ward councillor (to include 
adjacent ward councillor whose parish has been consulted) may call in a planning 
application (except an application for a certificate of lawful use or development, 
prior approval or notification), within 28 days of the start of the consultation period, 
to be considered by the Planning Committee. This request must be in writing and 
refer to material planning matters to ensure the audit trail for making that decision is 
clear and unambiguous;

4. agrees, with effect from the date of this meeting, to make permanent the change 
that prior approvals and notifications are no longer referred to the Planning 
Committee;

5. authorises the head of legal and democratic to make the necessary changes to the 
Constitution and to make any minor or consequential amendments to the 
Constitution and the rules for consistency and to reflect the council’s style guide.

In moving the motion, Councillor Anne-Marie Simpson stated that there was an increasing 
number of planning applications waiting to be considered by the planning committee and 
therefore the temporary change in town and parish council trigger arrangements needed to 
continue to help reduce a building backlog of applications waiting for a committee decision. 
The motion sought to simplify the ward councillor call-in arrangements with the removal of 
the previous consultation arrangements with the head of planning and chair and vice chair 
of the planning committee. Ward councillors would now have an automatic right to refer an 
application to the planning committee thus recognising the local community leadership role 
of ward councillors. 

Amendment 1

Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak moved, and Councillor Mocky Khan seconded an amendment 
to restore the automatic trigger and referral of minor applications (e.g.1-9 houses) to the 

Page 16

Agenda Item 2



11

planning committee where the officer’s recommendation for approval/consent is in direct 
conflict with the views of the town or parish council.

Those who supported the amendment expressed the view that it was important to restore 
the local democratic right of parish/town councils to have such applications considered by 
the planning committee. However, the majority of councillors supported the view that going 
back to the old scheme at this time would mean more planning committee meetings with 
their associated costs and with slow progress on committee decisions there was an 
increased risk of planning appeals for non-determination. The motion provided for the call 
in of applications to the committee by ward councillors who should liaise with their 
parish/town councils in respect of any concerns they have with particular applications.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 67, which provides for a recorded vote if three 
councillors request one, the chairman called for a recorded vote on the amendment which 
was declared lost with the voting as follows:

For Against Abstain

Councillors Councillors Councillors

Ken Arlett Pieter-Paul Barker Anna Badcock

Stefan Gawrysiak Robin Bennett David 
Bartholomew

Kellie Hinton David Bretherton Lorraine Hillier

Mocky Khan Sam Casey-Rerhaye Lynn Lloyd

Axel Macdonald Sue Cooper Caroline 
Newton

Celia Wilson Peter Dragonetti Ian Snowdon

Maggie Filipova-Rivers Alan Thompson

Elizabeth Gillespie

Sarah Gray 

Kate Gregory

Victoria Haval 

Simon Hewerdine

Alexandrine Kantor

George Levy

Jane Murphy

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



12

For Against Abstain
Andrea Powell

Leigh Rawlins

Jo Robb

Sue Roberts

David Rouane

Anne-Marie Simpson 

David Turner

Ian White

6 23 7

Amendment 2

Councillor Simon Hewerdine moved, and Councillor Robin Bennett seconded an 
amendment to include the following wording at the end of 2 of the motion to ensure that 
the provisions agreed at the meeting would not continue without a Council vote at the 
proposed review.  

“these trigger arrangements will automatically lapse unless full Council votes to renew 
them at the review”.

With the agreement of Council, the mover and seconder of the original motion accepted 
the amendment.

On being put the motion as amended was carried.

RESOLVED: to

1. agree, with effect from the date of this meeting, to extend the temporary change in 
town or parish trigger arrangements agreed by the chief executive under emergency 
powers on 18 May 2020 so that minor applications (e.g. 1-9 new houses) continue not 
to be automatically triggered and referred to the Planning Committee where the 
officer’s recommendation for approval/consent is in direct conflict with the clear and 
unambiguous views of the town or parish council;

2. agree to further review the operation of these town or parish trigger arrangements at a 
Council meeting by no later than 31 July 2021; these trigger arrangements will 
automatically lapse unless full Council votes to renew them at the review;

Page 18

Agenda Item 2



13

3. agree, with effect from the date of this meeting, that a ward councillor (to include 
adjacent ward councillor whose parish has been consulted) may call in a planning 
application (except an application for a certificate of lawful use or development, prior 
approval or notification), within 28 days of the start of the consultation period, to be 
considered by the Planning Committee. This request must be in writing and refer to 
material planning matters to ensure the audit trail for making that decision is clear and 
unambiguous;

4. agree, with effect from the date of this meeting, to make permanent the change that 
prior approvals and notifications are no longer referred to the Planning Committee;

5. authorise the head of legal and democratic to make the necessary changes to the 
Constitution and to make any minor or consequential amendments to the Constitution 
and the rules for consistency and to reflect the council’s style guide.

105 Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 
2003 - proposal to re-appoint a joint Independent Remuneration 
Panel 

Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic on the appointment of a 
joint independent remuneration panel with Vale of White Horse District Council to 
undertake a review of the councillors’ allowances scheme and make recommendations to 
Council.

RESOLVED: to:

1. appoint a joint independent remuneration panel with Vale of White Horse District 
Council to carry out reviews of the councillors’ allowances schemes at both councils 
and make recommendations on any changes to the schemes to the relevant 
Council; 

2. make the appointment of the Joint Independent Remuneration Panel effective until 
May 2024, one year after the 2023 district council elections;

3. to appoint South East Employers as one of the members of the Joint Independent 
Remuneration Panel, to act as chair and provide training to new panel members;   

4. authorise the head of legal and democratic to make appointments to the Joint 
Independent Remuneration Panel.  

106 Re-appointment of independent persons to advise on code of 
conduct issues 

Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic and monitoring officer 
on extending the term of office of two independent persons to advise on code of conduct 
issues.

RESOLVED: to authorise the monitoring officer to extend the terms of office of George 
Green and Chris Smith, the council’s independent persons for code of conduct matters, 
until 31 May 2021.

Page 19

Agenda Item 2



14

107 Questions on notice 

No questions were submitted by councillors under Council Procedure Rule 33.

108 Motions on notice 

Prior to consideration of the motions, Council agreed, prior to the expiry of two and a half 
hours, in accordance with council procedure rule 12, to extend the duration of the meeting 
by half an hour.  

As per minute (97/10/20) Council considered the motions adjourned from the meeting held 
on 16 July 2020.

Motion E from the July Council meeting
With the agreement of Council Councillor Jane Murphy moved, and Councillor Caroline 
Newton seconded the following altered motion from that submitted to the Council meeting 
in July.

This Council recognises the excellent work of all local government staff across Oxfordshire 
during the ongoing COVID-19 crisis. Councils have worked together in these difficult times, 
demonstrating the clear benefits to residents of integrated delivery.  All Councils have 
gone the extra mile in delivering services to residents and have prioritised the most 
vulnerable members of our communities. This has inevitably incurred additional costs – c. 
£90 million across all tiers.  Whilst welcome, the additional Government funding provided 
to date does not cover all our increased costs.

Councils across Oxfordshire are now considering how they can balance budgets and 
protect frontline services, as we are later tonight. No Councillor nor party wants to see 
drastic cuts to vital Council services. We, as a group of democratically elected Councillors, 
should take the initiative to ensure that we continue to provide the best possible public 
services for our residents; we have a duty to respond to the national financial challenge 
ahead and to be open and honest with our residents.

Council therefore agrees that:

Further to the motion passed at the December 2019 Council meeting, reflecting that much 
has changed since, the Leader should write to the Secretary of State, noting that not all 
Districts are interested only in self-preservation and request that he actively pursues 
consideration of unitary options for Oxfordshire.   Recognising the current pressures on 
our staff and partners from addressing the COVID pandemic, and the increasing in the 
infection rates both nationally and regionally, the Leader should request that the Secretary 
of State ask MHCLG officials to convene and support a wide-ranging conversation with our 
local authority partners, business communities, residents and wider stakeholders, as soon 
as is practicable in 2021 to explore all viable unitary options for Oxfordshire that increase 
local accountability and maintain strong democratic links with communities”.  

During the course of the debate on this motion Councillor Jane Murphy, with the 
agreement of her seconder, Councillor Caroline Newton, agreed to withdraw her motion on 
the understanding that the issue of local government reform and unitary options would 
come before councillors shortly after Christmas. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 2



15

Motion F from the July Council meeting
With the agreement of Council, Councillor Jo Robb moved, and Councillor Andrea Powell 
seconded the following altered motion from that submitted to the Council meeting in July. 
On being put the motion was declared carried.

RESOLVED: 

That Council notes the growing popularity of wild swimming, paddling, kayaking and 
paddle boarding in the River Thames and its tributaries and, more importantly, the intrinsic 
value of clean water and healthy, biodiverse rivers. The UK’s water companies are 
permitted to release raw sewage into waterways in specific circumstances, under licence 
from the Environment Agency. 

Regulators rely on self-reporting on the part of the water companies and there is no way 
for river users to know in real time when sewage spills happen.  Hundreds of beaches 
around the UK have Bathing Quality Water status – this ensures the Environment Agency 
monitors and reports on water quality throughout the bathing season. 

Only a handful of inland lakes in the UK – and no rivers – have Bathing Quality Water 
status.
  
A recent report by the Environment Agency found that every river in England is polluted 
beyond legal limits. Only 14% of English rivers can be considered ecologically healthy.

Recognising the intrinsic importance of the River Thames as a natural asset of national 
significance and its value to our communities, this Council:

1. Asks officers to work with appropriate partners such as the Environment Agency, 
DEFRA, The Rivers Trust and Surfers Against Sewage to explore Bathing Quality Water 
status for the River Thames in South Oxfordshire; 
2. Calls on Thames Water to draft and implement an action plan for the elimination of 
Controlled Sewage Overflows (CSOs) across its sewage treatment network; 
3. Calls on Thames Water to provide accurate, real-time and publicly available information 
about Controlled Sewage Overflows into the Thames and its tributaries; 
4. Asks officers to work alongside the Thames Champion, Thames Water, the 
Environment Agency, neighbouring Councils and others to achieve an end to sewage 
discharges, and the introduction of world-leading water quality legislation, a rigorous, 
enhanced water-testing regime and accurate up to date information on water quality and 
sewage spills to make the River Thames and its tributaries “Safe for All.”

A. Councillor Ken Arlett moved, and Councillor Stefan Gawrysiak seconded the motion 
as set out in the agenda at agenda item 18

On being put to the vote the motion was declared carried.

RESOLVED: That South Oxfordshire District Council has made Neighbourhood Plans 
central to the planning process, in securing 40% affordable housing, employment land, 
green environment etc’, this to stop developers running roughshod over our District.

Page 21

Agenda Item 2



16

Council requests the Planning Committee to support Neighbourhood Plans in its decision-
making as far as it possibly can within planning law.

B. Councillor Jo Robb did not move the motion as set out in the agenda having moved 
altered wording to her motion previously submitted to the July Council (see motion 
F from the July Council meeting above).

During the consideration of Motion C, Council agreed, prior to the expiry of two and a half 
hours, in accordance with council procedure rule 12, to extend the duration of the meeting 
by half an hour

C. Councillor Alexandrine Kantor moved, and Councillor Kate Gregory seconded the 
motion as set out in the agenda at agenda item 18

The majority of councillors supported the motion as drafted. However, the view was 
expressed that, whilst supporting the sentiment of the motion, it should focus on areas the 
council could directly influence. The motion as drafted was too long and included 
background information and references to other countries. 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 67, which provides for a recorded vote if three 
councillors request one, the chairman called for a recorded vote on the amendment which 
was declared carried with the voting as follows:

For Against Abstain

Councillors Councillors Councillors

Ken Arlett David Bartholomew

Anna Badcock Lorraine Hillier

Pieter-Paul Barker Alan Thompson

Robin Bennett

David Bretherton 

Sam Casey-Rerhaye

Sue Cooper

Peter Dragonetti

Maggie Filipova-Rivers

Stefan Gawrysiak

Elizabeth Gillespie

Page 22

Agenda Item 2



17

For Against Abstain
Sarah Gray 

Kate Gregory

Victoria Haval 

Simon Hewerdine

Kellie Hinton

Alexandrine Kantor

Mocky Khan 

George Levy

Lynn Lloyd

Axel Macdonald

Jane Murphy

Caroline Newton

Andrea Powell

Leigh Rawlins

Jo Robb

Sue Roberts

David Rouane

Anne-Marie Simpson 

Ian Snowdon

David Turner

Ian White

Celia Wilson

33 0 3

Page 23

Agenda Item 2



18

RESOLVED: That Council recognises:

● The term BaME is not one that every person from an ethnic minority background 
identifies with but it is a term that everyone understands.

● The brutal, and unlawful, death of George Floyd in the United States of America has 
justifiably triggered global protests against institutional racism faced by Black 
people right across the world, including here in the United Kingdom. This support 
has been revived following the recent aggression of Jacob Blake leaving him 
paralized.

● These protests have come, alongside all the inequalities faced by Black people, in 
the wake of the devastatingly disproportionate impact of Covid-19 on BaME 
communities in Britain and other parts of the world.

● It is clear that this impact has been made far worse by the structural inequalities 
Black people face when it comes to health, education and housing amongst the 
numerous obstacles that Black people encounter daily in the UK.

● BaME people are 54% more likely than white people to be fined under the new 
coronavirus lockdown laws.

● In the UK, 26% of instances of police using firearms are against Black people, 
despite Black people making up only 3.3% of the population.

● 51% of young men in custody in the UK are from BaME backgrounds, despite these 
groups making up only 14% of the UK population.

● Around two thirds of healthcare staff who have died as a result of COVID-19 are 
from a BaME background whereas they make up 20% of the overall workforce.

The Council notes: 

● That Black lives matter as much as all others. 
● That George Floyd’s brutal murder must be a catalyst for change across the world.
● That no country, city, police service or institution can absolve itself of the 

responsibility to do better.
● When the BaME communities will experience economic justice and opportunity, we 

all benefit. When our democracy works for Black Britain, it is a better democracy for 
all of us.

● That there is no place for racism or any form of xenophobia or bigotry anywhere in 
our society.

● That language is a powerful tool for inspiration and change, as well as oppression 
and ignorance and must be used wisely and respectfully.

● That it is necessary for our national and civic leaders to start an open and respectful 
conversation about who we are and what we stand for as a community.

● That the national conversation on institutional racism and immigration should be 
conducted with care for the dignity of people who are vulnerable, who do not have a 
voice in the public domain, and have to suffer the consequences of inaccurate, 
insulting and inflammatory language.

● That it is vital all efforts are taken to understand the impact of Covid-19 on BaME 
communities in South Oxfordshire and that we should work with all relevant 
stakeholders to mitigate the impact now and into the future.

Page 24

Agenda Item 2



19

● That whist 3.9% of South Oxfordshire population is from a BaME background, that 
is not matched from the data available by the proportion of staff working at Grade 
11 and above. The same is true for elected members of the Council. 

● That we must stand together as one.
Council resolves to: 

● Show leadership in the campaign to rid our district of bigotry and racism by creating 
a Diversity and Inclusion Strategy which will ensure that council is inclusive to 
BaME and other diverse and hard to reach communities: in its staff recruitment, in 
its representation and in its service provision 

D. Councillor Axel Macdonald moved, and Councillor Celia Wilson seconded the motion 
as set out in the agenda at agenda item 18

On being put to the vote the motion was declared carried.
RESOLVED: That due to Covid 19 and other pressures, the council is under significant 
economic pressure to reduce its costs and hence the council will be assessing its asset 
portfolio to see where cost savings can be made.

One of the council's assets is the Cornerstone in Didcot. This is the jewel in the council's 
crown providing a much needed and appreciated social and cultural centre. 

The council should strive to ensure that the Cornerstone continues to be provided with 
suitable funding to safeguard its future. Didcot is undergoing significant growth and 
requires facilities like the Cornerstone to enable the town to offer residents in the town and 
district cultural opportunities that may not exist anywhere else close by.

109 Exclusion of the public 

RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.  

Page 25

Agenda Item 2



20

110 Impact of Covid-19 on leisure facilities 

At its meeting on 1 October 2020 Cabinet considered the confidential report of the interim 
head of development and regeneration on the impact of Covid-19 on leisure facilities. 
Cabinet made no recommendation to Council at this time.

Councillor Maggie Filipova-Rivers, Cabinet member for community services, provided a 
verbal update to Council. 

111 Budget 2020/21 

Council noted the revised confidential appendix 1, circulated following the Cabinet meeting 
on 1 October 2020, and confidential appendix 2 to the interim head of finance’s report to 
Cabinet on 1 October 2020.

The meeting closed at 9:30pm 

Chairman Date

Page 26

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet Report

Report of Head of Planning
Author: Lucy Murfett
Telephone: 01235 422600
Textphone: 1800 01235 422600
E-mail: lucy.murfett@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected: All
Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Anne-Marie Simpson
Tel: 01491 651298
E-mail: Anne-Marie.Simpson@southoxon.gov.uk 
To: CABINET
Date: 8 December 2020

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 
adoption

Recommendations

Cabinet to recommend to Council:

(a) to adopt the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035, as set out in Appendix A to this 
report and modified by the Schedule of Main Modifications in Appendix B and the 
Schedule of Minor Modifications in Appendix C, and the updated Policies Map in 
Appendix D.

(b) to delegate authority to the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Planning, to make any necessary further minor modifications prior to 
publication of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035, and any further updates to the 
Policies Map. 

Purpose of Report

1. To progress the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 to adoption in order to provide a 
new development plan document for making planning decisions.

Page 27

Agenda Item 7

mailto:lucy.murfett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Anne-Marie.Simpson@southoxon.gov.uk


Corporate Objectives 

2. The South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 was developed under different Corporate Plan 
priorities. However, the adoption of the Local Plan will help deliver along a number of 
the new Corporate Plan 2020-2024 themes:

 Improved economic and community wellbeing

 Homes and infrastructure that meet local needs

 Protect and restore our natural world

 Action on the Climate Emergency

Background

3. The Council is under a statutory duty – pursuant to the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 - to prepare a development plan for its area.

4. A local plan is important because it is the starting point in making decisions on planning 
matters including applications: planning law requires that applications for planning 
permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.

5. Under regulation 10A of The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended) local planning authorities must review local plans 
every 5 years from their adoption date to ensure that policies remain relevant and 
effective. 

6. The new Local Plan, once adopted, will replace the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 
which was adopted in December 2012, and the saved policies in the South Oxfordshire 
Local Plan 2011, which was adopted in 2006. South Oxfordshire’s plan is therefore 
overdue for replacement.

7. The Local Plan 2035 covers the full range of planning policy topic areas: planning for 
homes, jobs, retail, climate change, biodiversity and the protection of the district’s 
nationally and locally important assets. It contains strategic policies, land allocations, a 
policy framework for neighbourhood plans, and development management policies. 

8. Unlike previous local plans which had a housing target provided by a higher tier 
statutory plan (e.g. the Oxfordshire Structure Plan or the South East Plan), this new 
local plan was produced under the national system where a district determines its own 
housing number and has a Duty to Cooperate with neighbouring authorities. Meeting 
the Duty to Cooperate is a key test for a local plan at examination; failure to meet it is a 
reason several plans across the region have failed. In our case the Council has 
cooperated closely with neighbouring authorities. The housing number was developed 
through the Oxfordshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA, 2014), 
produced jointly with the other Oxfordshire authorities. The Plan allocates sufficient 
land to meet the district’s housing needs identified in the SHMA and agreed in the 
Oxfordshire Growth Deal. It also contains the agreed amount of housing to meet our 
proportion of Oxford’s unmet housing need.    

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



Plan preparation stage

9. The Council began preparing the new Local Plan in 2014.

10.The Plan is supported by an extensive evidence base, with around 120 technical 
studies on the district’s future needs and the Plan’s impacts1. These range from 
housing needs to transport assessment, infrastructure delivery plans, assessment of 
flood risk, ecology and village facilities.

11.The Plan has been through seven rounds of public consultation and refinement (the 
normal number is two or three rounds).

Examination stage of the Local Plan 

12.Council approved the submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary of State for 
independent examination on 20 December 2018. The Plan was submitted for 
examination on 29 March 2019, and in accordance with section 20(7C) of the 2004 Act, 
the Council requested the Inspector to recommend any modifications necessary to 
make the Plan sound. Meeting the end of March 2019 submission deadline was a 
requirement of the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal. When the current 
administration was formed, Cabinet made a recommendation to Council to withdraw 
the Local Plan. Prior to Council considering the matter, the Secretary of State (SoS) 
stepped in and issued a Temporary Direction on 9 October 2019. This was followed by 
a SoS Direction on 3 March 2020 to the Council to progress the Plan through 
examination and adoption by December 2020, and to report monthly to MHCLG 
officials on progress of the Plan. This monthly monitoring has taken place, the Plan has 
been through examination, and work is on track for the Council to take a decision on 
adoption in December 2020.   

13.The Local Plan has been examined by an independent Inspector whose role is to 
assess whether the plan has been prepared in accordance with the Duty to Cooperate, 
legal and procedural requirements, and whether it is sound. The tests of soundness are 
set out in the NPPF at paragraph 35: plans are sound if they are positively prepared, 
justified, effective and consistent with national policy. An Examination in Public was 
held in July-August 2020. The Council broke new ground as this was the first virtual 
local plan examination to be held in the UK. The hearings were livestreamed on the 
internet and there were over 15,000 views over the four weeks of the hearings. Over 
2,000 people watched live the session on the spatial strategy. The technology meant 
that far more people were involved than a conventional physical hearing, and this was 
widely viewed as a success for the Council. 

14.As is normal for a local plan, the content of the Plan has evolved to some extent during 
the examination. As part of the local plan publication stage (January-February 2019), 
the public were invited to set out their concerns and propose modifications to the Plan. 
The Inspector also gave officers of the Council the opportunity to suggest modifications 
to the Plan before the hearings and to discuss these during the hearings. Where these 
involved ‘main modifications’ the Inspector made it clear which were required to make 
the Plan ‘sound’. The Council was also able to make ‘minor modifications’ (for example 
minor updates and corrections). Minor modifications are changes which “do not 

1 These are available to view in the Submission Document Library.

Page 29

Agenda Item 7

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=1283190358&CODE=02C6029D539747E85D411F11E1E73C1D&NAME=Local%20Plan%20-%20Examination%20Library&REF=SLP_EXAMLIB&REFERER_URL_IN=&SOVA_IN=SOUTH#exactline


materially affect the policies that would be set out in the document if it was adopted 
with the main modifications but no other modifications”2.

15.After the virtual hearings the Local Plan Inspector issued a letter entitled ‘Inspector’s 
Preliminary Conclusions and Post-Hearings Advice’ on 28 August 2020. This set out 
the more significant Main Modifications that the Inspector identified as necessary to 
make the Plan sound. He invited the Council to prepare and consult on Main 
Modifications to address these and gave instructions on what these should contain. 

16.The Council held a six-week public consultation on the Main Modifications to the Plan 
between 21 September and 2 November 2020. Following the end of the Main 
Modifications consultation, the Council collated all the representations that were 
received and sent these to the Inspector for his consideration. A total of 259 
respondents participated in the Main Modifications consultation collectively making a 
total of around 1,170 comments. This is fewer responses than were received at 
previous consultation stages of the Local Plan (for example 2,561 respondents made 
17,136 comments at the Regulation 19 stage in Jan-Feb 2019). The Main Modifications 
consultation responses are available on the Council’s Forthcoming Local Plan 
webpage. Prior to the Inspector issuing his final Report containing his 
recommendations, there was a quality assurance check (peer review) by the Planning 
Inspectorate and a fact check of the draft Report by the Council, with officers feeding 
back any factual changes to the Inspector. 

17.The Inspector has issued his final report to the Council, published on the Council 
website on 30 November 2020. The report concludes that, with the recommended Main 
Modifications, the Local Plan satisfies the requirements of Section 20(5) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and meets the criteria for soundness in 
the National Planning Policy Framework. The Inspector’s Report is attached as 
Appendix E. The formal issuing of the Inspector’s Report marks the end of the 
examination, and start of the next phase, consideration of Plan adoption.   

Modifications made to the Plan during the examination

18.With the Main Modifications, the Local Plan is now different from the Plan submitted for 
examination in 2019. While all the strategic site allocations remain in the Plan, there 
are some notable changes resulting from the participation of councillors, officers, 
stakeholders and members of the public at the Regulation 19 stage (Jan-Feb 2019) 
and during the examination. Some key changes now in the Plan are set out below:

a) A new local plan should plan ahead for 15 years from the date of adoption, so the 
end date for the new South Oxfordshire Local Plan has been extended to run until 
2035. This meant adding an extra year’s worth of housing requirement to the plan 
(775 homes) in Policy STRAT2. However, no new site allocations needed to be 
added because the Plan already proposed strategic allocations which would deliver 
beyond the end of the Plan period (2035).  

b) The policy on density STRAT5 has been reviewed and changed from requiring 
relatively high minimum densities to be achieved in new development (for example 
70 dwellings per hectare in major centres, sustainable transport hubs and at two of 
the edge of Oxford strategic allocations) to a policy that now requires proposals to 
optimise the density, with an expectation that well-located sites will achieve 

2 S.23(3)(b) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/forthcoming-planning-policies/our-forthcoming-local-plan/independent-examination-of-our-local-plan/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/forthcoming-planning-policies/our-forthcoming-local-plan/independent-examination-of-our-local-plan/


densities of more than 45 dwellings per hectare unless there is a clear conflict with 
delivering a high-quality design or other clearly justified planning reasons for a lower 
density. This helps address concerns raised about new development fitting in with 
the character of South Oxfordshire’s towns and villages.     

c) Policy H9 on affordable housing has been modified to require 40% affordable 
housing to be delivered for developments in the C2 Use Class (care homes) where 
these are for self-contained units. This addresses concerns that South Oxfordshire 
has been attracting retirement living schemes that did not contribute towards 
meeting the needs of those unable to afford to buy. 

d) The process for masterplanning the strategic sites and other major developments 
including in the garden communities (Didcot and Berinsfield), has been improved. 
Changes to Policy STRAT4 require each development to provide low carbon 
development and renewable energy, while changes to Policy DES4 include a new 
requirement to involve the community and other stakeholders in the masterplanning 
process. This will help both the sustainability of the design and the integration of the 
proposed developments.

e) Climate change has been brought into sharper focus in the period since the Plan 
was submitted in March 2019. The Council declared a climate emergency on 11 
April 2019 and then in October 2019 passed a motion to aim for net-zero carbon 
emissions for the whole district by 2030. The Plan has been amended through the 
examination process and now contains new provisions on climate change, including 
climate change forming a key part of the Plan’s spatial strategy. There is also an 
amended Policy DES9 on Promoting Sustainable Design, an amended DES10 on 
Renewable Energy, and a brand new Policy DES113 on Carbon Reduction which 
sets out higher requirements than the Building Regulations. DES11 establishes the 
stringent reductions in carbon emissions as soon as the Plan is adopted, and 
progressively tightens these reductions until 31 March 2030 when net zero carbon 
is required. This new Policy DES11, which was not in the 2019 submission plan, will 
see an improvement on the environmental performance of new developments than 
is currently being required or achieved. It set the highest standards in Oxfordshire 
(jointly with Oxford City) for carbon reduction in new buildings. The Plan also now 
contains a new Appendix 16 which sets out how climate change is addressed in the 
Plan. 

f) Firmer requirements for net biodiversity gain on the strategic allocation sites, with 
bespoke proposals set out for each site.  

Options

19.The choices available to the Council at this stage are restricted to the binary options of 
adopting the Local Plan (with the Main Modifications) or not adopting the Local Plan. 

20.The Council is not entitled - as a matter of law - to make further Main Modifications to 
the local plan. There is also no middle ground option of adopting parts of the Plan. 

21.The Inspector’s Report must be given strong consideration in the adoption decision. 
The merits of the Plan’s policies and strategic site allocations are all matters that have 
been considered at depth through the examination in public. The content of the Plan 

3 DES11 will be re-numbered DES10 in the final plan 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



and its soundness is the remit of the Inspector at this stage, not the Council. The 
decision of Council must be to adopt the Plan, subject to the Main Modifications set out 
by the Inspector, or not to adopt it with reasons.

Merits of adopting the Local Plan 

22.There are a number of positives that would arise from the Council deciding to adopt the 
Local Plan. Having an adopted Local Plan in place provides greater certainty to all 
interested parties, including local communities and businesses, about where new 
development will take place. It gives the Council greater control over the location and 
quality of development, reducing the prospect of speculative development and for 
planning by appeal. Adopting the Local Plan provides greater control to the Council, 
provides certainty and potentially reduces the number of future speculative planning 
applications and costly planning appeals.

23.The climate change provisions of the new Local Plan (see paragraph 18e) would be an 
improvement on the situation without the new Plan. Currently the Council’s planning 
decisions do not require new homes to be any greener than the standards set by the 
Building Regulations 2013. Under the new Plan, Policy DES114 will immediately 
require at least a 40% reduction in the carbon emissions from a code 2013 Building 
Regulations, then the requirement will increase from 31 March 2026 to at least a 50% 
reduction in carbon emissions, and again from 31 March 2030 to a 100% reduction in 
carbon emissions (zero carbon). However, officers acknowledge that the climate 
change provisions of the Plan are stepped over time and do not require zero carbon in 
new developments until 2030. Therefore, some non-zero carbon new development will 
have been built in the intervening years to 2030, which will make the Council’s target 
for a carbon neutral district by 2030 more challenging to meet. On balance, the 
situation will be improved with the adoption of the new Plan (a 40% reduction straight 
away) compared with not adopting the Plan (no improvement over current Building 
Regulations).  

24.The Plan provides for a large number of affordable homes to be built in South 
Oxfordshire. The Plan sets the framework for the delivery of approximately 11,300 new 
affordable homes over the plan period. These will be homes for sale or rent, for those 
whose needs are not met by the market. The affordable housing policy H9 seeks 40% 
of all new homes on qualifying sites to be affordable, and this now includes self-
contained accommodation in the C2 use class such as retirement living. It also makes 
provision for self-build and custom-build, requiring 3% of all homes delivered on the 
strategic allocation sites to be self-build and custom-build plots. 

25. In terms of housing supply, the new allocations in the Plan inject a large amount of new 
supply which will maintain the supply going forward to 2035. Without the new Plan, the 
Core Strategy allocations will start to dwindle through being built out, eventually 
affecting the district’s 5 year housing land supply position. Although under new Plan 
Policy STRAT2 the annual housing requirement figure rises to 900 homes per annum 
(for the period to 2025/26), then 1,120 homes per annum (for 2026/27 to 2031/32) and 
then drops to 1,110 for the final years (2032/33 to 2034/35), this is lower than the 
number of homes built in the last few years in South Oxfordshire, which was 1,361 in 
2018/19 and 1,477 in 2019/20.

4 re-numbered DES10

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



26.There are also wider considerations in favour of adoption beyond the content of the 
Plan. Decision-making in respect of this Plan would remain with the Council. Future 
plan-making should also remain with the Council. Reputational damage would be 
avoided with central government. Shared agreements with other Oxfordshire 
authorities e.g. the funding for infrastructure to support the development in the Plan 
through the Housing & Growth Deal and the Housing and Infrastructure Fund (HIF) 
(which the Council has previously publicly acknowledged its support for) would not be 
jeopardised along with any future funding opportunities. 

27.Having a recently adopted Plan with up to date policies would avoid debate on whether 
a plan or its policies are up to date (important for Council success at appeals). If the 
Plan is adopted swiftly the Council will be able to move on to preparing the next plan 
aligned with the Council’s new Corporate Objectives 2020-2024.

28.With Government reforms to the planning system on the horizon there would be 
advantages to adopting an up-to-date local plan before the system changes to, for 
example, a zoning-based plan (growth, renewal, protection zones) designed to further 
increase the quantity and pace of development. Under the suggested transitional 
arrangements, having a recently adopted Plan would put the Council into a category of 
qualifying for a 42-month period for producing and adopting a new style local plan, 
rather than a 30-month period.   

29.Some neighbourhood plan examinations are currently underway and awaiting the 
outcome of the Local Plan. These can be concluded once the Local Plan is adopted 
(e.g. Wallingford), ensuring that affected neighbourhood areas can start to gain the 
advantages e.g. higher CIL revenue and having a plan with robust policies and 
reasonable longevity. The emerging neighbourhood plans have all been prepared to be 
in general conformity with the Local Plan 2035, not the Core Strategy. If Local Plan 
adoption is delayed, progress on neighbourhood plans currently at examination may be 
affected (timetable slippage, lack of new parent plan). It would also affect the longevity 
of neighbourhood plans: if they are modified and then ‘made’ based on the Core 
Strategy, when a (delayed) Local Plan is adopted at some future point, the Local Plan 
would be the latest plan and could supersede some policies in neighbourhood plans.  

Financial Implications

30.There are no immediate financial implications flowing from the adoption of the Local 
Plan, as they can be funded from within the existing planning policy budget. 

31. If the decision taken is not adopt the Local Plan, there would be potential financial 
implications and risks. Firstly, the Council could be challenged in the High Court and 
exposed to the risk of having to pay the legal costs of third parties. The Council could 
face penalties in terms of powers and functions being removed, with associated loss of 
funding and income streams. The Council could lose out on future funding 
opportunities. Finally, the money and time that has been spent on the Plan since 2014 
(in the region of six million pounds) would have been wasted. This includes the costs of 
staff time, evidence base studies, consultation costs, examination costs and legal 
costs. Preparing a local plan is a significant financial investment for a Council. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Legal Implications

32.The adoption of a Local Plan is governed by s.23 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 and regulation 26 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

33.As the examination process is complete, adoption is the final stage of putting a Local 
Plan in place. This requires confirmation by a meeting of the Full Council [Regulation 
4(1) and (3) of the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000].

34.On adopting a Local Plan, the local planning authority has to make a copy of the Plan, 
an adoption statement and the Sustainability Appraisal publicly available as soon as 
reasonably practical in line with regulations 26 and 35 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

35. It is important to meet the December deadline for a decision on adoption. It is 
reasonable to assume that the Secretary of State would consider the further exercise of 
his powers to intervene in the Plan making process if this deadline is not met.

Risks

36.The risks of taking a decision to adopt the Local Plan are low. The Plan as modified 
has been found sound by the Inspector. It should be noted that, whilst the risk is low, 
there is a six week window for an aggrieved party to challenge the decision to adopt 
the Local Plan. Should this occur, officers will communicate with Councillors as 
appropriate. 

37.The risks of taking a decision not to adopt the Local Plan are high. The SoS has power 
himself to step in and approve the Local Plan, or to pass that decision of approval to 
Oxfordshire County Council. The County Council has previously agreed, in the event of 
an invitation by the Secretary of State, to progress our Local Plan, subject to the 
recovery of its costs5. The consequences of non-adoption are potentially serious and 
wide ranging, not just in respect of planning powers but also in regard to wider 
ramifications for the Council. 

38. It is the view of officers that the risks of non-adoption outweigh any perceived 
disbenefits of adopting the Plan. The Plan was prepared for submission and 
examination two years ago under the previous Council administration. It reflected the 
priorities of the Council at that time rather than the present Council’s priorities. Officers 
acknowledge that some Councillors may not support some parts of the Plan, but it 
should be noted that significant cumulative improvements (for example on tackling 
climate change, masterplanning, strengthened consultation, and sustainable design) 
have been proposed through the Examination in Public and Modifications process, that 
have resulted in an improved Plan than the one that was submitted in March 2019. 

Conclusion

39.The process of preparing the Local Plan has been lengthy, of significant cost, and 
resource intensive. Plan preparation has included substantial community and 

5 There is an extant decision taken by OCC on 11 February 2020 to accept the powers if asked by SoS to 
take over South Oxfordshire’s Local Plan 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



stakeholder engagement. The Inspector has now issued his final Report, and the 
examination process in now formally complete.

40.The Inspector concludes at paragraph 310 of his report, that with recommended main 
modifications, the Local Plan is sound and capable of adoption. As outlined in this 
report, the Council’s options are limited to either adopting the Local Plan with the 
modifications or not adopting the Plan with reasons. A decision to adopt would enable 
the Local Plan to become part of the Council’s development plan and carry full weight 
in the determination of planning applications. It will provide a framework for 
development in the district and allow the Council to move on to the preparation of the 
next Plan. Looking to the future the Council must review the Local Plan within 5 years 
of adoption.

41.Adoption of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan by the Council is officers’ recommended 
course of action. 

Background Papers

 None  

Appendices

 Appendix A – South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2034 submission version from 2019
 Appendix B – Schedule of Main Modifications, November 2020
 Appendix C – Schedule of Minor Modifications, November 2020
 Appendix D – Policies Map, November 2020
 Appendix E – Inspector’s Report, November 2020 
 Appendix F – South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 non- track changes version

  containing Inspector’s Main Modifications and the latest work on the
  Minor Modifications (as a reading aid for information only, latest version,  
  November 2020) 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



Cabinet Report

Report of Head of Finance
Author: Vicky Johnson
Telephone: 01235 422481
Textphone: 18001 01235 422481
E-mail: Vicky.johnson@southandvale.gov.uk 
Wards affected: All
Cabinet member responsible: Leigh Rawlins
Tel: 01189 722565
E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 
To: CABINET on 3 December 2020
To: Council on 10 December 2020

Council tax base 2021/22

Recommendations

That Cabinet recommends Council to:

1. Approve the report of the head of finance for the calculation of the council’s tax base 
and the calculation of the tax base for each parish area for 2021/2022.

2. Agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by South Oxfordshire 
District Council as its council tax base for the year 2021/22 be 59,171.2

3. Agree that, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (England) Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by South Oxfordshire 
District Council as the council tax base for the year 2021/22 for each parish be the 
amount shown against the name of that parish in Appendix 1 of the report of the 
head of finance to Cabinet on 3 December 2020

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to ask Cabinet to recommend the council tax base for 
2021/22 to Council for approval.

Page 36

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Vicky.johnson@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk


Corporate Objectives 

2. The calculation of the tax base is a legal requirement and an essential part of the tax 
setting process which helps to achieve the council’s corporate objectives.

Background

3. Before the council tax can be set by the council, a calculation has to be made of the 
council tax base, which is an estimate of the taxable resources for the district as a 
whole and for each parish area.  

4. The council tax base for the district has to be notified to Oxfordshire County Council 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner by 31 January 2021.  Each parish and town 
council is also notified of the figure for its area.

5. The legislation requires that the council tax base is approved by full council or a non-
executive body with delegated powers.  No such delegation exists, so cabinet is 
therefore asked to recommend to council the schedule set out in Appendix 1 as the 
council tax base for the district as a whole and for each parish area.

Calculation of the tax base

6. The starting point for the calculation is the total number of dwellings and their council 
tax band. 

7. The council then allows for the following information, for each band:

(a) dwellings which will be entirely exempt so no tax is payable (e.g. those occupied 
entirely by students)

(b) dwellings which will attract a 25 per cent reduction (e.g. those with a single adult 
occupier)

(c) dwellings which will attract a 50 per cent reduction (e.g. those where all of the 
adult residents qualify for a reduction)

(d) dwellings which will be treated as being in a lower band because they have been 
adapted for a severely disabled person.  The regulations provide methodology to 
take account of the reduction available to those in band A dwellings

(e) dwellings which will be on the valuation list but which attract discounts or 
disablement relief or are exempt, for only part of the year

8. Each band is then converted into "band D equivalents" by applying the factor laid down 
by legislation.  For example, a band A dwelling is equal to 2/3 of a band D dwelling and 
is therefore multiplied by 2/3 to arrive at the band D equivalent figure, whilst a band H 
dwelling is equal to twice a Band D dwelling and is therefore multiplied by two to arrive 
at the Band D equivalent figure.  All these are then added together to give a total of 
band D equivalents. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



9. A final adjustment is required to allow for non-collection.  The council is required to 
decide what its collection rate is likely to be and apply this to its council tax base.  For 
the 2020/21 tax the council assumed 98 per cent would eventually be collected and it is 
proposed to use 98 per cent again in 2021/22.  

Taxbase for 2021/22

10.Based on the assumptions detailed above the council tax base for 2021/22 is 59,171.2. 

11.Similar calculations are required for each parish in order to calculate the proportion of 
the district's tax base which relates to its area.  A schedule of the tax base for each 
parish is set out in Appendix 1. 

12.To calculate the council tax amounts payable per property band for the council, its 
council tax requirement (i.e. the amount of council tax to be raised) is divided by the 
Band D equivalent (taxbase).  This will be finalised during January and February, 
culminating in the council tax being set by council on 11 February 2021 (this date is 
subject to the council being notified of the major precepting authorities’ council tax 
requirements). 

Financial Implications

13.These are set out in the body of the report.

Legal Implications

14.These are set out in the body of the report.

Risks

15.The council’s methodology for calculating the taxbase involves basing the calculation 
on actual dwellings at a certain point in time, rather than forecasting on potential new 
dwellings that may be built in the future.  Because of this the risk exposure is 
considered to be low.

Background Papers

None

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



Appendix 1

PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL NUMBER PARISH PARISH PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL NUMBER PARISH PARISH
OF TAX TAX OF TAX TAX

DWELLINGS BASE BASE DWELLINGS BASE BASE
2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21

Adwell 14 13.2 13.2 Sandford on Thames 582 488.8 492.7
Aston Rowant 351 434.4 436.7 Shiplake 717 984.2 975.5
Aston Tirrold & Upthorpe 227 267.3 267.6 Shirburn 55 59.8 59.8
Beckley & Stowood 254 281.5 280.2 Sonning Common 1,705 1,696.1 1,652.5
Benson 1,919 1,875.2 1,781.8 South Moreton 132 129.4 129.9
Berinsfield 1,107 670.5 659.0 South Stoke 222 225.7 226.9
Berrick Salome 129 170.0 166.5 Stadhampton 364 359.8 331.0
Binfield Heath 288 329.9 326.3 Stanton St John 189 223.1 223.6
Bix & Assendon 262 336.3 331.3 Stoke Row 277 332.9 333.8
Brightwell Baldwin 83 106.4 106.2 Stoke Talmage 27 33.3 31.3
Brightwell cum Sotwell 632 664.3 658.2 Swyncombe 117 141.2 140.1
Britwell Salome 87 102.9 102.8 Sydenham 141 156.9 163.6
Chalgrove 1,133 1,061.6 1,069.8 Tetsworth 318 327.0 310.4
Checkendon 217 247.7 244.5 Thame 5,697 4,924.8 4,828.6
Chinnor 3,088 2,848.5 2,641.5 Tiddington with Albury 280 267.2 262.8
Cholsey 1,826 1,604.7 1,540.3 Toot Baldon 59 71.3 69.5
Clifton Hampden 254 286.2 285.0 Towersey 183 189.5 186.0
Crowell 47 58.2 56.4 Wallingford 3,786 3,094.1 3,067.2
Crowmarsh 730 706.6 681.6 Warborough 441 502.7 493.6
Cuddesdon & Denton 204 175.0 170.0 Waterperry with Thomley 83 94.8 92.0
Culham 175 185.8 182.5 Waterstock 40 46.9 45.9
Cuxham with Easington 60 61.6 61.9 Watlington 1,238 1,177.7 1,172.8
Didcot 12,959 10,115.8 9,710.6 West Hagbourne 115 122.9 121.7
Dorchester 480 554.1 546.3 Wheatfield 11 14.3 14.6
Drayton St Leonard 118 134.6 131.2 Wheatley 1,933 1,784.9 1,765.4
East Hagbourne 498 511.2 508.9 Whitchurch on Thames 338 407.2 411.7
Elsfield 48 56.0 56.1 Woodcote 1,055 1,049.8 1,039.0
Ewelme 427 374.8 367.3 Woodeaton 29 38.0 38.0
Eye & Dunsden 149 188.2 181.2
Forest Hill with Shotover 417 374.7 373.0 TOTAL 62,857 59,171.2 57,848.5
Garsington 778 697.9 686.9
Goring 1,556 1,736.8 1,712.3
Goring Heath 503 602.4 594.6
Great Haseley 249 262.7 254.1
Great Milton 341 308.8 312.2
Harpsden 159 224.0 220.5
Henley on Thames 6,019 5,909.6 5,828.2
Highmoor 139 171.4 164.2
Holton 163 192.0 189.5
Horspath 621 624.8 616.6
Ipsden 157 169.4 170.2
Kidmore End 535 691.6 682.7
Lewknor 294 310.5 303.5
Little Milton 206 214.0 215.6
Little Wittenham 28 33.9 32.4
Long Wittenham 362 344.8 346.6
Mapledurham 130 132.3 126.9
Marsh Baldon 118 128.3 122.4
Moulsford 218 258.6 250.1
Nettlebed 342 357.3 360.1
Newington 44 56.3 60.7
North Moreton 160 194.4 190.9
Nuffield 221 239.4 240.4
Nuneham Courtenay 103 106.8 101.2
Pishill with Stonor 145 193.8 189.3
Pyrton 92 115.7 115.2
Rotherfield Greys 158 206.9 204.0
Rotherfield Peppard 699 945.3 939.4

PARISH COUNCIL TAX BASES - 2021-22 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



Cabinet Report

Report of Head of Housing and Environment
Author: John Backley
Telephone: 07917 088317
Textphone: 18001 07917 088317
E-mail: john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk 
Wards affected: all
South Cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Rouane
Tel: 07957 287799
E-mail: David.Rouane@southoxon.go.uk 
Vale Cabinet member responsible: Councillor Neil Fawcett
Tel: 07810 482376
E-mail: Neil.Fawcett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
To: CABINET
Dates: South 3 December and Vale 4 December 2020

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 40

Agenda Item 9

mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:David.Rouane@southoxon.go.uk
mailto:Neil.Fawcett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Civil parking enforcement

Recommendations

(a) To support an application by Oxfordshire County Council to the Department for 
Transport for the introduction of a Special Enforcement Area (SEA) and bus lane 
enforcement powers across the districts of Cherwell, South Oxfordshire and Vale 
of White House to provide Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE).

(b) To support the proposal for Oxfordshire County Council to manage CPE and to 
authorise the Head of Housing and Environment in consultation with the head of 
legal and democratic to negotiate and enter into any formal legal agreements 
required between South Oxfordshire District Council/Vale of White Horse District 
Council and Oxfordshire County Council.

(c) (South only) To recommend Council to approve the addition of a new scheme in 
the approved capital programme of £60,000 as the council’s contribution to 
Oxfordshire County Council’s implementation costs, and to approve a revenue 
supplementary estimate of £30,000 in the 2020/21 budget for costs to be incurred 
by the council.

(d) (Vale only) To recommend Council to approve the addition of a new scheme in the 
approved capital programme of £60,000 as the council’s contribution to 
Oxfordshire County Council’s implementation costs, and to approve a revenue 
supplementary estimate of £30,000 in the 2020/21 budget for costs to be incurred 
by the council

Purpose of Report

1. In July 2018, both South and Vale Council meetings agreed in principle to request that 
Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) delegate civil parking enforcement to the districts.  

2. South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils formally approached OCC 
to work jointly to investigate the feasibility of implementing CPE within our districts.  
The scope was broadened to include Cherwell District Council and the county as a 
whole.  CPE is already in place in Oxford City and West Oxfordshire districts.

3. Officers are now seeking approval and finances to support OCC to make a formal 
application to the Department for Transport to implement CPE across South and Vale.

Corporate Objectives 

4.  CPE is a defined project within the Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate Plan 
2020-2024, no.5 ‘Working in partnership’.

5. CPE is a defined project within the South Oxfordshire Corporate Plan 2020-2024 no. 4 
‘Improved economic and community well-being’ 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



Background

6. South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils approached OCC to 
formally consider a CPE application in August 2018 and discussions have been on-
going since then. 

7. OCC approved the submission at its cabinet meeting on 13 October 2020.

8. Officers have carried out briefing sessions open to all South and Vale Councillors on 11 
November 2019 and 20 October 2020.  The questions and answers from the sessions 
are attached as appendix A, A1 and A2.

9. Appendix B is a study by a specialist parking consultant (RTA), commissioned jointly by 
OCC, Cherwell, South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse district councils to 
investigate the feasibility of creating a civil enforcement area across the three districts.  
This extensive study covered all aspects of CPE such as legal context, benefits and 
disbenefits, financial implications, the application process, Traffic Regulation and sign 
and line maintenance requirements and the recommended approach.  The study 
contains appraisals on 15 different scenarios for the introduction of CPE and 
recommends Option N. 

10.Option N is the introduction of CPE with the district councils retaining their off-street 
enforcement using their current external providers (Saba for South and Vale) and OCC 
procuring a contractor for the on-street service.

11.Appendix C is a business case which has been provided by a joint OCC, Cherwell, 
South and Vale council officer group.  The business case reviews the findings and 
summarises the RTA study in Appendix B.  The group jointly supports Option N as the 
preferred scenario.  

12.Oxfordshire is in the final three percent of authorities who are yet to implement CPE, 
there is a risk that implementation will be mandated to us should we choose not to act 
now. Appendix D shows a map of non-CPE districts across the UK. 

13.When making an application for CPE, authorities can either apply to be a CEA (civil 
enforcement area) or a SEA (special enforcement area).  A CEA covers civil parking 
enforcement of waiting and loading restrictions whilst a SEA includes additional powers 
to also enforce dropped kerb obstruction offences.

14.Officers recommend that South and Vale support Oxfordshire County Council to apply 
to become a SEA as this will enable the authority to enforce a wider range of parking 
offences and better meet our duties under the Traffic Management Act 2004 of keeping 
traffic moving on the road network.  This would also ensure continuity across the 
County as Oxford City and West Oxfordshire are both currently managed via SEAs. By 
being able to enforce dropped kerb offences we will also be able to deal with issues 
directly without the need to pass residents to other agencies. 

15.The powers to carry out Civil Bus Lane Enforcement under the Transport Act 2000, 
requires a separate designation order and it is recommended by the Department for 
Transport that applications for a new SEA specify whether powers for Bus Lane 
Enforcement are also required so they can be included.  It is recommended OCC apply 
for these powers to give scope for future enforcement activity if required. 

Page 42

Agenda Item 9



16.Ensuring parking restrictions are adhered to is important to help ensure that congestion 
and road safety are being managed, and that the economies of town centres and high 
streets are supported.  This is not a high priority for the police, who will generally only 
enforce where there is a danger or obstruction being caused. 

17.CPE for on-street parking is already in place for West Oxfordshire (managed by the 
District Council as agents to OCC) and Oxford City (managed by OCC). This has been 
in place for 10 and 23 years respectively.

18.A joint officer group from OCC, Cherwell, Vale, and South Oxfordshire District Councils 
have been working in partnership to explore options and potential business cases for 
implementing CPE, with support from a specialist consultant.  This work has now been 
completed and demonstrates that there is business case for CPE that is financially 
viable (Option N). 

19.South and Vale currently have their own external provider for off street parking 
enforcement (Saba) and OCC has an existing enforcement contract to manage on-
street restrictions in Oxford.  In the short term, utilisation of these existing contracts to 
provide a service is preferable, with a longer-term ambition of a single parking contract 
across Oxfordshire. This is subject to legal and procurement review with district 
support. 

20.Officers are now seeking formal approval to continue to progress and implement on 
street CPE as set out in this paper.

Risks and opportunities

21.This project is considered to support later stages of the Covid-19 ‘recovery’ efforts, in a 
variety of ways.  

  support in helping to ensure cycling and bus corridors are free from obstructions 
making journeys more attractive.  

  enable bus links within new developments to be better managed.  
  support off-street parking and trips to shops and amenities through co-ordinated 

management of on-street restrictions.  Close working between OCC and district 
councils will be required on duration and pricing strategy for on-street parking. 

22. In the longer term it is believed that a single parking service across Oxfordshire 
covering both on and off-street parking is likely to be the most effective approach. 
However, there are a number of challenges involved in this, and it will not be feasible 
during the initial phases of this project.  The joint OCC/district officer group will continue 
to explore potential options and timings.  Particular considerations are existing 
contractual arrangements and assumptions within budgets regarding income.

23.There will be costs associated with set up and the running of CPE.  However, if the 
existing OCC enforcement contract can be used, in particular the ‘back office’ systems, 
and some on-street pay and display (P&D) bays can be introduced to provide 
additional revenue, then it is expected an on-street enforcement service can be 
provided at a cost neutral position.  As OCC will be responsible for managing the on-
street service this removes the financial risk from the district councils.

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



Financial Implications

24.The anticipated income and expenditure in running the CPE service in South, Vale and 
Cherwell are set out in the table below. This assumes OCC manage CPE on street and 
South and Vale continue to manage off street responsibilities.

25.A growing deficit is reported as the cost of a penalty charge notice (i.e. income) is fixed 
by the Department for Transport whilst the model used builds in a three percent 
inflationary factor for operating costs which is predominantly made up of staffing costs. 
Year 1 shows a greater deficit due to the inclusion of start-up expenditure.

26.To mitigate the estimated deficit of £56,087 over the initial five years of the scheme 
District and OCC officers have identified some potential locations which are suitable for 
the introduction of on-street P&D parking.  Officers estimate that after covering 
operational costs and expenditure, the net revenue from this proposal would recover an 
average of £75,700 per annum over the three districts (South, Vale and Cherwell), 
which equates to £378,500 over five years.  Penalty Charges from potential future bus 
lane fines has not been included and would be in addition.

27.To achieve this a commitment of implementing a minimum of 168 on-street parking 
charges at locations including (but not limited to) Banbury, Bicester, Abingdon and 
Wallingford is required.  In addition to the finance aspect, it is expected to bring wider 
benefits to local businesses in managing the demand for parking.  OCC will decide 
where to install ticket machines basing their decision on dialogue and intelligence.

28.This is a joint project between the Districts and OCC for the benefit of our residents, 
and as such it is proposed setup costs would be distributed between the Districts and 
OCC.  It is proposed that all the costs and income of operating the scheme reside with 
the managing authority, OCC.  Whilst there is a risk, such an approach is deemed 
appropriate to reward and incentivise the enforcing authority.  The proposed 
distribution of set up costs between authorities is proposed as below: 

Table 1  Set-up costs for CPE
Item Cost Cost owner 
Rectifying defects to signs and lines £250,000 OCC 
Updating appeals software for new areas £20,000 South, Vale 

and Cherwell
Publicity and advertising costs £60,000 South, Vale 

and Cherwell 
Start-up costs for new pay and display bays £100,000 South, Vale 

and Cherwell

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 TOTAL 
Estimated Annual Income  £146,650 £168,045 £168,045 £168,045 £168,045 £818,830 

Estimated Annual Operating Costs £179,285 £166,275 £171,263 £176,401 £181,693 £874,917 
            

Surplus (Deficit)  (£32,635) £1,770 (£3,218) (£8,356) (£13,648) (£56,087) 
       

 

Surplus (Deficit) after P&D income 
 

£43,065 
 

£77,470 
 

£72,482 
 

£67,344 
 

£62,052 
 

£322,413 

Page 44

Agenda Item 9



  
 Allocation of total setup costs of £430,000.

 OCC – £250,000
 Cherwell, Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire – £60,000 per district 

29.Officers have considered the use Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to fund the 
payment to OCC.  However, this is not funding the provision, improvement, 
replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure that comprise the only 
acceptable uses of CIL monies.    

30.The level of PCNs (penalty charge notices) is set by legislation (and there are higher 
and lower amounts depending on the infringement £70 reduced to £50 and £60 
reduced to £40)).  The PCNs levels are slightly lower than the current ECN levels at 
Vale (£80 reduced to £40) and at South (£70 reduced to £35 and £50 reduced to £25).  
The lower levels of PCNs will reduce the income slightly but experience from other 
local authorities show that this reduction in income from ‘fines’ is largely compensated 
by increased level of usage of car parks and so an increase in Pay and Display 
income, as enforcement on-street is introduced. Overall, therefore, a loss in income to 
the councils from this change is not anticipated.

31.Additional in year funding of £90,000 is required at both councils.  Councils are 
recommended to approve an addition to the capital programme (at South the approved 
capital budget) of £60,000 per council as a contribution to OCC’s implementation costs.  
This will be funded from capital receipts.  Council is also recommended to agree to a 
revenue supplementary estimate of £30,000 per council to fund internal set up costs.  
This will be funded from revenue reserves.  

32. It should be noted that the allocations would be based on actual costs, therefore the 
final contribution of £60,000 to OCC per council may be less than the estimates within 
this report. OCC commit that the district councils would not be requested to contribute 
further should costs go over the estimates provided.

33.South and Vale will be required to make new parking orders for their off-street car 
parks to align with the CPE enforcement regime on-street.  Officers estimate a cost of 
£30,000 for each council to amend the legal orders, change tariff boards and update 
back office processing systems.   

34. It is anticipated OCC’s £250,000 contribution will be funded from the ‘Bus Journey 
Time Improvement Fund’ as this allows for a fully enforceable network contributing to 
reducing congestion and obstructions to bus services on the highway.

35.To note also that OCC are obliged under the Road Traffic Management Act to use any 
surplus income made from on-street parking restrictions to improve the county 
highways.

36.Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For South, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2020 showed that the council was due to receive £2.2 million less in revenue funding 
than it planned to spend in 2020/21 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  Following the revised budget agreed in October, this 
has increased to £3.2 million.  For Vale, the position reflected in the council’s medium-

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 2020 showed that 
the council was not required to use reserves to set a balanced budget for 2020/21.  
However, this has changed following the revised budget agreed in October.  

37.This funding gap at both councils was predicted to increase to over £6 million per 
council per annum by 2024/25.   As there remains no certainty on future local 
government funding, following the announcement of a one-year spending review by 
government, and as the long-term financial consequences of the Coronavirus 
pandemic remain unknown, this gap could increase further. Every financial decision 
made needs to be cognisance of the need to eliminate this funding gap in future years.  

Staff Implications

38.The proposed model assumes continuation of existing operations by South and Vale 
for enforcement of their own off-street car parks with the expectation this would 
continue while contracts end over the next five years.  (The Saba contract is due to 
expire in July 2025).  During this period councils will work together to consider options 
to align on and off-street enforcement as existing enforcement contracts end. 

39.OCC has a related project to digitise their TRO records (traffic regulation orders which 
govern the signs and lines on-street).  This will support efficient operation of CPE.  Due 
to the wider benefits this brings to OCC, and their intention of progressing this 
regardless of the decision around CPE, the costs of implementation have been 
excluded from the CPE business case modelling and will be funded from existing OCC 
Highway Systems and Records budgets.  OCC estimate the cost of digitisation of 
records will be a cost of £30,000 and an annual software licence fee of £18,000 per 
annum.

40.As part of the service delivery, OCC will be responsible for considering any transfer of 
staff who are carrying out any current on-street parking enforcement either by Thames 
Valley Police or town councils.

Equalities Implications

41.No equalities implications have been identified through the development of this 
proposal.

Legal Implications

42.The arrangement to support OCC in the application for CPE and the set-up costs will 
require an agreement between South and OCC and Vale and OCC to include a one off 
contribution of up to £60,000 from each council.

43.Legal will be required to review the current off-street car park operations by the districts 
as there will be changes to the car park orders to allow the districts to enforce the off 
street car parks using updated legislation which is linked to CPE on-street.

Indicative Programme 

44. If cabinet approval to progress the project is agreed by all four authorities (Cherwell, 
South Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse and OCC), then the proposed indicative key 
dates to implementation is as below: 

Page 46

Agenda Item 9



MILESTONE DATE 

Draft application developed for the introduction of a SEA in districts. Oct 20-Dec 20
Comms Plan agreed with District Councils Dec 20 
Commencement of review of signs, lines and TROs Jan 21-Aug 21 
Commencement of the Statutory Consultation process Feb 21-April 21 
Application submitted to the DfT April 21 
DfT review & parliamentary process  April 21-Nov 21 
Establishment of formal ‘back office’  July 21-Nov 21 
Formal comms roll out to wider stakeholders & community groups July 21-Nov 21 
Designation Order created and CPE brought into effect Nov 21 

Conclusion

45.The joint OCC, Cherwell, South and Vale officer group have considered the findings of 
the specialist consultant study and support the recommendation of Option N, that is for 
OCC to apply to the DfT for a Special Enforcement Area covering South Vale and 
Cherwell and that the service is managed in-house by OCC using an external 
contractor.

Appendices
 Appendix A, questions and answers from all councillor briefing 20 October 2020
 Appendix B RTA feasibility study May 2020
 Appendix C CPE business case
 Appendix D map of Local authorities with CPE

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



1 of 4

Appendix A1  CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT MEETING 
21 OCTOBER 2020 by ‘Teams’

Officers
Liz Hayden (S&V)               LH
John Backley (S&V)           JB
Suzanne Malcom(S&V)      SM
Adrian Lear (S&V)            AL
Emma Gover (S&V)            EG
Keith Stenning (OCC)  KS
Phil Whitfield (OCC)            PW
James Whiting (OCC)  JM
Cllrs
Ken Arlett                           KA                         Simon Howell                   SH
David Barthlomew           DB                          Alison Jenner                   AJ
Ron Batstone                     RB                          Lynn Lloyd                       LL
Eric Batts           EB                          Diana Lugova                   DL
Nathan Boyd                      NB                         Andrea Powell                  AP
San Casey - Rerhaye        SCR                    Judy Roberts                    JR
Rob Johnston           RJ                          David Rouane                  DR
Andrew Crawford           AC                          Val Shaw                         VS 
Neil Fawcett                      NF                          Anne – Marie Simpson    AMS
Andy Foulsham           AF                          Emily Smith                      ES
Hayleigh Gascoigne           HG                          Bethia Thomas                BT
Debby Hallett                     DH                          Elaine Ware                     EW
Jenny Hannaby                 JH                           Ian White                          IW
Celia Wilson                     CW
George Levy                      GL                           Ian Snowdon                  IS

It is not about nuisance parking or at this stage residential parking. Just about 
enforcing law as it stands.

From/Question/Comments   Response / Comments
EW
Provide set up costs

Will the scheme become 
self-financing

Each council £60,000 capped. Signs and lines - 
£250,000 paid by OCC.  £430,000 set up charge

Aim will be to break even

HG  
Why so late with the timing 
is it not ready now?

Down to timetabling no one has been holding up the 
project Have worked timetable through together and 
works Helpful for county to go first 

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



2 of 4

How will work in practice? On street managed by County Managed team will be 
communicated nearer the time. Contract will be 
managed by contractor on ground Team to deal with 
appeals and manage contractors

Dedicated email address which you can report and web 
page 

GL

How many parking 
attendants allocated and 
are they up for discussion?

Can they clamp vehicles, 
and do they still go around 
in little motor bikes in 
Oxford?

Use local intelligence to inform where hot spots are very 
much starting from a point and building from that 

Oxford use uniformed attendants, electric cars and scan 
bike that has ANPR reader on. No authorities can clamp 
but they can tow away persistent offenders. Set up and 
use data base for hot spots 

CW

Is this going to be 
uniformed county wide or 
will be level of control 
eventually?

How much will it cost me?

How long before getting 
local control if need extra 
resource ?

Keen to talk with local parish and town council to find 
where hot spots are.
Use local agency agreements for the future

Scheme will be £430,000 each district £60,000 county 
250k should become self-funding

Could be bought through contractor 

AC

60 K is one off payment can 
that be spread or 
capitalised ?

If scheme makes positive 
revenue or losses would the 
council have the share or 
help with loss? 

Takes best financial advice from section 151 officer 

County council put extra money back into line painting 
etc won’t expect to top up loss

EW

Any additional costs to pay 
and display on street 
parking?

Will feasibility study be 
available to councillors and 
web site - 

All factored into figures

Appendix to cabinet report

SCR

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



3 of 4

Where nuisance parking 
can you paint yellow lines?

Covered in document there is an application you can 
follow need community backing to support it

Once see lines being enforced could be higher 
proportion asking

JH

On street parking meters for 
Wantage and Faringdon 

Need additional assists had suggestions from officers at 
local council to make sure sights are auditable. 
Determine exact locations over next few months 
On street parking always more expensive and will stay 
same 

With dangerous parking on 
street corners could we 
have the ability to remove 

For persistent invaders can tow away if dangerous. If 
happening in particular are need to revenue

BJ

Some yellow lines are now 
redundant -they must be 
removed

Many people park outside 
and bus into oxford many 
more yellow lines are 
needed

Period of adjustment over 3 or 4 months this teases out 
any issues. Will review all locations

CW

People with no drive or 
parking be worse off will 
they have concession

Usually there for safety or keep traffic moving. Could be 
opportunity to review will be adjustment of people’s 
behaviour.

CW

Is it just county council web 
sites people report incidents 
on or local

We would all have links between web sites

G L

Is CCTV used to monitor 
parking? 

Will these deal with curb 
parking? 

It’s used for intelligence and not enforcement. 

National consultation out at moment type “footway 
parking consultation” can go online: All can respond to it. 
If restriction there already can enforce (link below)

IS

Page 50

Agenda Item 9



4 of 4

Dangerous parking, could 
we have the ability to 
remove dangerously parked 
vehicles

If dangerous can tow. If areas with on going issues can 
review what signs they have present 

CW

Remind us which web site it 
is 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/managing-
pavement-parking/pavement-parking-options-for-change

Page 51

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/managing-pavement-parking/pavement-parking-options-for-change
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/managing-pavement-parking/pavement-parking-options-for-change


Appendix A2    CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT PRESENTATION BY OXFORDSHIRE 
COUNY COUNCIL

Monday 11 November 2019

Officers: 

Liz Hayden, John Backley, South and Vale

Rikke Hansen, OCC

Question/comment Response/comment

Project group (S, V, Cherwell, OCC and West) meeting end 
November to consider the recommendations from the feasibility 
study

Why include West Oxon DC 
when already CPE?

Because we can use their experience to help other councils

Timescales DfT has said they will only consider one more application (having 
had City and West already).

Also DfT say they will only consider the application once Brexit is 
sorted out.

We will need four formal decisions from South, Vale, Cherwell and 
OCC administrations to all agree to start the process and from that 
moment CPE will be between 18 months and two years to 
implement.

Agreed to set out the indicative timetable and note the lead 
organisation for each step.

Formal decisions taken by X/X/20
Review TROs aim to complete by
……………….

Have we talked to other 
councils about their 
experience?

The consultant we are using (RTA Associates) has experience of 
helping over 100 councils apply for and implement CPE.  It uses 
information gathered over time to produce average statistics applied 
in the model

What is the “model”? A financial analysis of the cost of enforcement and the back-office 
processing to see if the income covers the expenditure.  This is for 
both the set up/one off costs and the revenue/on-going costs

Can we change the model? We can adapt the model, during implementation as long as the costs 
allow

What kind of costs are we 
talking about?

We are yet to receive a final copy of the report, so we are not able to 
offer exact figures at this stage.  We anticipate that this information 
will be available after Christmas.

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



Previous studies have 
shown that the set-up cost is 
about £250,000 per council

Yes, that is the right kind of ‘ball park’ figure that we are talking 
about

CPE is not about making money, the reason to implement it is to 
improve the traffic circulation

Lot of yellow lines are in the 
wrong place or don’t exist.  
Will CPE deal with making 
sure they are correct

As part of the implementation process, OCC will initially digitise the 
TRO (Traffic Regulation Orders), as they are on paper now.  If there 
are any obvious omissions or errors, we can put them right as part of 
CPE but the exercise will not look at every TRO to see if it is correct 
or not

The town councils are 
looking at parking strategies 
now, so we shouldn’t try to 
get all the signs and lines 
correct, just implement as 
the restrictions are at 
present

Generally agreed 

We will get a lot of 
complaints from residents 
who will say ‘I have parked 
here for years’ without 
paying 

Yes, we will need a  clear programme of communication and 
education when we first implement the scheme.  And in the first few 
weeks we will issue just warning notices

Why don’t we put something 
in with the council tax to 
explain what we are doing 
with CPE

To consider this.   CPE will need to have various Comms that will 
include formal consultation and need to agree what format this will 
take

What if Cherwell say ‘no’ Dft articulate that we cannot  go forward unless all four councils 
agree (S, V, OCC and Cherwell)

County councillors can use 
their own funds (Priority 
fund??) to pay for yellow 
lines if they decided to
What are the timescales? Officers will circulate an indicative timeline to highlight the phases of 

the project once all agreed including the organisation responsible at 
each stage

The enforcement of yellow 
lines is still a TVP 
responsibility at the 
moment, but they don’t have 
sufficient  resources to 
prioritise this work i.e. based 
on risk
We need not just to consult 
residents but engage with 
them in the process
CPE should be simple to 
administer.  Henley TC carry 
out management of on-
street and permits in Henley 
(on behalf of OCC) and it 
works well and is cost 

CPE will take on this permit and on-street enforcement from Henley 
and Abingdon TC.

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



neutral.  Abingdon Town 
Council do similar
How do City council get 
away with making so much 
money from parking

We are not permitted to set out to make a surplus and councils that 
have done so  have been prosecuted.  We need to make sure we 
carry out the project legally.  Remember that off street and on street 
accounts are kept totally separately when CPE is implemented.  ie 
we differentiate between PCN income and car park fees

Would it be easier to 
introduce residents parking 
schemes after CPE is 
complete

Yes as more likely they will be managed and enforced properly 
under CPE but that will stay with OCC.  Just as present any new 
lines or new areas of on-street permit parking will be the 
responsibility of OCC

Generally agreed we need 
to get CPE up and running 
to enforce the lines as they 
are and then we will see 
what the behaviour of the 
public is and what 
displacement there is to 
decide if the lines and 
permits places are correct or 
not

Yes, we shouldn‘t specifically worry if yellow lines are wrong (unless 
quick and easy to change or if there are other strong traffic 
management reasons to change), just need to get it going. Need to 
use resources as soon as possible

If residents ask what we are 
doing, then we are carrying 
out a feasibility study.  

We have formed a cross county working group (Cherwell, OCC, 
South, Vale) and have commissioned a feasibility study to consider 
the viability of the scheme.  The next step will be for the four local 
authorities to consider the report and take a decision as to whether 
they wish to adopt the powers.

We envisage that decisions will be made by 31 March 2020 
The timelines need to say 
who is responsible for what 
so that we are clear that 
South and Vale are not 
holding up the process

Yes, timelines to be put in InFocus

The upfront capital costs 
have always been a 
consideration when deciding 
whether or not to implement 
CPE.

The paper copies of the TROs need to be digitised for DfT to accept 
the application

Should we test the DfT to 
see if they will accept the 
digitisation of TROs over 
time rather than all at the 
start

Agreed we should challenge the DfT to accept digitisation over time 
if they want CPE to be implemented. 

Comms is key part of this project.  Officers will aim to update Cllrs 
after Christmas and if the councils decide to implement we will 
continue to communicate progress.  

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



RTA Associates Ltd Page 1 April 2020 

 
 

Civil Parking Enforcement 
Feasibility Study Report 

 
for 

 
Oxfordshire County Council 

 
Cherwell District Council 

 
South Oxfordshire District 

Council 
 

and 
 

Vale of White Horse District 
Council 

 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
 
RTA Associates Ltd   
Groesynyd House 
1 Cwrt Y Groes 
Tyn Y Groes 
Conwy 
LL32 8TZ 
April 2020 

 
 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



RTA Associates Ltd Page 2 April 2020 

Civil Parking Enforcement 
Feasibility Study Report 

 
Contents 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 5 

2 Introduction ................................................................................................................ 15 

3 Policy Issues .............................................................................................................. 18 
Management Issues ........................................................................................... 18 
Geographic area ................................................................................................. 19 
Police Relations .................................................................................................. 19 
Relationship to Traffic Penalty Tribunal .............................................................. 20 
Contractual Arrangements .................................................................................. 21 
Parking Charges ................................................................................................. 22 
Clamping and Removals .................................................................................... 23 
Project Implementation ....................................................................................... 24 
Consultation........................................................................................................ 26 
DFT:  CEA/SEA Application................................................................................ 27 
Public Interaction ................................................................................................ 28 

4 TRO Review ............................................................................................................... 29 
Extent of Review ................................................................................................. 29 

5 The Financial Balance ................................................................................................ 30 
The Financial Model ........................................................................................... 30 
Model Results ..................................................................................................... 34 
Financial Conclusions ......................................................................................... 36 

6 Other Issues ............................................................................................................... 37 
The I.T. Requirements ........................................................................................ 37 
Staff Training ...................................................................................................... 38 
Key Decisions ..................................................................................................... 40 

7 Key Conclusions......................................................................................................... 40 

8 Main Recommendations ............................................................................................. 41 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



RTA Associates Ltd Page 3 April 2020 

APPENDICES TO MAIN REPORT 

APPENDIX A  

APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX C  

APPENDIX D  

APPENDIX E  

APPENDIX F  

APPENDIX G  

APPENDIX H  

APPENDIX J 

APPENDIX K  

APPENDIX L 

APPENDIX N 

Service provision Options  

Project plan for Implementation 

The Financial Model – Diagram and Notes 

The Summary of the 3 individual Base Models all in house at a 

£70/£50 PCN. (D, D1 and D2). ON and Off street combined 

service. 

The Summary of the 3 individual Models with all services 

externalised using current contract rates (E, E1 and E2). ON and 

Off street combined service. 

The Summary of the joint SODC and VWHDC Models with 

all services in house (F) or externalised (F1) using current 

contract rates and (F2) using industry rates. ON and Off street 

combined service. 

The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using current contract rates. (G). ON and Off street 

combined service. 

The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using industry average contract rates. (H). ON and Off 

street combined service. 

The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using current contract rates. (J). ON street only services. 

The FULL joint model for all 3 Districts, External service provision 

using industry average contract rates. (K). ON street only services. 

APPENDIX K; with 40% dual role parking and environment 

enforcement and administration. 

The FULL joint model for all 3 Districts, External service provision 

using current Oxford City rates with central management by 

Oxfordshire County Council (N). ON street only services. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 

RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 4 - April 2020 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS USED 

ACPO Association of Chief Police Officers 
CDC Cherwell District Council 
CEA Civil Enforcement Area 
CEO Civil Enforcement Officer 
CPU Central Processing Unit 
DFT Department for Transport 
CPE Civil Parking Enforcement 
DVLA Driver Vehicle Licensing Agency 
ECN Excess Charge Notice 
FPN Fixed Penalty Notice 
GIS Geographic Information System  
HHCT Hand Held Computer Terminals 
NIP Notice of Intended Prosecution 
TPT Traffic Penalty Tribunal 
NTO Notice to Owner 
OCC Oxfordshire County Council 
P&D Pay and Display 
PCN Penalty Charge Notice 
PPA Permitted Parking Area  
RTRA Road Traffic Regulation Act (1984) 
SEA Special Enforcement Area  
SODC  South Oxfordshire District Council 
TEC Traffic Enforcement Centre (County Court) 
TMA Traffic Management Act 2004 
TRO Traffic Regulation Order 
TVP Thames Valley Police 
VEL Vehicle Excise Licence 
VWHDC Vale of White Horse District Council 

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 

RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 5 - April 2020 

Oxfordshire County Council 
Civil Parking Enforcement 

Study Report 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1  This Study was jointly commissioned by Oxfordshire County Council 
(OCC), Cherwell District Council (CDC), South Oxfordshire District Council 
(SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC). The study is to 
investigate the feasibility of creating a Civil Enforcement Area and Special 
Enforcement Area (CEA/SEA) across the whole of the 3 Districts of Cherwell, 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse administrative areas and the 
resulting financial viability of such a step. A CEA/SEA is an area in which 
parking contraventions are dealt with under civil procedures, using the powers 
of the Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA 2004). The CEA/SEA boundaries in 
each District are consistent with each other, where the CEA for example, 
controls restricted parking such as double and single yellow lines and the SEA 
for example, controls permitted parking such as disabled bays and limited 
waiting bays. 

1.2     This study contains appraisals on the options available to the Councils. 

1.3     Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) transfers the responsibility for enforcing 
parking restrictions from the police to civil enforcement officers employed by or 
authorised by local authorities.  

1.4     A Civil Enforcement Area (CEA) allows local authorities to enforce 
specified parking contraventions under civil law (the police continue to have 
responsibility for enforcing endorsable and most types of moving traffic 
offences).  

1.5     Where a Special Enforcement Area (SEA) is also created, two additional 
offences of double parking and parking at dropped footways can also be 
enforced by the local authority. 

1.6      In areas that are not designated CEA/SEA, the contraventions remain 
criminal and the police continue to have responsibility for enforcement. 

1.7     Within a CEA/SEA, the income from the on street penalty charge notices 
(PCN) issued is retained by the Highway Authority, to be used to help fund the 
scheme. On-street and off street PCN surpluses are ring-fenced under Section 
55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 for certain highway related matters. 
The on and off street accounts are to be kept separate and monies raised off 
street are retained by the District Council with off street surpluses to be used to 
maintain existing or provide new off street parking places.  

1.8 The Districts could be responsible, collectively or individually, for all of these 
matters, on street, as agents to OCC and retain direct responsibility for off 
street matters. The issue to be investigated in this study is whether or not CPE 
is a viable power to be acquired and the implications of doing so should OCC 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 6 - April 2020 

decide to proceed in any or all of the 3 Districts. 

1.9 This report has been written to provide business cases with a five year 
outlook for several options that are available to the Councils should the 
decision to proceed with CPE be taken. 

1.10 There are numerous benefits to introducing CPE. These include taking 
control of where, when and how the parking in the Districts is controlled. 
Whether OCC are managing the CPE service, or the Districts as agents to 
OCC, the restrictions can be enforced wherever and whenever they are needed 
on the highway creating a very flexible service provision that can react to 
requests for assistance, special events and the undertaking of evening and 
weekend enforcement where deemed necessary. This flexibility allows OCC to 
provide a responsive service to fulfil the traffic management requirements 
provided by CPE to “improve traffic flows”. Currently OCC still rely on Police 
enforcement on the highway within these Districts. 

1.11 A shared service provides much more flexibility in responding to 
demands for enforcement and a much more resilient service overall. 

1.12 It is important to realise that the figures given in the financial analysis 
are marginal figures for the on street element, showing the impact of CPE on 
current on street budgets and are not full cost models. Where on and off street 
services have been combined the off street figures are full cost as the current 
costs have not been provided. This is so that the relative costs for on street can 
be determined when making decisions on the way forward. 

1.13  In setting up and operating CPE in County it has to be remembered 
that the on street operation would be set up from no current in house service in 
the 3 Districts and a very limited enforcement service provided by the Police 
through PCSO’s. This would include the provision of the enforcement and 
administration services and would also include a full Traffic Regulation Order 
review and the costs of making all the signs and lines legally enforceable. This 
is not the case for the off street car parks as these are already enforced under 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and the signs and lines in the car parks 
would only need minor amendments to convert to CPE. 

1.14 The off street finances are not part of this report although the 
introduction of CPE will impact on the current off street service provision and 
accounts. So that the Councils can fully appreciate the impact to budgets of the 
implementation of CPE on street, every business case shows the split in costs 
between on and off street. It is estimated that the implementation of on and off 
street services under CPE, should all 3 districts go live together, could cost 
around £836,000 for a centralised external service based on industry rates 
(Appendix H). This includes an estimated £690,000 to cover remedial works 
and the review of TROs at £510,000 and the cost of a TRO survey and 
digitisation of the TROs at £180,000. This can be minimised by centralising just 
the on street (Appendix N) and extending the current Oxford City service where 
set up costs would reduce to £773,000 which is considered the best option as 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 7 - April 2020 

the model based on current rates (Appendix J) would cost £843,000 to set up. 
It is assumed that ongoing signs and lines maintenance will be covered by the 
civil parking enforcement budget. 

1.15 The 5 year business plan (Appendix N), has been built using the 
current outsourced enforcement service provision and an in house 
administration service as used for Oxford City on street. The business model 
covers all three Districts using a centralised service managed by OCC. This 
business case has been provided such that OCC would proceed with the 
introduction of on street CPE separate to the current off street functions. The 
off street functions currently managed under the RTRA 1984, would also 
automatically come under CPE but would be managed and provided by the 
Districts. Business case N is separate to the current financial position at Oxford 
City so as to show the potential impact of CPE. 

1.16 The general conclusion reached for the new on street shared service 
across the 3 DC’s using the current Oxford City contract was that although the 
creation of a Civil Enforcement Area and Special Enforcement Area is not 
showing as operationally financially viable with an average annual deficit of 
£7,600 this model shows far greater cost effectiveness than any of the other 
scenarios that have been modelled. The current Oxford City service works well 
and is well placed to undertake and manage on street CPE functions for the 
County Council without the need for additional staff resources. 

1.17 Bearing in mind the above comments regarding a marginal model, the 
general conclusion reached is that the creation of a Civil Enforcement Area and 
Special Enforcement Area can be almost operationally financially viable, on 
street, within the three Districts covered in this report. Based on the current off 
street parking provision across the District, any on street enforcement of 
parking restrictions may move the majority of illegally parked vehicles to the off 
street areas that are available. With the Police withdrawing support for the 
traffic warden service, it is operationally desirable to adopt the CPE powers.  

1.18 There will be less of an impact of CPE on the current off street 
operation as this is a simple change in current enforcement and administration 
practices. All car parks in the 3 Districts are currently enforced and 
administered through contractors and this will remain the case initially. Actual 
costs were part provided and these have been interpreted and used in the 
“current cost” models. 

1.19 The main savings and cost efficiencies of using the contracted out 
option are in the ongoing cost of labour supply and the initial set up costs which 
the contractor will spread out within their rates over the 5 year contract. 
Appendix A gives a briefing note on the merits or otherwise of contracting out. 
For OCC this is the most cost effective solution to achieve best value and the 
flexibility to provide an on street parking service while undertaking CPE should 
the functions be retained solely by OCC. OCC managing CPE within the 
Districts realises the most savings.  

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 8 - April 2020 

1.20 It is to be noted that should OCC simply adopt the current off street 
contract rates for their on street element it is estimated that this will cost an 
estimated £48,000 per annum more than procuring a new on street only 
contact. (Appendices J and K refer). Using the current Oxford City contract (N) 
reduces set up costs by a further £22,000 over J. This process would be 
subject to a full legal review of the procurement process. 

1.21 To offset any potential on street deficits it is recommended that the 
County Council and the Districts consider the introduction of extra paid for on 
street parking in locations where they serve local amenities and traffic 
congestion and lack of turnover of spaces is prevalent. From experience the 
potential income streams across the Districts from a minimal number of 
schemes could be significant and should cover the deficits incurred through 
CPE. 

1.22 The CEA and SEA applications must include those off-street car parks 
currently enforced by the Districts, Town and Parish Councils under the 1984 
RTRA, in order to provide a uniform enforcement capability in all parking areas 
and to obtain full benefits of the economies of scale. 

1.23 If a decision is taken to adopt the powers, then Thames Valley Police 
will support the principle of a CEA/SEA which covers the whole of the 3 
Districts administrative areas, and they will cooperate with the handover of the 
powers in an agreed manner. Their support is paramount to the success of an 
application to the Department for Transport (DfT) for the powers.  The Police 
traffic warden force has declined in recent years and currently there are no 
traffic wardens enforcing on street parking which is now undertaken 
sporadically by police officers and community support officers if at all. This 
change is indicative of the reduced commitment which the Police can provide to 
traffic related matters.  

1.24 To acquire the powers, OCC will have to formally apply to the DfT on 
behalf of the 3 Districts for a designation order which decriminalises parking 
enforcement across the whole of the administrative area of each of the 
individual Districts.  From the date set in the designation order, the Police will 
be unable to enforce the majority of parking related offences, and the County 
Council must be ready to undertake the responsibilities.  The formal application 
element of the project is estimated to take around 8 to 12 months to complete, 
with the DfT requiring a minimum of 6 months to process the application from 
date of receipt. The DfT currently only accept applications in April and October 
each year although this may be subject to change due to the current pressures 
on Parliamentary processes and it is advised to contact the DfT direct once a 
decision on CPE has been made. 

1.25 If OCC and the Districts adopt the responsibilities, they will be in a 
position to enforce both on and off-street parking in a coordinated, 
comprehensive manner which for the first time, will provide a controlled 
approach for the control of public car parking in the 3 Districts. If it was agreed 
that any of the Districts would undertake or manage the on street enforcement 

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 9 - April 2020 

or administration on behalf of OCC then an agency agreement would be 
required. 

1.26 Undertaking CPE is in line with Government policies for restraint over 
the growth of traffic in urban areas, and it complements other Government 
measures such as the encouragement of the use of public transport, the 
restraint of commuter-based parking and the consideration of workplace 
charging. In a “carrot and stick” approach, better parking enforcement is an 
effective deterrent to the growth in traffic. Decriminalisation of parking 
enforcement will help achieve these objectives and will encourage more use of 
the off street parking facilities available.  

1.27  The Government's view is that CPE is a positive contribution to traffic 
management, based upon research work carried out by the Transport 
Research Laboratory. 

1.28 The main benefits of acquiring the powers as detailed in this report are: 
 

 A coordinated parking enforcement service would be established, 
covering on and off-street parking in each District; 

 
 Improved compliance will be seen in permitted parking spaces; 

 
 Growth in demand for vehicular access, in particular to the main 

district centres would be better managed; 
 

 The design of future parking schemes such as resident permit 
schemes, for which there is demand, could be undertaken in the 
knowledge that parking controls would be enforced by the Districts 
as agents or the County Council decided; 

 
 Overall improved environmental conditions, including safer traffic 

conditions, and less pollution would result from less illegal parking, 
fewer cars and better circulation; 

 
 Parking enforcement would become more locally accountable and 

adaptable; 
 

 Police resources, if any, currently used to manage parking would 
be freed up to be diverted to other purposes. 

 

1.29 The question can be asked if there is not a simpler way of achieving these 
benefits.  The 1984 Road Traffic Regulation Act allows authorities to enforce permitted 
on-street parking places; however, it does not allow them to enforce the adjacent 
waiting restrictions.  Unless enforcement is applied in a uniform manner across a 
geographic area, there is a risk of displacement of parked vehicles, causing other, more 
serious problems.  Consequently, the only way to achieve overall enforcement in an 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 10 - April 2020 

area is to establish a Civil Enforcement Area and Special Enforcement Area, as defined 
in the Traffic Management Act 2004, and possibly for Districts to act as agents to the 
County Council to take responsibility for all non-endorsable parking contraventions in 
that area. 

1.30 It is the view of the consultants that civil parking enforcement is 
operationally desirable but only if the set-up costs can be covered through 
alternative funding streams, so the running of the project becomes self-
financing. In all cases the aim of the on street scheme should be cost neutral to 
the County Council in the long term. To recoup set up costs it will be necessary 
to introduce other revenue income streams such as charging for parking and/or 
permits.  

1.31 Detailed financial models were created for the purposes of carrying out 
the financial assessment.  The models allowed the officers and the consultants 
to test a range of possible outcomes for the project, and to arrive at conclusions 
regarding the range of circumstances which would result in financial viability or 
at the least deficit. The main objective is to introduce a traffic management tool 
by better enforcement. Lower overall costs can be achieved through use of a 
low level enforcement regime, but this will not achieve the objectives and the 
DfT would consider the application accordingly. 

1.32   Financial viability is broadly considered to be recognised by a scheme 
design which results in the project recovering its total set-up and operational 
costs within a period of 5 to 7 years at the maximum, and thereafter, producing 
a surplus. If the £690,000 cost of updating the TRO’s is capitalised then the 
operational budget with start up expenses costs will be £56,000 in deficit after 5 
years. 

1.33 The project included the direct costs and income of the increased 
enforcement associated with decriminalisation; it also included in the financial 
assessment, the predicted impact of certain indirect consequences of CPE. By 
way of comparison with Appendix K, a business case was also constructed that 
allowed for dual use enforcement of parking and environmental crimes by the 
same officers (Appendix L). This business case is clearly unsustainable without 
external funding running at an annual average CPE on street operational deficit 
of £245,000. Dual role functions are specifically not recommended by the 
Consultant. 

1.34 The CPE projections are based on the band 2 level of Penalty Charge 
Notice (PCN), set at £70/£50 in the Traffic Management Act 2004. This is the 
maximum banding available. Due to the slight margins predicted it is not 
practical to investigate the lower banding of £60/£40. 

1.35 Additional parking-related income, for example the introduction of on 
street charging, is important to help the project to achieve viability by recouping 
set up costs in the initial few years of operation; thereafter, any income 
surpluses would be available for the purposes decided by OCC, within the 
constraints of the law.  As stated, the new on-street and off street surplus 

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 11 - April 2020 

income from penalty charges is ring-fenced, as defined in Section 55 of the 
1984 Road Traffic Regulation Act.  For the purposes of this report a 1% 
allowance for extra on street pay and display income has been projected to 
allow a worst case scenario to be determined although on street income is 
minimal at present. 

1.36 The new civil enforcement service allows an authority to enhance its 
ability to act against particular groups of those parking in contravention by the 
use of wheel-clamping or vehicle removals.  The conclusion is that at present 
these methods should be generally avoided and only considered for 
introduction should the new enforcement regime using PCNs prove to be 
inadequate. They are very expensive and very controversial means of 
controlling parking and should only be considered as a last resort. 

1.37 The modelling process tested several options for the on street service:  
 

1) The introduction of on-street enforcement, without any other major changes 
to the management of parking within the Districts and using the penalty 
charge levels as made available by Government (£70/£50). The base 
models are for each individual District (Appendix D). These cover on and off 
street. 

 
2) As above with use of externalised service provision. (Appendix E) These 

cover on and off street. 
 
3) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for SODC and 

VWHDC to match current arrangements. (Appendix F). These cover on and 
off street and show both in house (F) and external service provision (F1) 
using current rates and (F2) using industry rates. 

 
4) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix G). These cover on and off street and show external 
service provision only and use current contracted rates.  

 
5) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix H). These cover on and off street and show external 
service provision only and use industry average contracted rates.  

 
6) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix J). Covering on street only and show external service 
provision only and use current contracted rates.  

 
7) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix K). Covering on street only and show external service 
provision only and use industry average contracted rates.  

 
8) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 12 - April 2020 

Districts. (Appendix L). Covering on street CPE and dual role environmental 
enforcement as a direct comparison to Appendix K showing external service 
provision only and use industry average contracted rates. 

 
9) The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix N). Covering on street CPE only using current Oxford 
City contract rates in comparison to Appendix K showing external service 
provision for enforcement and part of the administration pre notice to owner. 
 

The broad conclusions from this exercise were: 
 

 The on street project overall cannot be made operationally viable on its 
own even when excluding set up costs. The closest possible solution, 
certainly in the short term is in using the County Councils existing 
contracts (Appendix N) used for managing the existing Oxford City on 
street contract to provide a new on street only service provision outside 
of the current off street operations. The consultant recommends that 
OCC actively pursue their own on street contract for enforcement and 
administration for CPE. Districts are contracted to 2025 for off street 
already but they should be given the option of buying in to the contract at 
any time. 

 
 Further decisions on the potential to introduce paid for parking on street 

are required in order to produce financial viability to recoup set up costs. 
 

 An active programme of enforcement is a basic requirement for a 
financially viable project; this applies to the issuing of parking tickets, and 
to the pursuit of debt. 

 
 A minimum of 146 deployed hours per week on street across the 3 

Districts is required to provide the basic level of enforcement to achieve 
the objectives. 

1.38 On this basis, the view of the consultants is that progress should be 
based upon the £70/£50 PCN level, using variations on a theme to produce a 
viable solution. 

1.39  To reiterate the OCC led scenario in Appendix N is recommended and 
is the approach that OCC should adopt. 

1.40 To address the change in responsibilities arising from 
decriminalisation, a parking management structure will be required depending 
on current internal resources. It should be responsible for all aspects of the 
operational management of parking in the 3 Districts and should have a part 
time Parking Manager at its head with assistance as required.  This must 
include all aspects of on-street parking including enforcement, administration, 
permit issue and dealing with general queries. It is possible that one of the 

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 13 - April 2020 

Districts could provide the services under a section 101 agreement and this can 
be examined further should County wish that to happen, although OCC have 
the required management set up in place already. 

1.41 Some authorities have found that to tender out all services associated 
with enforcement and administration works successfully. In each of the Districts 
at the present time there is already a contractor enforcing the car parks which 
with additional staffing and IT equipment would be capable of running civil 
parking enforcement although it would be a step change from the current 
operations and the current costs are deemed high.  

1.42 As well as dealing with routine correspondence and payments, the 
administration team would have to incorporate the sensitive aspects of ticket 
processing, including the despatch of notices, the consideration of formal 
representations from aggrieved drivers, the interface to the independent 
adjudication system provided for within the legislation, the registration of debt at 
the County Court, and dealing with cases passed to an Enforcement Agent 
(bailiff).  

1.43 The administration process could be undertaken by a contractor under 
the same contract as the enforcement. The Consultant recommends that 
County adopt the Oxford City contract approach which would remove the need 
for a large internal administration team other than to deal with aspects of the 
post notice to owner appeals within the legislation guidelines. There is also the 
possibility of one District running the administrative function for the other 
partners in this study although this is not recommended at this time.  

1.44 OCC must participate in an independent appeals mechanism, known 
as the Adjudication Service.  The Traffic Penalty Tribunal (TPT) is now well 
established and functional. County must therefore apply to join this service, 
which will meet the need to have a source of hearings for appeals, when the 
Application for the powers is made to the DfT. The Adjudication Service 
functions as a Section 101 Committee, so it will require elected Members to 
formally represent County at the very infrequent Committee meetings which are 
held. The main costs of this service have been taken into consideration in making 
the assessment. 

1.45 The next major stage of the project which would follow a decision to 
proceed with the introduction of CPE and it is for the Highway Authority to 
prepare and submit a CEA/SEA Application to the DfT. This aspect should be 
pursued over the months following a resolution to proceed, accompanied by a 
programme of consultation with the Police, neighbouring authorities, and other 
interested parties. A review of the County Council's parking policies in the light 
of forthcoming decriminalisation will form an important element of the 
application.  The objective should be to have an application submitted for 
approval within 9 months of a decision to proceed.  Consultation with the public 
is not a statutory requirement, but the County Council should decide how to 
consult with or inform the public, and the form such consultation should take.  

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 14 - April 2020 

1.46 In the meantime, a project to review the on-street traffic regulations 
throughout the Districts should be commenced. These costs to carry out this 
review comprise the majority of the capital set up costs identified in the 
business model. If these costs can be covered elsewhere by the County 
Council, then they can be removed from the business plan. If it is the intention 
to pay back these costs from the CPE project, they should remain in the 
business case. 

1.47 Experience indicates that to introduce civil enforcement will require an 
overall timetable of between 15 and 24 months as a minimum, from the date of 
a decision to proceed.  The timescales will be primarily dependant on how the 
service is to be provided, the TRO review and remedial works and the 
Application process with the DfT. To manage this project, a Project Steering 
Group and Project Manager role should be established, to include not only 
officers from the various internal sections of the County Council and 
representatives of the District Councils, but also representatives from the 
Police.  Such is the importance of the project, it is suggested that major policy 
direction for the project should come from a group of Members and senior 
officers within County, delegated with the responsibility for successful 
implementation of decriminalisation. Staff time, at District level in the set-up, will 
be minimal if County take the lead and the on street services are centralised and 
managed under a separate contract. Should a new specification and contract 
have to be written then County should take the lead on this to achieve 
consistency.  

1.48 Elsewhere in the UK, some authorities have expressed a wish that the 
Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO) have a dual role in that they enforce other 
aspects of street management such as litter dropping, graffiti and dog fouling. The 
legislation governing the CEO precludes this dual enforcement role and it would 
also affect the financial predictions should the CEOs be doing something other 
than parking enforcement. The legislation states that the uniform of a CEO is for 
purely that function in terms of street management.  

1.49 However, if an authority so wishes it can make allowances in the costs of 
the service provision to allow the CEOs to complete the dual role by working in 
different uniforms under different legislation as separate functions on different 
times or days.  

1.50 Experience from an authority in North Wales was that the introduction of 
the dual role using the same deployed hours, reduced the issue of tickets against 
parking contraventions by up to 40% and the income from the environmental 
issuance was minimal in comparison. The costs of the CEOs go up by around 
25% to 30% in real terms. This is because the CEO’s have to be trained in 
criminal as well as civil enforcement and need to be able to take statements and 
request personal details at the time of the environmental incidents. The salary 
scale is therefore typically higher by as much as £6,000 per annum per person 
before overheads.  Dealing with an environmental ticket by a CEO can take 
around 4 hours each rather than the 10 minutes for a parking ticket and the case 

Page 68

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 15 - April 2020 

will need to go to court should someone appeal their fine.  

1.51 By using the models in Appendix K and L, with L including a 40% 
ambassadorial role it is possible to reflect the impact of environmental 
enforcement on the CPE budget as it would require 40% more CEO time and 
although this does include the costs of the CEOs working on environmental issue 
the operation is unsustainable without external funding.   

 

1.52 The three DC’s have off street contracts in place that last through to 
2025. The initial CPE service could be provided within these current contracts 
however this will be at a cost. In 2023 it is recommended that further discussions 
between all the Districts in Oxfordshire and with Oxfordshire County Council are 
commenced on how best to provide a combined CPE on and off street service 
Countywide. 

 

2 Introduction   
 

2.1  In responding to the requirements of the Study Brief, the consultants 
have carried out a detailed investigation into the feasibility of the 3 Districts 
taking on the powers available under the Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA 
2004) to transfer the responsibility for all non-endorseable parking 
contraventions from the Police to the County Council both with either the 
Districts acting as agents to the County Council and also with the County 
centralising the on street provision. 

 

2.2  This would be an important step for County were the decision to be 
taken as it would provide a major improvement to the overall traffic 
management capabilities of the County Council. This report reviews a number 
of the key issues relating to the introduction of the powers. It should be read in 
conjunction with the financial summaries (Appendices D to N) and versions of 
the financial assessment, which detail the range of possibilities and the likely 
outcomes. The models also provide the detail on staffing, associated costs, and 
a range of related issues. Section 5.2 tabulates the main financial indicators for 
the options considered. 

 

2.3  The TMA 2004 permits Highway Authorities to apply to the Secretary of 
State to become a CEA and SEA. In this case OCC would make the 
Application on behalf of the 3 Districts and the boundary for each would be 
coincidental with the whole administrative boundary of each individual District. 
Once a CEA/SEA application is approved, the power to enforce on-street 
parking restrictions passes from the Police to the Highway Authority. The on 
street income and expenditure should be covered in full by the County Council 
if the service is centralised. The applications would also include the off street 
parking functions covered by the 1984 RTRA. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 16 - April 2020 

  

2.4  The main advantage of becoming a CEA/SEA would be the ability of 
the County Council to determine the level of enforcement which was felt 
appropriate to satisfy transport policy objectives as they relate to parking.  By 
employing Civil Enforcement Officers rather than relying on the Police to 
employ traffic wardens, the County Council would have the ability to decide 
how many to employ, and in what ways they were to be deployed to address 
issues such as traffic capacity (through inhibiting obstructive parking) and traffic 
restraint (through reducing overstaying at time-limited spaces and parking on 
other restrictions imposed to limit on-street parking capacity).  It would also 
enable OCC to enforce parking restrictions in support of other policies and 
development proposals in town and district centres. Town and parish councils 
are allowed to provide additional funding for enforcement should they wish to 
as long as the CEO is working for the District or County Council. There is, 
however, an overriding requirement in making a successful CEA/SEA 
application that the Police are satisfied that parking restrictions will be 
adequately enforced.  In effect, this implies that the provision for enforcement is 
no less than it is currently. It is to be remembered that CEOs do not work on or 
off street only unless they are under separate contracts. CEO’s are used to 
cover all enforcement within the Districts to provide efficiencies of working. 

 

2.5  In a major study of the effectiveness of civil enforcement in London, the 
Transport Research Laboratory (TRL) in their Research Report 279 (Sept. 
1997) reported that one of the major achievements in the three areas studied 
was "an overall improvement in compliance with parking regulations".  In the 
TRL Report 333 (March 1998) on the experience of the first year of civil parking 
enforcement in Winchester, the first conclusion is: 

 
  "Compliance at all regulations monitored has improved, with reduced 

levels of occupancy, thereby increasing the likelihood that motorists will 
locate vacant parking spaces". 

 

2.6  There is now no doubt that CPE works, that it can be introduced at no 
long term cost if properly implemented and managed, and that the traffic 
management benefits can be realised. 

 

2.7  The major benefits which the County Council and Districts would 
experience as a consequence of the introduction of a CEA/SEA would be: 

 
  - An ability to design new parking controls in the light of 

Government pressures on traffic management policies, knowing 
that OCC has the ability to enforce the regulations; 

 
  - A means of managing demand for the use of vehicles; 

Page 70

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 17 - April 2020 

 
  - A more uniform level of enforcement applied across all parking 

regulations in the County; 
 
  - Support for public transport initiatives through encouragement to 

consider alternatives to the private car; 
 
  - An ability to respond to declining police involvement in parking 

enforcement; 
 
  - An ability to retain the income from the parking tickets issued, to 

re-invest this income in the provision of the service, and to 
develop a self-financing scheme with significant traffic 
management benefits; 

 
  - An ability to respond to growing pressures on parking provision, 

for example, through the introduction of resident parking schemes, 
in the light of having the ability to enforce them; 

 
  - Better use of District (and other 3rd party private) car parks, by 

encouraging drivers not to park illegally on street; 
 
  - A more accountable, responsive and sensitive service for 

enforcement; 
 
  - Improved safety for pedestrians and other vulnerable groups; 
 
  - Improved environmental conditions; 
 
  - Improved conditions for servicing (i.e delivery vehicles), 

particularly through reduced competition for road space; 
 
  - Enforcement for bus lanes, cycle lanes, no car lanes and similar 

measures; 
 
  - A possible self-financing scheme with traffic management 

objectives and benefits. 
 

2.8          There are few disadvantages of CPE; the main issue is that there is 
no opportunity to reverse the process once an order is made.  This implies that 
once civil, the County Council and Districts have to make the system work, 
however this is not so large an issue as might be implied.  If the resulting 
financial equation is not appropriate, it is a matter of adjusting the scale of the 
enforcement resource until a better balance is found. This is not an attempt to 
issue more PCNs but to align the resource level to the income generated. A 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 18 - April 2020 

lower number of PCNs per hour of enforcement shows high compliance levels 
and the enforcement service can be down sized accordingly with the converse 
also applicable. The emphasis is that this is a traffic management tool.  

2.9       It is important to note that enforcement of off street car parks by ANPR 
cameras is not possible under current legislation governing decriminalised 
parking enforcement. Enforcement off street must be through manually issued 
PCNs although cameras have been used to spot contraventions in the past. 
Camera cars and CCTV can be used on street for enforcement of school keep 
clears, bus stop clearways, bus lanes and red routes. 

2.10 The scheme requires a significant amount of set-up money; if desired, 
much of this could be defrayed onto a contractor, but OCC and the District will 
still have to find some set-up costs to invest before the main income stream is 
established. In essence the costs will fall to the County Council for the setup of 
the on street element of CPE.  

2.11 The main point with CPE is that it is simply a change in the 
enforcement service from the police to local authority control and there are no 
anticipated major changes to the restrictions on site. It is therefore unlikely that 
the introduction of CPE will have an impact on the local economy or the shops. 
In fact, it has been known to have a positive impact where shopkeepers 
themselves were guilty of parking all day in limited waiting bays outside their 
own shops thereby preventing turnover of spaces and creating a reduction in 
footfall. Correct enforcement would alleviate this problem.  

2.12 In addition to the above paragraph, the implementation of proper 
enforcement creates a higher turnover of spaces and therefore reduces 
congestion around the amenities as drivers can find available space more 
easily than driving around until one becomes available. Reduced congestion 
and obstruction to traffic will also be a benefit to the community as those 
currently parking in contravention to the detriment of the free flow of traffic are 
moved on to legal spaces where it is appropriate to park. 

3 Policy Issues 

3.1  Management Issues 
 

3.1.1  The most obvious internal impact of a CPE project would be that 
parking as a service would become larger, with more staff involved, and more 
costs and revenue to manage. OCC is recommended to ensure that there will 
be a single parking manager with the responsibility for all operational matters 
involved in on street parking, including in particular, enforcement and 
administration.  Strategic and design issues relating to parking should 
continue to be kept under a responsibility separate from the service delivery 
issues. The three Districts combined represent only a small percentage 
increase on the contract covering Oxford City. 

 
3.1.2 The Police acknowledge that there is in general a growing demand 

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 19 - April 2020 

nationally for enforcement in the evenings and on Sundays, due to changing 
patterns of social and retail activity in particular.  With the on deployment of 
staff being controlled by OCC this allows the flexibility to increase 
enforcement duties when the need arises e.g. for special events or at busy 
times of the year such as school holidays.   

3.2  Geographic area 
 

3.2.1  An important but very simple policy issue is the definition of the 
geographic extent of the CEA/SEA for each District. It must cover the entire 
administrative area of the District, and that this coverage should be achieved 
in a single step. Each DC must have their own separate application to include 
on and off street, although it could be provided within a multiple application. 
This conclusion is arrived at for a number of reasons: 

 
* This is the preferred choice of the Police, and is ACPO policy; 

 
* This is the simplest position to adopt for the DfT Application, and it is 
what the DfT wish to see; indeed, it is highly unlikely that DfT would agree to 
anything else. 

 
3.2.2  However, certain exclusions may have to be made to this simple 

definition; the Police may have views on areas where they would wish to see 
the regulations remain under their control. This could apply for example, in 
sections of various major routes within the County.  This is an issue to be 
formally agreed with the Police as soon as possible if CPE is to become 
policy. 

 
3.2.3  The CEA/SEA must include District off-street locations where 

traffic orders apply, as the DfT will not allow such areas to be excluded.  This 
also means that the enforcement regime applied across the County is uniform 
from a public perspective and has a single procedure from a parking 
administration point of view. 

3.3 Police Relations 
 

3.3.1 As the introduction of CPE is about the transfer of certain 
responsibilities from the Police to the County Council or its agent, it is 
important that good relationships are maintained between the organisations 
throughout the project. The Police have to be formally consulted as an 
element of the application preparation process, and although in theory, their 
agreement to the process is not required, it would clearly be a major failure if 
both parties were not to agree as to the nature and timing of the project. 

 
3.3.2 One of the biggest issues to be determined by the Police is the 

future of the existing traffic wardens (if there are any). The Police have to 
determine if they intend to retain the wardens, or if they wish to re-deploy 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 20 - April 2020 

them internally, transfer them under a TUPE arrangement or if they wish in 
effect, to make them redundant.  It is unlikely that any traffic wardens would 
be in post at the time of CPE in Oxfordshire although TUPE may also apply to 
any PCSO’s who are specifically employed to undertake parking enforcement, 
OCC would need to check this with the Police. 

 
3.3.3  The issue of physical violence after the start of CPE is also 

important to consider.  In areas which have already adopted the powers, it 
has been found that Council CEOs are more prone to physical abuse and 
even attack than traffic wardens, so an excellent link to the police to request 
urgent assistance is essential.  The most constructive attitude tends to be 
where the police recognise that having a larger number of uniformed people 
on the street can act as a benefit to their operations, acting as eyes and ears 
to assist them, as well as vice-versa. 

 
3.3.4  Although they have no obligation to do so, a number of police 

forces in certain areas have agreed to hold a local authority radio from the 
parking operation within their control room, in order to be in a position to 
respond to calls for assistance as quickly as possible, or to provide direct 
channels of communication. 

 
3.3.5 The issue of special events in the Districts is of particular 

significance for discussions with the Police.  On such occasions, the nature of 
the responsibilities of both the police, the County Council as highway authority 
and the District would change, with the Police losing aspects of their powers 
to enforce parking, yet the CEOs having no powers to get involved in the 
direction of traffic.  This new relationship should be discussed, and the need 
for parking enforcement understood between the organisations, with 
agreement reached as to how the resources would be best deployed in future, 
after CPE. 

 

3.4  Relationship to Traffic Penalty Tribunal 
 

3.4.1 The direct costs of the TPT adjudication service have been 
accounted for within the financial assessment, with the minor exceptions of 
the costs of having Member involvement in the Section 101 Committee 
directing the service overall, and any costs of accommodating an adjudicator 
in neutral premises for their infrequent hearing sessions in the District or 
County.  

 
3.4.2  The County Council and the District should both register their 

intentions with the TPT as soon as they have decided to decriminalise, 
informing them of the probable start date, and the likely volume of PCNs 
which will be issued.  This is primarily for the planning of the TPT service, but 
it will presumably in due course, enable both Council’s to participate in the 

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 21 - April 2020 

dissemination of knowledge and experience which is important in 
understanding the appeal mechanism. 

 
3.4.3  In time, it will be necessary to establish and operate local 

premises for the adjudication cases which are to be heard in person and 
locally.  These premises are likely to have to be provided and organised by 
the local authority.  They will have to be such that appellants can perceive the 
process to be independent of the issuing authority, and other authorities who 
have already gone down this path have found that public service premises, 
such as courts and even Guild Halls are acceptable as being suitably divorced 
from the pressures of the County Council or a District. 

 
3.4.4  It is also to be expected that the issuing authority will have to 

provide the staff to support the adjudicator in administering the hearing 
sessions.  This would include reception duties, dealing with enquiries, 
ensuring adjudicator decisions are given to appellants, and perhaps even 
providing a degree of security back-up for the hearings. 

 
3.4.5 The volume of cases which will be referred to the TPT is likely to 

be quite small. The propensity for appellants to go to independent review is 
strongly influenced by the care and effort invested by the issuing authority in 
dealing with the early stage of an appeal.  In the latest 12 month period 
nationally, of the PCNs issued, less than 0.5% went to appeal.  

3.5  Contractual Arrangements 
 

3.5.1 Many Councils have chosen to tender out the services associated 
with CPE, as they are frequently either new services, or considerable 
extensions of existing services. Appendix A gives a briefing note on the merits 
or otherwise of contracting out and for OCC this looks to be the most cost 
effective solution to achieve best value and the flexibility to provide a parking 
service while undertaking CPE. 

  
3.5.2 The issue of whether or not to contract out is fundamental to the project 
scope; it is a decision which has to be taken at an early stage, as it has a 
major impact on just about every other aspect of the project.   

 
3.5.3 It is the view of the Consultants that due to the nature of the 
enforcement areas, the level of enforcement and the resultant number of 
tickets estimated, the enforcement required for decriminalisation should be 
undertaken externally and it is further recommended that a central processing 
unit or third party provider is utilised for the administrative functions at least up 
to the notice to owner stage if not beyond. These have proved best value 
elsewhere and are a good opportunity to invoke collaborative working. There 
is also the possibility of any Oxfordshire Authority managing the on street 
administrative functions for the 3 Districts on behalf of County. This has to be 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 22 - April 2020 

run at zero profit margin. Partnering with an established processing unit will 
reduce set up costs and allow a streamlined and seamless change to the new 
enforcement service with the knowledge of exact costs involved. 

 

3.6  Parking Charges 
 

3.6.1  The issue of the levels of charges applied in off-street areas is 
not directly affected by CPE.  

 
3.6.2  The off-street places will receive a higher level of demand after 

CPE is introduced; this effect has been noted in almost every area where it 
has been introduced. CPE will increase the demand for these places. 

 
3.6.3 The relative volume of the off-street market which is in private 

operation is an issue worth considering, and the extent to which the Districts 
can alter prices, in relation to demand. All car parks that are operated by 
virtue of having 1984 RTRA off street parking places orders at the time of the 
Designation Order automatically come under CPE as they are within the CEA 
boundary unless they are specifically excluded within the Application. Town 
Councils should be encouraged to adopt CPE on their car parks which have 
an RTRA 84 Act order on them and allow CEOs to enforce going forward. 

 
3.6.4  It is worth noting that in other areas where CPE has been 

introduced, the major private operators have recognised the opportunity to 
introduce or increase prices to reflect the increased demand brought about by 
displaced on-street parking. 

   
3.6.5 The financial impact could include the possible introduction of 

charging into a number of off-street areas which are currently free of charges.  
 

3.6.6 It is normal for a cashless pay by phone system to stand alone 
from any CPE IT system and simply interface with the CEOs hand helds in 
real time via the IT system. This also allows flexibility when wishing to re 
tender the cashless parking contract as new technology comes on line in the 
future. It is recommended that any future cashless parking system be 
procured remote and separate to a CPE IT service provider. Real time 
information for the CEOs to link in to while on patrol is the way forward. The 
use of ANPR to enforce off street is not permitted under CPE at present but 
the cameras can be used to direct CEOs on site to potential problems and 
also they can be used to collect payments direct from driver’s accounts that 
have been set up to pay on demand when a vehicle is parked in a pay and 
display area. This reduces cash in transit and the driver only pays for the time 
they are parked. Technology is the way forward in parking and moving to CPE 
will help OCC and the Districts to introduce more cost effective and efficient 
working practices. 

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 23 - April 2020 

3.7 Clamping and Removals  
 

3.7.1  It is probable that the parking problems in the 3 Districts are not 
such as to warrant the need for these techniques at least initially, and in any 
event, it would be sensible to let the new enforcement regime settle for 
perhaps 12 months before any serious consideration was given to this topic.  
This is particularly appropriate given the new regime of more active on-street 
enforcement.  The powers to undertake clamping and removals should, 
however, be sought in the application; they can then be brought into use at 
any time in the future, should a policy on the use of clamping or removals 
need to be developed. 

 
3.7.2  Both clamping and removals, but the latter in particular, require 

a great deal of initial investment and operational costs to make them pay their 
way. There is a need for a 24 hour operation to release vehicles, there has to 
be a pound and a payment centre for drivers whose vehicles are restrained, 
and different procedures exist in several aspects of the processing of the 
PCNs attached to such vehicles.  Because of these characteristics such 
services are extremely expensive, and contractors would take a very sceptical 
view of the possible profitability of such a contract. 

 
3.7.3  During detailed discussions on the CEA/SEA application the 

Police should be asked to agree that they would act on cases of obstruction 
using their network of contractors, where such cases are notified to them by 
the Local Authority. If they intervene in this way, the case then effectively 
becomes a police matter, and is of no further interest to the issuing authority, 
unless a PCN has been issued. 

 
3.7.4  In the case of clamping, the County Council should formulate a 

policy for the use of this technique when it is considered necessary.  Initially, 
for at least the early period of CPE enforcement, the use of clamping should 
not be considered, as it is excessively heavy handed, and will cost more to 
operate than the income it will produce. However, it may emerge that there 
are cases for which clamping is the most appropriate solution, despite the 
additional work and procedures required and where a very low cost, low 
volume operation could be considered. 

 
3.7.5  Examples of such cases could be: 

 
  * Persistent offenders – i.e. those who regularly flout the 

regulations, but pay the PCNs, regarding the cost perhaps as a 
legitimate aspect of their behaviour; depending upon local 
attitudes, such drivers could be regarded as a special problem. To 
get the message across to them, targeting them via the CEOs for 
special attention by clamping could ensure that their anti-social 
behaviour is changed. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 24 - April 2020 

 
  * Persistent evaders – i.e. those who regularly flout the regulations, 

and who do not pay the PCNs.  Targeting them for clamping will 
be partially successful, and when and if the law changes such that 
OCC can restrain the vehicle until all outstanding PCNs have 
been paid, it will be much more successful. However, under such 
circumstances OCC would almost certainly have to remove the 
vehicle from the streets, in order to effect its policy.  Vehicles in 
this category are often those for which it is not possible to obtain a 
keeper name and address via the DVLA; whilst the County 
Council cannot ensure the availability of a correct name and 
address by clamping the vehicle, it is certainly one way of 
ensuring that the keeper becomes aware that the vehicle is being 
targeted for illegal parking. 

 
  * Foreign vehicles - if there are particular problems with such 

vehicles, and where these are issued with a PCN, the chance of 
the PCN being paid is relatively low.  By being able to clamp the 
vehicle, the probability of the monies being received increases 
greatly.   

 

3.8  Project Implementation 
 

3.8.1  There are several services undertaken by the County Council 
and the Districts, plus the Police to a much lesser degree, who would be 
involved in some way in the implementation of CPE.  The experience of other 
authorities is that the best way to coordinate the involvement of these various 
groups is via a CPE Project Team or Steering Group, which is chaired by a 
senior officer responsible for the parking service along representatives such 
as: 

 
 Finance 
 Income Receipt 
 Legal 
 Transport Policy 
 Traffic Management 
 IT Section 
 Thames Valley Police, including a representative of their local traffic 

officers, and perhaps the policy officer from headquarters 
 Oxfordshire County Council 
 District Car Parks Section 
 Press and Publicity Officer 

 
3.8.2  It is recommended that such a group should meet on a regular 

basis, probably bi-monthly, in order to coordinate the programme for 

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 25 - April 2020 

implementation, and to ensure that all functions which are affected by this 
implementation are kept informed of the development of the project. 

 
3.8.3  Consideration should be given to the organisation of the staffing 

required to handle CPE, when that change is brought about.  It will be 
important to define roles more clearly, with more division of duties, and 
greater separation of functions particularly in the areas of appeals 
management. The issue of the management structure has been made 
elsewhere, but it will be essential to have at least one post with operational 
responsibilities for the parking service overall especially if the whole service is 
externalised. 

 
3.8.4  The functions which will be necessary for a coordinated and 

comprehensive parking administration operation which can be outsourced if 
necessary will be: 

   a) Income receipt: 
 Postal receipts of PCN payments 
 Personal payments 
 Telephone payments 
 Internet payments 
 Permit applications and payments 

 
   b) Administrative processing: 

 PCN processing 
 Correspondence management 
 Telephone queries 
 DVLA interaction 
 Consideration of Representations (formal appeals to 

the Authority against a Notice to Owner) 
 Preparation of case files for adjudication (external 

appeals after rejection of Representations) 
 County Court interaction for debt collection 
 Enforcement agency (bailiff) interaction 
 Permit management 
 Suspensions management 
 Dispensations management 

Other functions being 
   c) On-street and off-street enforcement: 

 Civil Enforcement Officer patrols 
 Suspension control 

 
   d) Off-street operations: 

 Car park manning if required 
 P&D Machine cash collection  
 P&D maintenance 
 Security 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 26 - April 2020 

  
3.8.5  The timescale for implementation is also important to consider. 

The CPE project will consist of several main sub-projects, such as the TRO 
review, possibly tendering out, collaborative working, IT enhancements and 
procurements etc.  Each of these is a significant task, and each will require 
many months to achieve successfully.  If the correct project resources are 
applied, the overall project can be accomplished within a period of not less 
than about 15 months. However, it could easily run to over 24 months 
depending on the individual circumstances.  Experience has shown that an 
average of around 15 to 24 months is realistic, from the time that a positive 
decision is taken to adopt the powers, the resources are applied and funding 
is clear. The attached project plan at Appendix B has been based on a 
minimum 21 month implementation period.  There is also the issue of a 
suitable start date as there are internal influences that must be fully 
considered prior to submitting the written application to DfT. 
 

3.8.6  Lastly, the role of Project Manager is crucial.  The project 
demands the commitment of a capable officer who is either full-time or close 
to full-time on the project and it is useful if the person is not currently involved 
in day to day operational duties.  His or her role will be to coordinate the 
activities leading to CPE, and to ensure that the others within the various 
other sections and organisations are playing their part. Clearly, this calls for 
an experienced person, with the capability to make the implementation 
possible. 

3.9 Consultation 
 

3.9.1  The need for consultation falls into two main sections; there is a 
need for formal consultation as an aspect of the preparation of the CEA/SEA 
application, and there is need for less formal consultation with interest groups 
and the public at large over the introduction of the measures. The former 
requirement is statutory and has to be completed in time for the submission of 
the application, and should include the Police as described above, the 
neighbouring authorities, the Highway Agency, Fire Service and other such 
bodies who may be considered to have an interest in the possible change in 
enforcement. There could be an issue about TROs on the boundary to other 
councils, and possible displacement resulting from better enforcement within 
each District. 

 
3.9.2  The consultation with other organisations, such as resident 

groups, Chamber of Commerce, community councils will be determined by 
the style of OCC and the Districts in involving other groups in such matters.  
In several cases authorities have proceeded with little or no consultation at 
this level, while others have gone to considerable lengths to inform and 
involve the community.  The general experience is that CPE on its own is not 
a topic which engenders a lot of public interest; where such interest does 

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 27 - April 2020 

exist, it is usually either a strong view that "more enforcement" is required, or 
it stems from particular sections of the community who perceive it as a threat 
eg retail operators who think more enforcement will damage trade.  It is often 
difficult to differentiate CPE from other parking related matters, such as 
parking charges. 

 
 

3.9.3  The other aspect of the less formal consultation is the need to 
inform people more generally what the implementation of CPE means to 
them, and to warn them about what is going to happen and when.  This can 
often be achieved by quite low cost measures such as leafleting households, 
articles in magazines, and putting warning notices on illegally parked vehicles 
in the 2 weeks prior to commencement.  It is also very helpful to try to get 
information releases out to the local media, but to do so in a manner which 
explains the changes, and attempts to gain a degree of understanding, if not 
accord, with such organisations.  Ensuring that members and senior officers 
are fully briefed and understand the issues and OCC policy are also simple 
but effective measures which can be taken. 

 
3.9.4 It is recommended that a PR campaign should be designed at an 

early stage, and then implemented particularly in the last few months before 
the start date. 

 

3.10 DFT:  CEA/SEA Application 
 

3.10.1  A major milestone which has to be achieved within the project is 
the submission of a formal CEA/SEA Application by the County Council to the 
DfT.  There is a set structure for such an application and guidance identifies a 
large number of issues which have to be addressed.  This task of writing an 
application is really the culmination of the planning for the project 
implementation, and once submitted and approved, it marks the threshold 
between initial planning and the actual implementation. As this is such a 
significant milestone, it is referred to frequently in the following paragraphs, 
and is termed simply the "application". An allowance has been made of 
£12,000 in the business model for outside consultancy to assist with the 
implementation of CPE including the application element. 

 
3.10.2  To submit an application which will be successful, the County 

Council has to confirm that policies in relation to parking have been reviewed. 
 Where a County has multiple District and Borough Councils it is preferable to 
have the same policies in place for on street enforcement to allow a 
consistent approach and for future joint working within the administration and 
enforcement service areas. Authorities are encouraged by DfT to consult 
widely on these, particularly with the Police, and to publish the agreed 
outcome of such a review. 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 28 - April 2020 

 
3.10.3  The timing of the submission of the formal application is quite 

important, as it commits both the County Council and Districts to a start date, 
from which variation is not easily possible.  This start date is also the date 
when the Police lose the power to enforce parking in the Districts.  The 
County Council and Districts must therefore be confident they can achieve the 
date. On the other hand, the Application has to be submitted in good time to 
get the necessary order prepared, laid before Parliament, and approved.  This 
process can take up to 8 to 12 months before the start date.  If contracting out 
is to occur, thought needs to be given to the availability of confirmation of the 
application before any contract is signed, which can lengthen the overall 
timescale by perhaps about 3 months.   

 
3.10.4  The content of the application itself is specified in detail by DfT 

and it should cover all aspects of the planning by the County Council and 
Districts for CPE. An outline is contained within guidance. In this respect, it 
really forms the boundary between the planning stage of the project, and the 
implementation processes.   

 
3.10.5  It is necessary within the application for clear statements to be 

made regarding the policy framework for the provision and enforcement of 
parking in the County, and thus, the circumstances within which this review is 
taking place.  

 
3.10.6 Typically, the overall process will involve:  

 The preparation of a draft application; 
 The submission of the draft to DfT for comments; 
 Consultation with neighbouring authorities etc using the draft as the 

basis; 
 Agreement with DfT on the draft; 
 Submission of the formal application, with the results of consultation; 
 Consultation by DfT with Thames Valley Police; 
 Preparation of the Designation Order by DfT; 
 Presentation of the order to Parliament; 
 Confirmation of the availability of the Statutory Instrument. 
 

3.11 Public Interaction 
 

3.11.1 The scale of contact with the public will increase with the growth in 
numbers of parking tickets, and the nature of the enforcement being on-street 
as well as off-street. Outsourcing the administration with all the contact details 
on the PCNs pointing to the Central Processing Unit will relieve OCC of the 
majority of burden in this respect. 

 
 

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 29 - April 2020 

4 TRO Review 

4.1  Extent of Review 
 

4.1.1  The DfT require to see evidence within the application that a 
review has been carried out on the TROs. The application states that a letter 
must be submitted to the DfT a minimum 6 weeks before the proposed 
commencement date and the letter confirms that a full TRO review has been 
completed. This has to review and remedy the accuracy of the TROs on the 
ground in the first place but also should attempt to review the appropriateness 
of the TROs.  This would include for example, ensuring that TROs which were 
implemented when circumstances were quite different eg a factory 
subsequently demolished, have been suitably modified.  The review should 
also consider the accessibility of the TROs. It is now recognised that to future 
proof and assist in the efficiency of the service a full survey and GIS 
digitisation process are recommended as the way forward. The CPE debt 
pursuit process is quite different from the current criminal system; adjudicators 
taking appeals will routinely require detailed presentations of the TROs which 
apply at a location. They therefore must have some form of accessible extract 
of the relevant TRO. The easiest way is to do this is by using a GIS database, 
and for appeals staff to be able to prepare a relevant extract map, and details 
of the Order, and enclose these with the adjudicator case file.  

 
4.1.2  In reality, it is the accuracy check which is absolutely paramount 

prior to commencement of CPE in an area. Enforcing inaccurate TROs will 
run the risk of being identified by adjudicators, and they will not hesitate to 
accept appeals. They have also been known to criticise highway authorities 
heavily where TROs are considered to be in such a state that enforcement in 
general is questionable. However, the appropriateness check can be carried 
out up to and after the start of the enforcement, and in effect, this is the on-
going TRO maintenance work which should occur in any event.   

 
4.1.3  It is also worth noting that CPE allows authorities to take a 

different view of the need for certain TROs, in the knowledge of their ability to 
provide enforcement resources.  Thus, where a double yellow line has been 
determined as appropriate in the knowledge that the police may not be able to 
provide much if any enforcement, if under CPE it is possible to provide more 
resources resulting in more vigorous enforcement, a different less onerous 
regulation may be considered appropriate. 

 
4.1.4  One common objective of such a review is the production of 

consolidated TROs; the DfT understands the benefits of such an approach, 
giving a clearer, simpler, more standardised basis for the CPE operations.  
Many authorities in their preparations for CPE, are aiming to have one or just 
a small number of on-street Orders for their whole CEA/SEA.  This certainly 
makes it easier for the TPT to be given a set of orders for their reference, 

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 30 - April 2020 

instead of having to provide details for most cases which go to appeal. 
 

4.1.5 This review will have to be carefully planned and resourced; the 
costs are built into the overall financial assessment, and the project plan 
identifies a typical timescale for such a project. 

 
4.1.6 It is recommended that the existing TRO’s affected by CPE be 

consolidated in to one or more orders as part of the process towards CPE. 
This means a minimum of one on street TRO per District and one off street 
parking places order per District. 

 
 

5 The Financial Balance 

5.1  The Financial Model 
 

5.1.1  In order to assess the financial consequences of the introduction 
of CPE, a spreadsheet model was used. This model was based heavily on 
similar work carried out for other authorities, including those where the 
consultants have had the opportunity to return to verify the principle of the use 
of such a tool in an exercise such as this. One of the advantages of this 
approach is that it allows the testing of the predicted combination of 
circumstances which the consultants believe will most accurately reflect the 
situation in each District after CPE.  It also encourages the testing of possible 
alternative scenarios, to the point where it is possible to identify the limits of 
financial viability of the project. 

 
5.1.2  At all stages, the principle adopted has been to err on the side of 

conservatism; thus, for example, 3 months is allowed for ticket issuing 
operations to get to the predicted level of activity. 

 
5.1.3  The model predicts the start-up costs of the new operation, the 

expenses to be incurred, the revenue stream which will result, and the cash-
flow over the initial years.  The issue of financial viability is addressed by 
looking at a combination of these issues, and in particular, by identifying when 
the total cumulative expenditure is exceeded by the total cumulative amount 
of revenue.  This is considered to show a "break-even" date when the total 
income exceeds the total expenditure and is used generally as the measure of 
viability. 

 
5.1.4  The model makes allowance for 3% inflation over the term; while 

inflation will clearly occur in the costs, price rises may also occur on the 
income side should national legislation agree to increases in the PCN level. 

 
5.1.5  It should be understood that the model operates by predicting 

not the whole Parking Revenue Account, but the changes which will occur to 

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 31 - April 2020 

the account as a result of decriminalisation and other related activities.  It is 
therefore a marginal assessment, and not a total assessment. The model 
does not take account of the total current income from paid for parking as this 
is in the current budgets and the model purely reveals the impact of CPE on 
the parking budget. 

 
 
 
 
 

5.1.6  The major variable issues which are important, and have been 
focused upon are: 

 
 The number of PCNs which are likely to be issued; 

 
 The number of staff deployed hours required to patrol the areas defined; 

 
 The value of the PCN; 

 
 To a lesser degree, the effectiveness of the debt recovery operation; 
 
 

5.1.7 The issue of the value of a PCN has been a critical one. The £70 
PCN level is critical to the achievement of financial viability and is therefore 
used as the basis for the financial predictions.  

 
5.1.8  In predicting these issues, the consultants based the 

requirement for enforcement upon information regarding the current extent of 
regulations and populations in the main towns. This approach is detailed but 
simplistic, and experience elsewhere has shown that it is sufficiently reliable 
to determine with reasonable accuracy the amount of resource which is 
required for enforcement patrol. 

 
5.1.9  A level of patrol has been specified in the model which is 

considered to be appropriate for the local circumstances. The majority of the 
deployed enforcement is centred on Banbury, Bicester, and Kidlington in 
Cherwell, Didcot, Henley, Wallingford and Thame in South Oxon, Abingdon, 
Botley, Faringdon and Wantage in the Vale of White Horse, with the 
remainder spread evenly across the Districts using mobile patrols. The 
assumption is the use of a degree of mechanisation (small cars), to move 
CEOs around within the Districts at the start and end of their duties, and 
between sites. If scooters are deemed practicable then they may be a good 
alternative. 

 
5.1.10  In the case of the car parks in District ownership, the current 

information about their size, and need for patrolling and the required resource 

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 32 - April 2020 

to undertake this activity is already known. 
 

5.1.11  Using information about the actual deployed availability of CEOs 
from other authorities, allowing for sickness, holidays, shift working etc, it is 
then possible to calculate the number of CEOs which would be required for 
the given level of patrol. 

 
5.1.12  The level of deployment of CEOs (including supervisory staff) is 

thus estimated at an average of 31 per week each for SODC and VWHDC 
and 84 per week for CDC for on-street areas. This is to allow for a minimum of 
7 days per week operations, covering enforcement hours when required. The 
base version of the model uses these numbers within the overall financial 
predictions. It would be recommended that the new operation for on-street 
enforcement should gradually build up over a period of 3 to 6 months to give 
the opportunity for the effectiveness and impact of the enforcement to be 
monitored.  This would give the chance to modify the plan as proposed here, 
were it to prove to be either inadequate or excessive in terms of the impact. 
The reaction of drivers to enforcement is an unknown quantity and some 
flexibility is required. 

 
5.1.13  The number of PCNs which are likely to be issued have been 

extrapolated by taking an average number of PCNs which will be issued by 
each CEO when deployed, in the various areas of the Districts.  This 
approach assumes that there are many more contraventions than there are 
PCNs issued; the normal is for only about 3% to 5% of all contraventions 
occurring to be actually issued with a PCN, and thus this method is reliable. 

 
5.1.14  The rates of issue have been based upon our experience of 

broadly similar areas, although with what is considered to be a conservative 
view being taken of the projected numbers.  Thus, the rate of issue is 
predicted for on-street of 29 PCNs per fte CEO, per week or 0.74 PCN’s 
issued per deployed hour in Appendix N to match the current Oxford City 
figures, which is considered slightly lower than average but due to the minimal 
enforcement the relatively low level of random patrols will still only issue the 
equivalent of a total of 4 PCNs per day in South Oxfordshire and Vale of 
White Horse and 10 per day in Cherwell. There is a known problem in 
Cherwell as the police still issued 2800 fixed penalty notices in the last full 
year despite low levels of enforcement so the 10 per day could be on the low 
side initially. 

 
5.1.15  The projections in Appendix N are therefore based upon around 

5617 PCNs being issued annually within the 3 Districts by CEOs in all on 
street locations, in a full year.  The model assumes it will take about 3 months 
to get up to this issue-rate.  The rate of payment is expected to improve as the 
impact of CPE is made in respect of better quality TRO’s and an increase in 
the issue of valid quality tickets. A level of 75% has been used in the financial 

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 33 - April 2020 

modelling. 
 

5.2  The Modelling Process  
 

5.2.1 This tested several options for the on street service:  
 

5.2.2. The introduction of on-street enforcement, without any other major 
changes to the management of parking within the Districts and using the 
Penalty Charge levels as made available by Government (£70/£50). The 
base models are for each individual District (Appendix D). These cover 
on and off street. 

 
5.2.3. As above with use of externalised service provision. (Appendix E) 

These cover on and off street. 
 

5.2.4. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for SODC 
and VWHDC to match current arrangements. (Appendix F). These cover 
on and off street and show both in house (F) and external service 
provision (F1) based on current rates and (F2) based on industry rates. 

 
5.2.5. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix G). These cover on and off street and show external 
service provision only and use current contracted rates.  

 
5.2.6. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix H). These cover on and off street and show external 
service provision only and use industry average contracted rates.  

 
5.2.7. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix J). Covering on street only and show external service 
provision only and use current contracted rates.  

 
5.2.8. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix K). Covering on street only and show external 
service provision only and use industry average contracted rates.  

 
5.2.9. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for all 3 

Districts. (Appendix L). Covering on street CPE and dual role 
environmental enforcement as a direct comparison to Appendix K 
showing external service provision only and use industry average 
contracted rates.  

 
5.2.10. The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service for 

all 3 Districts. (Appendix N). Covering on street only and use the current 
contractual arrangements in Oxford City.  

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 34 - April 2020 

5.2.11. The results from the models described above have been 
tabulated below. Note that models D to H cover on and off street but the 
table extracts only the on street elements. Models J, K and L are for on 
street only so that direct comparisons can be made should OCC wish to 
implement a completely separate service to that provided off street by 
Districts. 

 
5.2.12. The outsourced models E, F, G and J use current contract rates. 
 
5.2.13. The outsourced models H. K and L use average industry rates 

to give a balanced view to inform OCC of potential costs available.  
 

9.3  Model Results 
 

9.3.1 The financial viability has thus been assessed in detail, and on a 
separate basis.   

9.3.2 Each option assumed that as a consequence of better on-street 
enforcement, there would be only a 1% increase in on and off-street 
income.   

 
9.3.3  The base (Appendix D) models assume that all operations are 

carried out in-house, as this is the only reasonable basis for the initial 
financial evaluation.  The analysis produces a marginal impact of CPE, 
which means that it predicts the change to the parking account, and not 
the revised total of the account. 

 
ON STREET CPE FIGURES EXTRACTED FROM EACH MODEL 
 

 
 
 

DISTRICT 

Test 
PCN 
Level 

Collection 
rate 

Number 
of PCNs 

Years to 
cumulative 
operational 

surplus 
On street 
Excluding 

capital 

Annual 
surplus 

(deficit) in 
year 3 

Surplus (Deficit) 
pre-

commencement, 
including capital 

Surplus (Deficit), 
after 5 years, 

including capital 
CDC D £70/£50 75% 5460 never (£127,000) (£349,000) (£1,023,000) 

SODC D1 £70/£50 75% 2015 never (£86,500) (£271,000) (£715,000) 
VWHDC D2 £70/£50 75% 2015 never (£86,300) (£274,000) (£715,000) 

CDC E £70/£50 75% 5460 never (£122,000) (£336,000) (£986,000) 
SODC E1 £70/£50 75% 2015 never (£57,100) (£269,000) (£566,000) 

VWHDC E2 £70/£50 75% 2015 never (£56,700) (£269,600) (£563,000) 
SODC/VWHDC F £70/£50 75% 4032 never (£60,100) (£488,000) (£809.000) 
SODC/VWHDC F1 £70/£50 75% 4030 never (£57,900) (£512,000) (£822,000) 
SODC/VWHDC F2 £70/£50 75% 4030 never (£23,200) (£510,000) (£646,000) 

ALL 3 G £70/£50 75% 9490 never (£166,600) (£843,000) (£1,736,000) 
ALL 3 H £70/£50 75% 9490 never (£84,900) (£836.000) (£1,321,000) 
ALL 3 J £70/£50 75% 9490 never (£127,000) (£843,000) (£1,516,000) 

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 35 - April 2020 

ALL 3 K £70/£50 75% 9490 never (£45,300) £795,000) (£1,060,000) 
ALL 3 L £70/£50 75% 5810 never (£240,000) (£802,000) (£2,026,000) 
ALL 3 N £70/£50 75% 5617 never (£3,218) (£773,000) (£811,000) 

 
 

9.3.4 In summary the assumptions have been made that only the take-
over of on street parking enforcement from the Police be modelled. From the 
base models (D, D1and D2), the further variations were built.  

 
 

9.3.5  The assumption is made that the current parking management 
posts would absorb the new CPE functions for both the in house and external 
operation at District level with minor changes to staff levels required at County 
and extra staff at a lead authority should the centralisation or agency options 
of the services be undertaken. 

 
9.3.6 Comparison of models D to E provides the relative difference when 

outsourcing at individual district levels. Summating E, E1 and E2 against 
model J shows the value in savings of collaborative working to be in the order 
of £600,000 over 5 years using current contract rates. 

 
9.3.7  Further comparison of J to K shows that by using industry rates 

within a new contract, a further saving potential of £456,000 over 5 years is 
possible.  

 
9.3.8 Levels of enforcement are taken as the frequency of visits by 

CEOs to the various key areas in the Districts, and the varying types of 
restrictions in these areas. These options assume minor irregular enforcement 
on Sundays, and during the week, about 1 or 2 visits per day to the 
restrictions, except for the time limited, permitted parking spaces in the main 
town centres, which could be visited more frequently each day.  This higher 
level is necessitated by the requirement to visit a limited waiting area at least 
twice to identify a contravention. 

 
9.3.9 For the fully in house provision options a team of 3.5 extra 

administrative staff, excluding the parking management posts, would be 
required to deal with the correspondence, telephone calls, payments, formal 
representations to the issuing authority and appeals to the external 
adjudicator in relation to the parking tickets issued.  They would require a new 
IT system to support them in this work, as detailed later.  

 
9.3.10 Use of an external service provider model (E), would require no 

new internal administration staff and no upgrade to the IT system other than 
web links to the service providers hosted system. This business case uses the 
current contract rate of £24.91 per hour for a fully equipped, and trained CEO. 
This is over current market rates when transport and overheads are taken in 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 36 - April 2020 

to consideration.  
 

9.3.11 By comparing Appendix K with Appendix L which includes a 40% 
ambassadorial role it is possible to reflect the impact of environmental 
enforcement on the CPE budget. For the 3 District model the environmental 
impact model (Appendix L), is a further £966,000 deficit at £2,026,000 over 5 
years. This is the impact on the parking model as it would require 40% more 
CEO time and although this does include the costs of the CEOs working on 
environmental issue the operation is unsustainable without substantial external 
funding.   

 
9.3.12 The final option (Appendix N), considered is the addition of the 3 

DC’s on street operations to the current Oxford City contract as managed by 
County with the enforcement service and part of the administration outsourced. 
In order for County to adopt the powers required for civil parking using a 
shared enforcement outsourced service provision from the current incumbent 
and providing all the administration functions in-house, total set up costs of a 
maximum £773,000 are estimated for the on street operation (of which 
£693,500 are for the TRO review, Order making and remedial works). The 
Contractor may also spread the repayment of their estimated £25,000 set up 
costs over 5 years although this has been modelled as a lump sum.  

 
9.3.13 There will be less of an impact of CPE on the current off street 

operation as previously detailed. All car parks are currently enforced through 
a Contractor and the main change would be through setting up or amending 
the current IT system for the administration service. If the on street services 
are all provided externally, then an operating deficit of £7,600 per year on 
average is predicted realising a cumulative overall operational deficit including 
start-up expenses of £56,000 after 5 years. This shows that CPE itself is 
marginally not operationally sustainable and it does not recoup the initial set 
up costs. NOTE this is again based on remedial works to TROs at £510,000 
and a TRO digitisation project at £180,000. 

 
9.3.14 It is to be noted that the ultimate consideration is for a countywide 

scheme to embrace all on and off street CPE functions across all Districts and 
the City. This should be through a joint procurement exercise. Considering the 
benefits of joint modelling provided in this report a countywide scheme would 
most certainly be financially beneficial in the long term. Current contractual 
arrangements preclude this as an option at this time, so this current report 
could be considered as the short term solution in Oxfordshire. 

 
 

9.4  Financial Conclusions 
 

9.4.1  The introduction of CPE on its own in-house, is not financially 

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 37 - April 2020 

attractive if the pay back has to cover set up and running costs. From the 
table in 5.3.3 it is clear that the overall position is that the only scenario that 
predicts close to break even for the on street service is the fully external 
service (Appendix K). If CPE were to proceed, then separate funding for the 
set up and running costs would need to be identified in advance, as the return 
on the investment is not enough to make repayments for the overall service. 
The Councils would need to identify budgets to be able to provide funding 
towards the set up and running of the on-street service.  

 
9.4.2  Both the County Council and Districts will have to recognise the 

need for an active approach to enforcement to ensure the financial balance is 
achieved.  

 
9.4.3 There is the potential to introduce on street parking charges to 

cover the costs of CPE. 
 
9.4.4 The Appendix N business case has made the following 

assumptions after consultation with County officers who manage the current 
service. Actual unit costs have been omitted from this addendum to preserve 
commercial confidentiality. 

i. The County Council CPE management team adopt the workload for the 
3 extra Districts without requiring any additional staff. There would be 1 
extra administration post created. 

ii. The current PCN issue rate on street is 0.74 and the business model 
has used this figure to give a lower overall issue rate per deployed hour 
but still retaining the total of 146 deployed hours per week used in 
previous models so as to allow direct comparisons on costs. 

iii. The current contractor provides the pre notice to owner administration 
service. The new model has assumed that this will be retained in-
house for the new contract. 

iv. The model uses the current outsourced charged out hourly rate for a 
CEO, the current charged for transport costs and the salaries for in-
house staff at the County.  

v. The model assumes that only stationary contraventions are to be 
enforced in the first instance and excludes bus lanes.   

10 Other Issues 

10.1  The I.T. Requirements 
 

10.1.1  The question of the provision of I.T. facilities is one which has 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 38 - April 2020 

dominated many CPE projects. Computer systems are fundamental to a 
procedure which processes thousands of parking tickets, permits, payments, 
letters, and formal notices.  The systems required are complex and 
increasingly sophisticated.  There are also relatively few suppliers in the 
market for such systems.  The processes involved for PCNs are substantially 
different from those for ECNs, to the extent that the existing process off street 
may have to be discarded and replaced with a new bespoke system to reach 
a successful operational level if the administration is handled internally at the 
Districts. 

 
10.1.2  It has been established that it takes between 3 and 6 person-

months of work to tailor a new in-house system, once installed, to suit a 
particular method of CPE working by an authority. This work requires a 
capable person with good IT skills, and a full understanding of the processing 
which will be required.  It should not be tackled by just keeping a stage ahead 
of the PCNs being processed but should be undertaken as a major step in the 
project, with the goal of having the system fully implemented for PCN 
processing before the first PCN is issued in a real situation. 

 
10.1.3 An IT plan will be required to review hardware, implement 

enhancements and to avoid disruption to current income stream and 
processing needs.  

 
10.1.4 The use of any current external processing unit would streamline 

this process and would only require the setting up of a web based link to the 
unit. This is strongly recommended as the preferred route for County in terms 
of cost savings and ongoing efficiencies and business continuity should they 
decide to keep the management of the administration in house. Data 
migration of current ECN’s for the off street functions, would not be necessary 
as they could run side by side until the ECN levels are low enough to switch 
the old system off by writing off the remaining ECNs. 

 
10.1.5 It is therefore highly recommended, that whatever the means is 

chosen of providing the administration function, that the IT system is a fully 
hosted web enabled system capable of being rapidly upgraded to keep up 
with the changes that the parking industry will be going through in the next 3 
to 5 years. 

 

10.2  Staff Training 
 

10.2.1 Training of all staff, but in particular the CEO’s, is crucial to the 
success of the project. The developments in training in recent months in this 
industry have put a great deal of emphasis on the assessment of competence 
and reduced the attention on the means of achieving this competence. Thus, 
while it is entirely sensible to want to have the majority of staff qualified at a 

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 39 - April 2020 

recognised level, it is not realistic to expect this to occur without a good 
training plan to get them there, nor without recognising that this will take a 
long time.  It is also important to recognise that staff turnover in the parking 
enforcement business is quite high, and that as a result, many staff will not 
stay long enough in the job to achieve something as long term as formal 
accreditation. 

 
10.2.2  Experience has shown that training is an issue and one where 

the issuing authority should develop a relationship with a competent supplier 
of training courses. The development of such a service could be achieved by 
the establishment of a contract for such services on a call-off basis. This 
would equate with selecting a franchise supplier for training and giving that 
company a preferred right to organise and present courses for a period of 
time. If this occurs, there are now two or three competent companies, plus 
several of the contractors who are prepared to offer training courses for on-
site staff.   

 
10.2.3 Before deployment on-street, there should be compulsory 

attendance for all in-house parking staff at a CEO training course, which will 
teach the basics of a CEO's job under CPE.  Experienced staff will only 
require about a week to reach a suitable stage.  Local content from the police 
and the client should be made available during these courses.  If possible, 
these courses and the trainers should be approved to a recognised standard, 
such as the level 2 qualification as approved by the British Parking 
Association which is the WAMITAB parking qualifications.  

 
10.2.4 During the first month of deployment, a new CEO should be closely 

monitored by one of the supervisory staff.  This monitoring should initially 
include patrolling with the CEO to ensure that the training about dealing with 
people, recognition of offences etc have been absorbed.  It should also 
include observing the results of independent patrolling including PCNs issued, 
rejects, complaints, notebook entries and such visible and tangible evidence 
of performance. 

 
10.2.5  CEOs should be encouraged to progress through on the job 

training, further formal training sessions, and on the job counselling.  This 
process will take several months in every case, and it would be unrealistic to 
expect to have a team of qualified CEOs for a period of approaching two 
years from the start of operations. 

 
10.2.6 For the administrative staff, training should be provided for all 

aspects, including the CEO’s job.  They will also need training in the 
processes, including the IT aspects of the workflow.  Experience has shown 
that they will require documented procedures to help them to standardise the 
formalities of PCN processing, and then training in these procedures.  It is 
therefore recommended that as a part of the set-up of the administration by 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 40 - April 2020 

the contractor, they should provide and help develop documented procedures. 
 

10.2.7 Should County decide to contract out all or part of the service 
provisions then the responsibility and costs of training will fall to the 
contractor. The standards expected would then be specified in the tender 
documents as a minimum level to be attained by the CEOs and administration 
staff. This will greatly reduce the workload on in-house staff during 
implementation compared to an in house service. 

 
 

10.3  Key Decisions 
 

10.3.1  The following issues are those to which OCC and Districts will 
have to give attention if a decision is taken to adopt the powers: 

 
 Whether to use an internal or external service provision 
 How to manage the project internally 
 How to establish a Steering Group for the project 
 How the internal organisation should be structured 
 How extensive a review of the TROs is required, and how that 

should be organised. A full survey and GIS digitisation process 
are recommended as the way forward. 

 How to prepare the TROs for CPE enforcement 
 When to start the operation of the powers 
 Who to consult formally 
 How and when to apply for the powers 
 What form a public consultation or information campaign should 

take 
 How to upgrade the IT system for parking administration if 

internal 
 How and when enforcement is required through deployment 

patterns 
 Where and how people should be able to pay their PCNs 
 What extra staff accommodation may be required  
 Where the issue of residents’ parking schemes sits with CPE 
 Agreement with Police on how powers will transfer 
 Client side staffing - handling of appeals, enforcement agents 

etc 
 How to handle suspensions, dispensations etc 
 Telephone call handling 

 
10.3.2  A high level project plan setting out these tasks and their related 

actions is included as Appendix B. 
 

11  Key Conclusions 

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 41 - April 2020 

 
7.1. The main conclusions from this exercise are: 

 
7.1.1. The project overall will be marginally operationally in deficit should 

existing contracts and back office systems be utilised in the short term and 
a minimal enforcement regime adopted.  

 
7.1.2. Further decisions on the potential to introduce paid for parking on street 

should be considered in order to strengthen financial viability by covering 
any deficits. 

 
7.1.3. An active programme of enforcement is a basic requirement for a 

financially viable project; this applies to the issuing of parking tickets, and to 
the pursuit of debt. 

 
7.1.4. It is recommended that the introduction of dual role officers undertaking 

civil and criminal enforcement is not pursued at the outset. Should this be a 
requirement of the service then it is further recommended that this is set up 
and provided as a separate function and that a separate funding stream 
outside of the parking budget is identified due to the high costs of criminal 
enforcement. 

 
7.1.5. During the course of the report it became clear that there is an appetite 

for some collaboration within the County. None of the 3 Districts have 
adopted the powers for CPE. The majority of savings are made when 
setting up a new on street service separate to the existing off street service. 

 

12 Main Recommendations 
7.1.6. To consider centralising and managing the CPE functions in house for on 

street separate to the off street services. 
 

7.1.7. To outsource the enforcement and part of the administration services by 
utilising the existing Oxford City contract should this route be legally 
available. This scenario is financially modelled in Appendix N 

 
7.1.8. To decide on whether to introduce paid for parking on street in order to 

help CPE and to allow for more Highway initiatives to support CPE and 
traffic management in general. 

 
7.1.9. It is recommended that the introduction of dual role officers undertaking 

civil and criminal enforcement is not pursued at the outset. Should this be a 
requirement of the service then it is further recommended that this is set up 
and provided as a separate function and that a separate funding stream 
outside of the parking budget is identified due to the high costs of criminal 
enforcement. 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 42 - April 2020 

 
7.1.10. Districts to be given the option of buying in to the OCC on street services 

contract to include their off street operations at any time they wish to do so. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key Assumptions for the Financial Options 
 
The outsourced models made the following major assumptions: 
 

a) The Civil Enforcement Officers spend 100% of their time on enforcement; 
b) There are no changes to car park charging from the current regime to 

consider.  
c) Use of on and off-street charged spaces would show a 1% increase in income 

as a consequence of displacement from illegal parking on-street; 
d) All set-up costs would include a full month's expenses prior to 

commencement; 
e) All events would occur at the same time ie there would be no consideration for 

phasing any part of the project; 
f) All on street set-up costs would be met by the County Council 
g) 75% of all PCNs would be paid, 63% would be paid at discount, 10% at face 

value and 2% at the incremented value; 
h) Current staffing levels as shown in the base model; 
i) £10,000 to be spent on PR before CPE starts, £12,000 on work to establish 

the project, and £690,000 to undertake a TRO review and remedy defects in 
signs and lines; 

j) All CEOs to be equipped with hand-held electronic ticket issuing machines, as 
well as mobile phones or androids; 

k) CEOs to have shared cars / scooters for mobility; (Contractors choice) 
l) No TUPE costs from the Police; 
m) Off-street levels of enforcement and ticket issuing to remain at existing levels; 
n) 0% sickness level in enforcement staff as they are provided externally 
o) No hours per day per CEO to be lost in travel and administration; 
p) On-street, CEOs issuing around 180 PCNs per week across the 3 Districts. 

(26 per day) 
q) PCNs to be paid between 1 month and 6 months from date of issue, 

depending upon level of payment; 
r) 3 months to reach operational levels of ticket issuing; 
s) All regulations to be enforced, the frequency to depend on type and location; 

 
 
End of Report 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 

RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 43 - April 2020 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A  

APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX C  

APPENDIX D  

APPENDIX E  

APPENDIX F  

APPENDIX G  

APPENDIX H  

APPENDIX J 

APPENDIX K  

APPENDIX L 

APPENDIX N 

Service provision Options  

Project plan for Implementation 

The Financial Model – Diagram and Notes 

The Summary of the 3 individual Base Models all in house at a 

£70/£50 PCN. (D, D1 and D2). ON and Off street combined 

service. 

The Summary of the 3 individual Models with all services 

externalised using current contract rates (E, E1 and E2). ON and 

Off street combined service. 

The Summary of the joint SODC and VWHDC Models with 

all services in house (F) or externalised (F1) using current 

contract rates and (F2) using industry rates. ON and Off street 

combined service. 

The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using current contract rates. (G). ON and Off street 

combined service. 

The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using industry average contract rates. (H). ON and Off 

street combined service. 

The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using current contract rates. (J). ON street only services. 

The FULL joint model for all 3 Districts, External service provision 

using industry average contract rates. (K). ON street only services. 

APPENDIX K; with 40% dual role parking and environment 

enforcement and administration.  

The FULL joint model for all 3 Districts, External service provision 

using current Oxford City rates with central management by 

Oxfordshire County Council (N). ON street only services. 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 

RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 44 - April 2020 

APPENDIX A  Service provision Options 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9



Appendix A 
Briefing Note on Contracting Options 

1. Advantages and disadvantages of outsourcing the CPE service provision:

Advantages of contracting out (External Enforcement): 
1.1. Best approach to consistency of service delivery across the County and District and to 

manage change. Any variations in PCN issue levels per deployed hour can be better 
managed to ensure effective enforcement where and when it is most needed across the 
County/District.  

1.2. More likely to generate a surplus or smaller deficit than an in house provision. 
1.3. A contractor can provide all of the capital to set-up the contract e.g. the hand helds, 

software, accommodation, uniforms, staff recruitment, training and equipment 
1.4.  A contractor can provide, if necessary, other capital and resources e.g. to remedy the 

signs and lines; 
1.5.  Should it be required a contractor could assist in the provision of capital funding. 
1.6. A contractor will issue more parking tickets from the same staff than an in-house team; 

this can also be negative however, as the need is for quality of tickets, not quantity. 
However, quality contracts are being used more and more utilising key performance 
indicators as a measure of the contractors' ability to undertake the service.  

1.7.  Contractors are far more flexible e.g. for seasonal workloads: 
1.8.  Contractors can have fewer industrial relations issues. 
1.9.  A contractor will cover the high costs of recruitment and retention experienced in the 

industry and will be better placed to replace staff on a regular basis. 
1.10. A contract must be established to pay for deployed (not employed) staff, freeing the 

Council of issues about sickness etc; 
1.11. Experienced contractors are well versed in arranging TUPE transfers should they 

be required. 

Risks of contracting out: 
1.12. A client side is required to control and monitor the work of the contractor, but this 

is minimal compared to the numbers required when running the service entirely in- house. 
1.13. In some instances, contracting out may cost the same or can sometimes cost more 

than doing the work in-house when considered say over a five-year period; this is rare and 
is usually where a contractor replaces an experienced in-house service. 

1.14. The Council will need to ensure a very high-quality contract specification – it will 
be critical to the success of the contract; 

1.15. Contractors are commercial businesses - they are there to make profit for their 
companies and shareholders; The Council will need to work hard to make sure that 
contractors clearly understand and acknowledge the specific transport-related and wider 
corporate objectives, and align their practice accordingly; 

1.16. Stereotyped images of ‘overzealous’ enforcement can engender unwelcome 
publicity, especially where they are not directly associated with the Council – careful 
management of publicity will be required; 

1.17. Contractors may attempt to increase their profits after the initial contract has been 
acquired, through contract extensions and re-negotiations - again a strong client side will 
be needed to maintain best value in service delivery and to protect and control the 
council’s position. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



Contracting out – Safeguarding the risks 
 
2. Getting the Contract Specification right 
 

2.1. As with any contract, the responsibilities of the contractor must be clearly defined, to 
be achievable and to be capable of being monitored easily by the client side, to ensure 
contract compliance. The work to be defined cannot be established as a normal 
“output” specification. It is impractical to set 'output' targets for compliance on the 
streets, as this is impossible to monitor. It is illegal to set targets for the issue of parking 
tickets, as the resulting enforcement could constitute a public relations disaster for the 
Council. The only way to define an output specification is to require a contractor to 
carry out a defined level of enforcement, specified as a number of deployed hours per 
week covering certain types of locations. However, parking enforcement is not static in 
the same way as for example, waste collection may be. Instead, parking enforcement 
has to be very reactive, as patterns of driver behaviour respond to effective 
enforcement. Experience suggests that the best way to define a contract is to define it as 
a labour-based contract, and to define the output in terms of the deployment of skilled, 
equipped staff for certain times. 

 
2.2. A contract of this nature should therefore include the requirement to provide a complete 

work force for the enforcement duties specified by the client. The inputs and outputs from 
the contract should be kept to the absolute minimum, and the contractor should have a 
clear, simple definition of what has to be achieved in order for success to be attained. This 
means that the client should specify what has to be enforced, and what minimum level of 
resource is appropriate for that requirement, and the contractor should then be free to 
deliver that service in the most effective manner they can. All the contractors in the 
market are very skilled at knowing how best to do this and respond best when they are 
given a clear requirement leaving them to get on with delivering the service. Their 
contract terms should contain KPI’s to ensure they do actually deliver the successful 
enforcement, which is their objective. The only other issue then is the specification of the 
output in terms of correct, valid parking tickets; this is easily handled using the input 
specification to the Council's ticket processing system. 

 
 
3. The Client Side 
 

3.1. If a service is contracted out, there is an implication that the contract has to be managed 
by the Council. This task requires an experienced person and that experience has to be 
both in parking management, and in the management of contracts.  This implies that it 
requires a mature, experienced person, and that the costs of such a post are the 
equivalent of a Parking Manager post albeit in a part time role.  

 
3.2. In addition, it is required partly by legislation and partly by good practice, that certain 

functions are retained internally, regardless of the decision on contracting out. The 
issuing Council is required to consider formal representations to the issued Penalty 
Charge Notices, from aggrieved drivers in this case the County or its agent whichever 
has the name on the back of the PCN. Then, the administration, from first stage 
representations through to debt registration, would be undertaken by the central ticket unit. 

 
 

Page 100

Agenda Item 9



4. Conclusions 
 

4.1. Contracting out will be operationally successful; 
4.2. There is an active market for the provision of services; 
4.3. If contracting out is to be considered, the optimum arrangement for tendering out within 

parking services would be to: 
 

 Invite tenders for on street enforcement, 
 Define the contract specification as one to provide a labour force, suitably trained, 

managed and equipped for the enforcement duties; 
 Define the client role to manage the contractual aspects on a hands-off basis. 

 
 

4.4. There will be a need to retain an in-house management function. 
4.5. Contracting out in itself will take about 6 to 9 months to award of contract, and 3 months 

for the contract lead-in time, if handled under OJEU rules.   
4.6. Contracting out should be linked to quality Key Performance Indicators in the contract 

documents. 
 
5.        Recommendations 
 

5.1.  That the provision of the centralised outsourced enforcement is procured through an 
external contractor using an invited tender procedure. 

5.2.  That the external contractor deals with all issues of TUPE should they arise. 
5.3.  That the service delivery be managed under an agency agreement with the County 

Council. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 45 - April 2020 

APPENDIX B  Project plan for Implementation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 102

Agenda Item 9



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Implementation of CPE 450 days Mon 30/03/20 Fri 17/12/21

2 Decision to adopt the powers by Cabinet 1 day Mon 30/03/20 Mon 30/03/20

3 Formal resolutions required 39 days Tue 31/03/20 Fri 22/05/20

4 Agreement on business strategy for implementation 69 days Tue 31/03/20 Fri 03/07/20

5 Prepare Parking Policy, Enforcement Policy etc 135 days Mon 19/04/21 Fri 22/10/21

6 Prepare CEA Application 40 days Mon 02/11/20 Fri 25/12/20

7 Consult on draft Application 75 days Mon 28/12/20 Fri 09/04/21

8 Submit formal Application to DfT 1 day Mon 12/04/21 Mon 12/04/21

9 Formal Designation Order ready from Parliament 144 days Tue 13/04/21 Fri 29/10/21

10 Advertise Orders, SOS approval etc 70 days Mon 26/07/21 Fri 29/10/21

11 Review IT capability and website 240 days Mon 06/07/20 Fri 04/06/21

12 Develop PR strategy 44 days Mon 01/03/21 Thu 29/04/21

13 Deliver PR strategy 166 days Fri 30/04/21 Fri 17/12/21

14 Contract out any external services to be provided 210 days Mon 05/10/20 Fri 23/07/21

15 Contract set-up period 90 days Mon 26/07/21 Fri 26/11/21

16 Resolve all staffing issues 140 days Mon 22/03/21 Fri 01/10/21

17 Train current and new staff (IN HOUSE) 30 days Mon 04/10/21 Fri 12/11/21

18 Agree with Contractor and Document  procedures for enforcement 90 days Mon 26/07/21 Fri 26/11/21

19 Review on-street TROs and prepare new consolidated Orders. 
Undertake Remedial works

394 days Tue 31/03/20 Fri 01/10/21

20 Review off-street Orders and signage and change as required 140 days Mon 03/05/21 Fri 12/11/21

21 Set up all electronic links to internal and external IT systems 110 days Mon 14/06/21 Fri 12/11/21

22 Enforcement commences 0 days Mon 29/11/21 Mon 29/11/21 29/11

Qtr 1, 2020Qtr 2, 2020Qtr 3, 2020Qtr 4, 2020Qtr 1, 2021Qtr 2, 2021Qtr 3, 2021Qtr 4, 2021Qtr 1, 2022

APP B - IMPLEMENTATION OF CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT

RTA Associates Ltd Page 1 Date printed: Tue 19/11/19 ;SO Appendix B CPE Project plan (21 months)  -High level  file:

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 46 - April 2020 

APPENDIX C  The Financial Model – Diagram and Notes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 9



2[IRUGVKLUH�&RXQW\ 
&RXQFLO 

 
6WUXFWXUH�RI�)LQDQFLDO�
$VVHVVPHQW�0RGHO� 

2Q-VWUHHW�FKDUJLQJ�- 
,PSDFW�RI�&3(�RQ�UHYHQXH�

VWUHDP� 

2Q-VWUHHW�HQIRUFHPHQW�-�
HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�QHHG� 

 

(VWLPDWLRQ�RI�YROXPH�RI�
3HQDOW\�&KDUJH�1RWLFHV�WR�EH�

LVVXHG��� 

(VWLPDWLRQ�RI�QXPEHU�RI�
&(2V��UHTXLUHG� 

'HWDLOHG�2SHUDWLRQDO�
UHYHQXH�FRVWV�HVWLPDWHV 

 

'HWDLOHG�FDVKIORZ�DQDO\VLV 

(VWLPDWLRQ�RI�PDLQ�LQFRPH�
VRXUFHV 

 

(VWLPDWLRQ��RI�
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�VWDII��

UHTXLUHG� 

(VWLPDWLRQ�RI�3&1��LQFRPH 

6800$5<�2)�$//�
,1&20(�$1'�(;3(16(6�

29(5���<($56 

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9



 

 Page - 1 - 

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT 

THE FINANCIAL MODEL 
 
The attached sheets make up the current drafts of the financial models designed to assess the 
impact on the Council of adopting the powers to undertake civil parking enforcement (CPE) 
throughout the 3 Districts, by the transfer of responsibility from the Police.  These notes are 
intended to help you to understand the models, how they are built, and how they can be used. 
The drafts of the model are at an early stage in development; we will be continuing to refine the 
model with input from everyone who has an interest in ensuring they are as accurate as is 
possible.    If you want to ask any questions, you should contact, Peter Lowe on 01492 585055 
or email:  plowe@rtaassociates.co.uk 
 
Each model is a large Excel spreadsheet, made up of several inter-connected sheets.  Each sheet 
addresses one or more major aspects of the overall assessment.  Each sheet is described in some 
detail below.  The whole model is based on the principle of assessing the marginal impact of 
CPE on the overall parking account for the Council.  By that it is meant that we are assessing the 
changes to the costs and income for the Council as a consequence of the introduction of CPE.  
The model also recognises that there will be many in-direct impacts of CPE (costs and revenue), 
and where it is considered appropriate, these are also included within the assessment. 
 
A diagram of the structure of the current model is attached, to help with the understanding of the 
way the model works.  The model has facilities for a wide range of other aspects for assessment; 
if any particular aspect is not used for this version of the model, that function is “hidden”.  Any 
such aspect can be brought into use within the model if it is considered relevant, and if the 
required data is available. 
 
The model is very comprehensive, but as a result, it is only capable of being modified by 
experienced staff from this consultancy; we do not let anyone have electronic excel copies of the 
model for this very reason. 
 
The model is designed to have a "Base Model" which is a straightforward, basic implementation 
of CPE, and in the form which we think is likely to represent the most probable outcome for an 
in house provision.  The model can be varied very easily, in order to produce a variety of 
different possible outcomes.  In this way, we can carry out various sensitivity tests on the 
predictions, and produce variants with different scenarios.  However, a word of caution is 
advisable at this stage; the model makes possible the creation of an infinite range of assessments. 
 It is our experience that: 
 
 a) only one type of change should be assessed within each variant, in order to 

understand what the impact of the change has been; 
 b) the number of variants to be tested should be kept to the minimum, otherwise the 

volume of information become difficult to assimilate. 
 
Each sheet is named at the top of each page, and these correspond to the descriptions given 
below.  The pages are numbered sequentially throughout the document, although with each 
version of the model, these may of course, change. 

Page 106

Agenda Item 9



 

 Page - 2 - 

The Sheets are: 
 
1 Summary 
 
 This is the top level analysis of the results of the whole model.  There are almost no 

calculations carried out at this level, as they are all detailed in their relevant sheet further 
down in the model.  The first page shows a few major parameters used within the model 
to test some of the more obvious variants.  The second page is the summary over a five 
year period of all sources of income and expense which have been included in that 
version.  It also shows the expenditure prior to start day ie when the new enforcement 
commences, split between capital and revenue expenses.  The lines at the bottom of the 
page show the net annual position, then the cumulative position over the period of 
analysis, then a discounted cashflow analysis of the same period.  This analysis assumes 
that all aspects of the analysis occur on start day ie there is no allowance made for any 
impact from different timings of the various aspects 

 
  2 Workings 
 
 This sheet performs 2 major aspects; the first page shows the calculations of various 

sources of income.  In some cases, these use for example, the estimates of the numbers 
of Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) produced in another sheet, to predict the resulting 
income. 

 
 Because this is a marginal assessment, the incomes estimates are the net impact of the 

change of introducing CPE eg the current ECN income is netted off against the predicted 
PCN income to give a net increase in parking ticket income.  This principle applies 
throughout this sheet, so for example, if the predicted numbers of CEOs is x, and the 
current number of CEOs employed is y, the model will carry forward (x - y) as the 
financial consequence of CPE. 

 
 The rest of the pages in this sheet calculate the expenses associated with the five major 

groupings of staff required: 
 
  * operational management 
  * on-street enforcement 
  * off-street enforcement 
  * notice and permit processing 
  * pay and display equipment management 
 
 The last few pages contain a variety of sections of calculations, all of which are used in 

earlier stages to calculate other items eg the costs of running motor vehicles to support 
the CEOs. 

 
3 CEOs 
 
 This sheet uses the information coming forward from the base calculations of the needs 

for enforcement staff, in order to calculate the numbers of staff required to carry out 

Page 107

Agenda Item 9



 

 Page - 3 - 

enforcement.  Allowance is made for the working patterns of staff, for sickness, holidays 
etc, to project the actual availability of staff for enforcement duties.  The predictions of 
the numbers of enforcement staff are based on 2 tables, which give the numbers of staff 
by geographic area, and the required hours of enforcement for these staff. 

 
4 PCNs 
 
 Using information about the numbers of CEOs required for the various aspects of the 

duties, this sheet applies predictions of the numbers of PCNs which each CEO is likely 
to be able to issue in the varying areas of the Council which are to be enforced, and thus 
arrives at a predicted annual total of PCNs. 

 
5  Cashflow  
 
 The income from the issue of parking tickets will arrive over a period of time following 

the issue of the ticket, which means that this timing impact has to be assessed, in order to 
predict the income stream to the Council.  This sheet takes all the major income and 
expenditure streams, and makes a monthly assessment of the net position over a 36 
month period, which is then used to create the Summary analyses.  After 36 months, it is 
then assumed that the net position monthly has been established, and this stable balance 
is applied for the remainder of the 5 year terms shown on the Summary.  

 
 
 
 

Page 108

Agenda Item 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 47 - April 2020 

APPENDIX D  The Summary of the 3 individual Base Models all in house at a 

£70/£50 PCN. (D, D1 and D2). ON and Off street combined 

service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: Base D
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Cherwell District Council

VERSION: BASE MODEL D
ALL in house on and off street combined

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: Base D
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Cherwell District Council

VERSION: BASE MODEL D
ALL in house on and off street combined

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 16,585 16,734 16,734 16,734 16,734

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £175,817 £209,927 £209,927 £209,927 £209,927
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £14,933 £14,933 £14,933 £14,933 £14,933
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £4,473 £17,890 £17,890 £17,890 £17,890

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £195,223 £242,750 £242,750 £242,750 £242,750

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £293,750 £7,355 £88,256 £90,904 £93,631 £96,440 £99,333
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £17,350 £9,933 £119,200 £122,776 £126,460 £130,253 £134,161
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £2,325 £2,325 £1,194 £1,229 £1,266 £1,304 £1,343
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £31,550 £13,903 £64,231 £66,158 £68,143 £70,187 £72,293
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £344,975 £33,516 £272,881 £281,068 £289,500 £298,185 £307,130

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£344,975) (£33,516) (£77,659) (£38,318) (£46,750) (£55,435) (£64,381)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£33,516) (£111,174) (£149,492) (£196,242) (£251,677) (£316,058)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£378,491) (£456,149) (£494,467) (£541,217) (£596,652) (£661,033)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£106,779) (£140,881) (£180,134) (£224,043) (£272,152)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£451,754) (£485,856) (£525,109) (£569,018) (£617,127)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: Base D
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Cherwell District Council

VERSION: BASE MODEL D

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT POST-DPE.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 16,585 16,734 16,734 16,734 16,734
ON-STREET: 32.6% 5,312                             5,460                             5,460                             5,460                             5,460                             

OFF-STREET: 67.4% 11,274                           11,274                           11,274                           11,274                           11,274                           

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 175,817 £ 209,927 £ 209,927 £ 209,927 £ 209,927
ON-STREET (Higher): 28.4% £ 92,940 £ 119,055 £ 119,055 £ 119,055 £ 119,055
ON-STREET (Lower): 8.7% £ 28,451 £ 36,446 £ 36,446 £ 36,446 £ 36,446

new OFF-STREET 62.9% £ 263,673 £ 263,673 £ 263,673 £ 263,673 £ 263,673
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 4,473 £ 17,890 £ 17,890 £ 17,890 £ 17,890
ON-STREET: 32.6% £ 1,459 £ 5,838 £ 5,838 £ 5,838 £ 5,838

OFF-STREET: 67.4% £ 3,013 £ 12,052 £ 12,052 £ 12,052 £ 12,052

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 293,750 £ 7,355 £ 88,256 £ 90,904 £ 93,631 £ 96,440 £ 99,333
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 290,300 £ 7,268 £ 88,256 £ 90,904 £ 93,631 £ 96,440 £ 99,333

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 3,450 £ 86 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 17,350 £ 9,933 £ 119,200 £ 122,776 £ 126,460 £ 130,253 £ 134,161
ON-STREET: 100% £ 17,350 £ 9,933 £ 119,200 £ 122,776 £ 126,460 £ 130,253 £ 134,161

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 2,325 £ 2,325 £ 1,194 £ 1,229 £ 1,266 £ 1,304 £ 1,343
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 2,325 £ 2,325 £ 1,194 £ 1,229 £ 1,266 £ 1,304 £ 1,343

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 31,550 £ 13,903 £ 64,231 £ 66,158 £ 68,143 £ 70,187 £ 72,293
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 10,295 £ 13,903 £ 64,231 £ 66,158 £ 68,143 £ 70,187 £ 72,293

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 21,255 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 122,851 £ 161,339 £ 161,339 £ 161,339 £ 161,339
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 72,372 £ 81,411 £ 81,411 £ 81,411 £ 81,411
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 195,223 £ 242,750 £ 242,750 £ 242,750 £ 242,750

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 317,945 £ 31,104 £ 271,688 £ 279,839 £ 288,234 £ 296,881 £ 305,787
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 27,030 £ 2,411 £ 1,194 £ 1,229 £ 1,266 £ 1,304 £ 1,343
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 344,975 £ 33,516 £ 272,881 £ 281,068 £ 289,500 £ 298,185 £ 307,130

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 317,945) (£ 31,104) (£ 148,837) (£ 118,500) (£ 126,895) (£ 135,542) (£ 144,449)
OFF-STREET: (£ 27,030) (£ 2,411) £ 71,178 £ 80,182 £ 80,145 £ 80,107 £ 80,068

(£ 344,975) (£ 33,516) (£ 77,659) (£ 38,318) (£ 46,750) (£ 55,435) (£ 64,381)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 31,104) (£ 179,941) (£ 298,441) (£ 425,336) (£ 560,879) (£ 705,327)
OFF-STREET: (£ 2,411) £ 68,767 £ 148,949 £ 229,094 £ 309,201 £ 389,269

£ 0 (£ 33,516) (£ 111,174) (£ 149,492) (£ 196,242) (£ 251,677) (£ 316,058)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 317,945) (£ 349,049) (£ 497,886) (£ 616,386) (£ 743,282) (£ 878,824) (£ 1,023,272)
OFF-STREET: (£ 27,030) (£ 29,441) £ 41,737 £ 121,919 £ 202,064 £ 282,171 £ 362,239

(£ 344,975) (£ 378,491) (£ 456,149) (£ 494,467) (£ 541,217) (£ 596,652) (£ 661,033)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: D1
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire District Council

VERSION: MODEL D1
ALL IN HOUSE
V3

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: D1
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire District Council

VERSION: MODEL D1
ALL IN HOUSE
V3

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 3,864 3,919 3,919 3,919 3,919

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £35,950 £45,465 £45,465 £45,465 £45,465
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £8,626 £8,626 £8,626 £8,626 £8,626
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £358 £358 £358 £358 £358
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £921 £3,683 £3,683 £3,683 £3,683

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £45,854 £58,132 £58,132 £58,132 £58,132

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £232,050 £3,620 £43,438 £44,742 £46,084 £47,466 £48,890
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £6,185 £3,514 £42,171 £43,437 £44,740 £46,082 £47,464
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £1,985 £2,250 £5,937 £6,115 £6,298 £6,487 £6,682
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £29,650 £12,303 £52,239 £53,806 £55,421 £57,083 £58,796
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £269,870 £21,687 £143,786 £148,099 £152,542 £157,119 £161,832

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£269,870) (£21,687) (£97,932) (£89,968) (£94,411) (£98,987) (£103,700)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£21,687) (£119,619) (£209,587) (£303,998) (£402,984) (£506,685)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£291,557) (£389,489) (£479,457) (£573,868) (£672,854) (£776,555)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£114,076) (£194,147) (£273,416) (£351,823) (£429,314)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£383,946) (£464,017) (£543,286) (£621,693) (£699,184)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: D1
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire District Council

VERSION: MODEL D1

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT POST-DPE.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 3,864 3,919 3,919 3,919 3,919
ON-STREET: 51.4% 1,961                             2,016                             2,016                             2,016                             2,016                             

OFF-STREET: 48.6% 1,903                             1,903                             1,903                             1,903                             1,903                             

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 35,950 £ 45,465 £ 45,465 £ 45,465 £ 45,465
ON-STREET (Higher): 40.6% £ 36,668 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953
ON-STREET (Lower): 12.4% £ 11,230 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461

new OFF-STREET 47.0% £ 50,861 £ 50,861 £ 50,861 £ 50,861 £ 50,861
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 62,810) (£ 62,810) (£ 62,810) (£ 62,810) (£ 62,810)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358
ON-STREET: 100% £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 921 £ 3,683 £ 3,683 £ 3,683 £ 3,683
ON-STREET: 51.4% £ 474 £ 1,894 £ 1,894 £ 1,894 £ 1,894

OFF-STREET: 48.6% £ 447 £ 1,789 £ 1,789 £ 1,789 £ 1,789

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 232,050 £ 3,620 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 229,950 £ 3,587 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 2,100 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 6,185 £ 3,514 £ 42,171 £ 43,437 £ 44,740 £ 46,082 £ 47,464
ON-STREET: 100% £ 6,185 £ 3,514 £ 42,171 £ 43,437 £ 44,740 £ 46,082 £ 47,464

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 1,985 £ 2,250 £ 5,937 £ 6,115 £ 6,298 £ 6,487 £ 6,682
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 1,985 £ 2,250 £ 5,937 £ 6,115 £ 6,298 £ 6,487 £ 6,682

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 29,650 £ 12,303 £ 52,239 £ 53,806 £ 55,421 £ 57,083 £ 58,796
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 15,249 £ 12,303 £ 52,239 £ 53,806 £ 55,421 £ 57,083 £ 58,796

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 14,401 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 48,730 £ 59,666 £ 59,666 £ 59,666 £ 59,666
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 2,876) (£ 1,534) (£ 1,534) (£ 1,534) (£ 1,534)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 45,854 £ 58,132 £ 58,132 £ 58,132 £ 58,132

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 251,384 £ 19,405 £ 137,849 £ 141,985 £ 146,244 £ 150,631 £ 155,150
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 18,486 £ 2,250 £ 5,937 £ 6,115 £ 6,298 £ 6,487 £ 6,682
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 269,870 £ 21,655 £ 143,786 £ 148,099 £ 152,542 £ 157,119 £ 161,832

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 251,384) (£ 19,405) (£ 89,119) (£ 82,319) (£ 86,578) (£ 90,966) (£ 95,485)
OFF-STREET: (£ 18,486) (£ 2,250) (£ 8,813) (£ 7,649) (£ 7,832) (£ 8,021) (£ 8,216)

(£ 269,870) (£ 21,655) (£ 97,932) (£ 89,968) (£ 94,411) (£ 98,987) (£ 103,700)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 19,405) (£ 108,524) (£ 190,843) (£ 277,421) (£ 368,387) (£ 463,871)
OFF-STREET: (£ 2,250) (£ 11,063) (£ 18,711) (£ 26,544) (£ 34,565) (£ 42,781)

£ 0 (£ 21,655) (£ 119,587) (£ 209,554) (£ 303,965) (£ 402,952) (£ 506,652)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 251,384) (£ 270,788) (£ 359,908) (£ 442,227) (£ 528,805) (£ 619,770) (£ 715,255)
OFF-STREET: (£ 18,486) (£ 20,736) (£ 29,549) (£ 37,198) (£ 45,030) (£ 53,051) (£ 61,267)

(£ 269,870) (£ 291,525) (£ 389,457) (£ 479,424) (£ 573,835) (£ 672,822) (£ 776,522)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: D2
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Vale of the White Horse District Council

VERSION: MODEL D2
ALL IN HOUSE
V3

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: D2
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Vale of the White Horse District Council

VERSION: MODEL D2
ALL IN HOUSE
V3

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 3,244 3,299 3,299 3,299 3,299

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £33,004 £40,650 £40,650 £40,650 £40,650
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £3,336 £3,336 £3,336 £3,336 £3,336
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £178 £178 £178 £178 £178
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £914 £3,655 £3,655 £3,655 £3,655

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £37,432 £47,820 £47,820 £47,820 £47,820

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £232,050 £3,620 £43,438 £44,742 £46,084 £47,466 £48,890
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £6,185 £3,514 £42,171 £43,437 £44,740 £46,082 £47,464
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £1,985 £2,250 £5,937 £6,115 £6,298 £6,487 £6,682
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £29,650 £12,296 £52,147 £53,711 £55,323 £56,982 £58,692
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £269,870 £21,680 £143,693 £148,004 £152,444 £157,018 £161,728

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£269,870) (£21,680) (£106,261) (£100,184) (£104,625) (£109,198) (£113,908)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£21,680) (£127,941) (£228,125) (£332,750) (£441,948) (£555,856)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£291,550) (£397,811) (£497,995) (£602,620) (£711,818) (£825,726)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£121,926) (£211,090) (£298,935) (£385,430) (£470,549)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£391,796) (£480,960) (£568,805) (£655,300) (£740,419)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: D2
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Vale of the White Horse District Council

VERSION: MODEL D2

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT POST-DPE.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 3,244 3,299 3,299 3,299 3,299
ON-STREET: 61.1% 1,961                             2,016                             2,016                             2,016                             2,016                             

OFF-STREET: 38.9% 1,283                             1,283                             1,283                             1,283                             1,283                             

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 33,004 £ 40,650 £ 40,650 £ 40,650 £ 40,650
ON-STREET (Higher): 49.7% £ 38,099 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953
ON-STREET (Lower): 15.2% £ 11,669 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461

new OFF-STREET 35.1% £ 30,997 £ 30,997 £ 30,997 £ 30,997 £ 30,997
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178
ON-STREET: 100% £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 914 £ 3,655 £ 3,655 £ 3,655 £ 3,655
ON-STREET: 61.1% £ 558 £ 2,234 £ 2,234 £ 2,234 £ 2,234

OFF-STREET: 38.9% £ 355 £ 1,421 £ 1,421 £ 1,421 £ 1,421

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 232,050 £ 3,620 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 229,950 £ 3,587 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 2,100 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 6,185 £ 3,514 £ 42,171 £ 43,437 £ 44,740 £ 46,082 £ 47,464
ON-STREET: 100% £ 6,185 £ 3,514 £ 42,171 £ 43,437 £ 44,740 £ 46,082 £ 47,464

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 1,985 £ 2,250 £ 5,937 £ 6,115 £ 6,298 £ 6,487 £ 6,682
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 1,985 £ 2,250 £ 5,937 £ 6,115 £ 6,298 £ 6,487 £ 6,682

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 29,650 £ 12,296 £ 52,147 £ 53,711 £ 55,323 £ 56,982 £ 58,692
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 18,119 £ 12,296 £ 52,147 £ 53,711 £ 55,323 £ 56,982 £ 58,692

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 11,531 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 50,504 £ 59,826 £ 59,826 £ 59,826 £ 59,826
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 13,072) (£ 12,006) (£ 12,006) (£ 12,006) (£ 12,006)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 37,432 £ 47,820 £ 47,820 £ 47,820 £ 47,820

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 254,254 £ 19,397 £ 137,757 £ 141,889 £ 146,146 £ 150,530 £ 155,046
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 15,616 £ 2,250 £ 5,937 £ 6,115 £ 6,298 £ 6,487 £ 6,682
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 269,870 £ 21,647 £ 143,693 £ 148,004 £ 152,444 £ 157,018 £ 161,728

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 254,254) (£ 19,397) (£ 87,253) (£ 82,064) (£ 86,320) (£ 90,705) (£ 95,221)
OFF-STREET: (£ 15,616) (£ 2,250) (£ 19,009) (£ 18,121) (£ 18,304) (£ 18,493) (£ 18,688)

(£ 269,870) (£ 21,647) (£ 106,261) (£ 100,184) (£ 104,625) (£ 109,198) (£ 113,908)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 19,397) (£ 106,649) (£ 188,713) (£ 275,034) (£ 365,738) (£ 460,959)
OFF-STREET: (£ 2,250) (£ 21,259) (£ 39,379) (£ 57,683) (£ 76,176) (£ 94,864)

£ 0 (£ 21,647) (£ 127,908) (£ 228,093) (£ 332,717) (£ 441,915) (£ 555,823)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 254,254) (£ 273,651) (£ 360,904) (£ 442,967) (£ 529,288) (£ 619,993) (£ 715,213)
OFF-STREET: (£ 15,616) (£ 17,866) (£ 36,875) (£ 54,995) (£ 73,299) (£ 91,792) (£ 110,480)

(£ 269,870) (£ 291,517) (£ 397,778) (£ 497,963) (£ 602,587) (£ 711,785) (£ 825,693)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 48 - April 2020 

 

APPENDIX E  The Summary of the 3 individual Models with all services 

externalised using current contract rates (E, E1 and E2). ON and 

Off street combined service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 119

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Cherwell District Council

VERSION: MODEL E
ALL External on and off street combined

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Cherwell District Council

VERSION: MODEL E
ALL External on and off street combined

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 16,585 16,734 16,734 16,734 16,734

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £175,818 £209,927 £209,927 £209,927 £209,927
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £14,933 £14,933 £14,933 £14,933 £14,933
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £4,473 £17,890 £17,890 £17,890 £17,890

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £195,223 £242,750 £242,750 £242,750 £242,750

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £294,750 £7,964 £88,366 £91,017 £93,748 £96,560 £99,457
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £15,000 £9,256 £111,069 £114,401 £117,833 £121,368 £125,009
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £4,000 £0 £168,972 £174,041 £179,263 £184,640 £190,180
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £11,100 £8,939 £67,665 £69,695 £71,786 £73,940 £76,158
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £324,850 £26,158 £436,073 £449,155 £462,629 £476,508 £490,804

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£324,850) (£26,158) (£240,850) (£206,405) (£219,880) (£233,759) (£248,054)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£26,158) (£267,008) (£473,413) (£693,293) (£927,051) (£1,175,105)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£351,008) (£591,858) (£798,263) (£1,018,143) (£1,251,901) (£1,499,955)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£253,375) (£437,075) (£621,690) (£806,849) (£992,209)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£578,225) (£761,925) (£946,540) (£1,131,699) (£1,317,059)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Cherwell District Council

VERSION: MODEL E

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 16,585 16,734 16,734 16,734 16,734
ON-STREET: 32.6% 5,312                             5,460                             5,460                             5,460                             5,460                             

OFF-STREET: 67.4% 11,274                           11,274                           11,274                           11,274                           11,274                           

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 175,818 £ 209,927 £ 209,927 £ 209,927 £ 209,927
ON-STREET (Higher): 28.4% £ 92,940 £ 119,055 £ 119,055 £ 119,055 £ 119,055
ON-STREET (Lower): 8.7% £ 28,451 £ 36,446 £ 36,446 £ 36,446 £ 36,446

new OFF-STREET 62.9% £ 263,673 £ 263,673 £ 263,673 £ 263,673 £ 263,673
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246) (£ 209,246)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933 £ 14,933

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 4,473 £ 17,890 £ 17,890 £ 17,890 £ 17,890
ON-STREET: 32.6% £ 1,459 £ 5,838 £ 5,838 £ 5,838 £ 5,838

OFF-STREET: 67.4% £ 3,013 £ 12,053 £ 12,053 £ 12,053 £ 12,053

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 294,750 £ 7,964 £ 88,366 £ 91,017 £ 93,748 £ 96,560 £ 99,457
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 291,300 £ 7,871 £ 88,366 £ 91,017 £ 93,748 £ 96,560 £ 99,457

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 3,450 £ 93 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 15,000 £ 9,256 £ 111,069 £ 114,401 £ 117,833 £ 121,368 £ 125,009
ON-STREET: 100% £ 15,000 £ 9,256 £ 111,069 £ 114,401 £ 117,833 £ 121,368 £ 125,009

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 4,000 £ 0 £ 168,972 £ 174,041 £ 179,263 £ 184,640 £ 190,180
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 4,000 £ 0 £ 168,972 £ 174,041 £ 179,263 £ 184,640 £ 190,180

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 11,100 £ 8,939 £ 67,665 £ 69,695 £ 71,786 £ 73,940 £ 76,158
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 3,622 £ 8,939 £ 67,665 £ 69,695 £ 71,786 £ 73,940 £ 76,158

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 7,478 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 122,851 £ 161,339 £ 161,339 £ 161,339 £ 161,339
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 72,372 £ 81,411 £ 81,411 £ 81,411 £ 81,411
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 195,223 £ 242,750 £ 242,750 £ 242,750 £ 242,750

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 309,922 £ 26,065 £ 267,100 £ 275,113 £ 283,367 £ 291,868 £ 300,624
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 14,928 £ 93 £ 168,972 £ 174,041 £ 179,263 £ 184,640 £ 190,180
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 324,850 £ 26,158 £ 436,073 £ 449,155 £ 462,629 £ 476,508 £ 490,804

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 309,922) (£ 26,065) (£ 144,250) (£ 113,775) (£ 122,028) (£ 130,529) (£ 139,285)
OFF-STREET: (£ 14,928) (£ 93) (£ 96,600) (£ 92,630) (£ 97,851) (£ 103,229) (£ 108,768)

(£ 324,850) (£ 26,158) (£ 240,850) (£ 206,405) (£ 219,880) (£ 233,759) (£ 248,054)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 26,065) (£ 170,315) (£ 284,090) (£ 406,118) (£ 536,647) (£ 675,933)
OFF-STREET: (£ 93) (£ 96,694) (£ 189,324) (£ 287,175) (£ 390,404) (£ 499,172)

£ 0 (£ 26,158) (£ 267,008) (£ 473,413) (£ 693,293) (£ 927,051) (£ 1,175,105)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 309,922) (£ 335,987) (£ 480,237) (£ 594,012) (£ 716,040) (£ 846,569) (£ 985,855)
OFF-STREET: (£ 14,928) (£ 15,021) (£ 111,621) (£ 204,252) (£ 302,103) (£ 405,332) (£ 514,100)

(£ 324,850) (£ 351,008) (£ 591,858) (£ 798,263) (£ 1,018,143) (£ 1,251,901) (£ 1,499,955)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E1 Ext
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire District Council

VERSION: MODEL E1
ALL External on and off street combined
current rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E1 Ext
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire District Council

VERSION: MODEL E1
ALL External on and off street combined
current rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 3,864 3,919 3,919 3,919 3,919

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £36,080 £45,595 £45,595 £45,595 £45,595
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £8,626 £8,626 £8,626 £8,626 £8,626
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £358 £358 £358 £358 £358
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £921 £3,683 £3,683 £3,683 £3,683

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £45,984 £58,262 £58,262 £58,262 £58,262

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £232,050 £3,620 £43,438 £44,742 £46,084 £47,466 £48,890
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £16,457 £3,535 £42,420 £43,693 £45,003 £46,354 £47,744
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £4,227 £10,842 £130,106 £134,009 £138,029 £142,170 £146,435
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £12,342 £5,320 £24,240 £24,967 £25,716 £26,487 £27,282
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £265,075 £23,317 £240,204 £247,410 £254,832 £262,477 £270,351

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£265,075) (£23,317) (£194,220) (£189,148) (£196,570) (£204,215) (£212,090)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£23,317) (£217,537) (£406,685) (£603,255) (£807,470) (£1,019,560)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£288,392) (£482,612) (£671,760) (£868,330) (£1,072,546) (£1,284,635)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£206,543) (£374,884) (£539,928) (£701,686) (£860,172)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£471,618) (£639,959) (£805,004) (£966,761) (£1,125,247)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E1 Ext
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire District Council

VERSION: MODEL E1

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT POST-DPE.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 3,864 3,919 3,919 3,919 3,919
ON-STREET: 51.4% 1,960                             2,015                             2,015                             2,015                             2,015                             

OFF-STREET: 48.6% 1,904                             1,904                             1,904                             1,904                             1,904                             

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 36,080 £ 45,595 £ 45,595 £ 45,595 £ 45,595
ON-STREET (Higher): 40.6% £ 36,668 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953
ON-STREET (Lower): 12.4% £ 11,230 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461

new OFF-STREET 47.0% £ 50,861 £ 50,861 £ 50,861 £ 50,861 £ 50,861
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 62,680) (£ 62,680) (£ 62,680) (£ 62,680) (£ 62,680)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626 £ 8,626

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358
ON-STREET: 100% £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358 £ 358

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 921 £ 3,683 £ 3,683 £ 3,683 £ 3,683
ON-STREET: 51.4% £ 474 £ 1,894 £ 1,894 £ 1,894 £ 1,894

OFF-STREET: 48.6% £ 447 £ 1,789 £ 1,789 £ 1,789 £ 1,789

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 232,050 £ 3,620 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 229,950 £ 3,587 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 2,100 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 16,457 £ 3,535 £ 42,420 £ 43,693 £ 45,003 £ 46,354 £ 47,744
ON-STREET: 100% £ 16,457 £ 3,535 £ 42,420 £ 43,693 £ 45,003 £ 46,354 £ 47,744

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 4,227 £ 10,842 £ 130,106 £ 134,009 £ 138,029 £ 142,170 £ 146,435
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 4,227 £ 10,842 £ 130,106 £ 134,009 £ 138,029 £ 142,170 £ 146,435

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 12,342 £ 5,320 £ 24,240 £ 24,967 £ 25,716 £ 26,487 £ 27,282
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 10,232 £ 5,320 £ 24,240 £ 24,967 £ 25,716 £ 26,487 £ 27,282

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 2,110 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 48,730 £ 59,666 £ 59,666 £ 59,666 £ 59,666
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 2,746) (£ 1,404) (£ 1,404) (£ 1,404) (£ 1,404)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 45,984 £ 58,262 £ 58,262 £ 58,262 £ 58,262

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 256,639 £ 12,442 £ 110,098 £ 113,401 £ 116,803 £ 120,307 £ 123,916
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 8,436 £ 10,842 £ 130,106 £ 134,009 £ 138,029 £ 142,170 £ 146,435
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 265,075 £ 23,284 £ 240,204 £ 247,410 £ 254,832 £ 262,477 £ 270,351

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 256,639) (£ 12,442) (£ 61,368) (£ 53,735) (£ 57,137) (£ 60,642) (£ 64,251)
OFF-STREET: (£ 8,436) (£ 10,842) (£ 132,851) (£ 135,413) (£ 139,433) (£ 143,574) (£ 147,839)

(£ 265,075) (£ 23,284) (£ 194,220) (£ 189,148) (£ 196,570) (£ 204,215) (£ 212,090)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 12,442) (£ 73,810) (£ 127,546) (£ 184,683) (£ 245,325) (£ 309,576)
OFF-STREET: (£ 10,842) (£ 143,694) (£ 279,106) (£ 418,539) (£ 562,113) (£ 709,952)

£ 0 (£ 23,284) (£ 217,504) (£ 406,652) (£ 603,222) (£ 807,438) (£ 1,019,527)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 256,639) (£ 269,081) (£ 330,449) (£ 384,185) (£ 441,322) (£ 501,964) (£ 566,215)
OFF-STREET: (£ 8,436) (£ 19,278) (£ 152,130) (£ 287,542) (£ 426,975) (£ 570,549) (£ 718,388)

(£ 265,075) (£ 288,359) (£ 482,579) (£ 671,727) (£ 868,298) (£ 1,072,513) (£ 1,284,602)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E2 ext
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Vale of the White Horse District Council

VERSION: MODEL E2
ALL External on and off street combined
current rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E2 ext
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Vale of the White Horse District Council

VERSION: MODEL E2
ALL External on and off street combined
current rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 3,245 3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £33,026 £40,674 £40,674 £40,674 £40,674
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £3,336 £3,336 £3,336 £3,336 £3,336
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £178 £178 £178 £178 £178
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £914 £3,656 £3,656 £3,656 £3,656

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £37,454 £47,844 £47,844 £47,844 £47,844

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £232,050 £3,620 £43,438 £44,742 £46,084 £47,466 £48,890
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £16,457 £3,535 £42,420 £43,693 £45,003 £46,354 £47,744
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £4,227 £10,842 £130,106 £134,009 £138,029 £142,170 £146,435
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £12,342 £5,304 £24,051 £24,772 £25,516 £26,281 £27,069
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £265,075 £23,301 £240,015 £247,215 £254,632 £262,271 £270,139

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£265,075) (£23,301) (£202,560) (£199,371) (£206,788) (£214,427) (£222,295)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£23,301) (£225,862) (£425,233) (£632,021) (£846,447) (£1,068,742)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£288,376) (£490,937) (£690,308) (£897,096) (£1,111,523) (£1,333,817)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£214,396) (£391,836) (£565,459) (£735,305) (£901,416)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£479,471) (£656,911) (£830,534) (£1,000,380) (£1,166,492)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: E2 ext
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Vale of the White Horse District Council

VERSION: MODEL E2

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT POST-DPE.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 3,245 3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300
ON-STREET: 61.1% 1,961                             2,016                             2,016                             2,016                             2,016                             

OFF-STREET: 38.9% 1,284                             1,284                             1,284                             1,284                             1,284                             

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 33,026 £ 40,674 £ 40,674 £ 40,674 £ 40,674
ON-STREET (Higher): 49.7% £ 38,098 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953 £ 43,953
ON-STREET (Lower): 15.2% £ 11,668 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461 £ 13,461

new OFF-STREET 35.1% £ 31,020 £ 31,020 £ 31,020 £ 31,020 £ 31,020
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760) (£ 47,760)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336 £ 3,336

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178
ON-STREET: 100% £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178 £ 178

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 914 £ 3,656 £ 3,656 £ 3,656 £ 3,656
ON-STREET: 61.1% £ 558 £ 2,233 £ 2,233 £ 2,233 £ 2,233

OFF-STREET: 38.9% £ 356 £ 1,423 £ 1,423 £ 1,423 £ 1,423

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 232,050 £ 3,620 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 229,950 £ 3,587 £ 43,438 £ 44,742 £ 46,084 £ 47,466 £ 48,890

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 2,100 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 16,457 £ 3,535 £ 42,420 £ 43,693 £ 45,003 £ 46,354 £ 47,744
ON-STREET: 100% £ 16,457 £ 3,535 £ 42,420 £ 43,693 £ 45,003 £ 46,354 £ 47,744

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 4,227 £ 10,842 £ 130,106 £ 134,009 £ 138,029 £ 142,170 £ 146,435
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 4,227 £ 10,842 £ 130,106 £ 134,009 £ 138,029 £ 142,170 £ 146,435

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 12,342 £ 5,304 £ 24,051 £ 24,772 £ 25,516 £ 26,281 £ 27,069
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 10,232 £ 5,304 £ 24,051 £ 24,772 £ 25,516 £ 26,281 £ 27,069

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 2,110 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 50,503 £ 59,825 £ 59,825 £ 59,825 £ 59,825
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 13,048) (£ 11,981) (£ 11,981) (£ 11,981) (£ 11,981)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 37,454 £ 47,844 £ 47,844 £ 47,844 £ 47,844

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 256,639 £ 12,426 £ 109,909 £ 113,207 £ 116,603 £ 120,101 £ 123,704
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 8,436 £ 10,842 £ 130,106 £ 134,009 £ 138,029 £ 142,170 £ 146,435
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 265,075 £ 23,268 £ 240,015 £ 247,215 £ 254,632 £ 262,271 £ 270,139

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 256,639) (£ 12,426) (£ 59,407) (£ 53,381) (£ 56,777) (£ 60,276) (£ 63,879)
OFF-STREET: (£ 8,436) (£ 10,842) (£ 143,154) (£ 145,990) (£ 150,010) (£ 154,151) (£ 158,416)

(£ 265,075) (£ 23,268) (£ 202,560) (£ 199,371) (£ 206,788) (£ 214,427) (£ 222,295)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 12,426) (£ 71,833) (£ 125,214) (£ 181,992) (£ 242,267) (£ 306,146)
OFF-STREET: (£ 10,842) (£ 153,996) (£ 299,986) (£ 449,996) (£ 604,147) (£ 762,564)

£ 0 (£ 23,268) (£ 225,829) (£ 425,200) (£ 631,988) (£ 846,415) (£ 1,068,710)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 256,639) (£ 269,065) (£ 328,472) (£ 381,853) (£ 438,631) (£ 498,906) (£ 562,785)
OFF-STREET: (£ 8,436) (£ 19,278) (£ 162,432) (£ 308,422) (£ 458,433) (£ 612,584) (£ 771,000)

(£ 265,075) (£ 288,344) (£ 490,904) (£ 690,275) (£ 897,063) (£ 1,111,490) (£ 1,333,785)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 

RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 49 - April 2020 

APPENDIX F  The Summary of the joint SODC and VWHDC Models with all 

services in house (F) or externalised (F1) using current contract 

rates and (F2) using industry rates. ON and Off street combined 

service. 

Page 129

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F JOINT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F Joint
ALL IN HOUSE
V3

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F JOINT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F Joint
ALL IN HOUSE
V3

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 7,103 7,213 7,213 7,213 7,213

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £68,718 £85,849 £85,849 £85,849 £85,849
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £1,832 £7,326 £7,326 £7,326 £7,326

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £83,047 £105,673 £105,673 £105,673 £105,673

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £447,500 £3,088 £37,052 £38,164 £39,309 £40,488 £41,703
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £10,305 £7,041 £84,494 £87,029 £89,640 £92,329 £95,099
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £2,325 £3,750 £11,292 £11,630 £11,979 £12,339 £12,709
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £29,650 £12,965 £85,385 £87,946 £90,584 £93,302 £96,101
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £489,780 £26,844 £218,222 £224,769 £231,512 £238,458 £245,611

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£489,780) (£26,844) (£135,175) (£119,096) (£125,839) (£132,784) (£139,938)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£26,844) (£162,019) (£281,115) (£406,954) (£539,739) (£679,677)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£516,624) (£651,799) (£770,895) (£896,734) (£1,029,519) (£1,169,457)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£154,368) (£260,363) (£366,020) (£471,198) (£575,767)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£644,148) (£750,143) (£855,800) (£960,978) (£1,065,547)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F JOINT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F Joint

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT POST-DPE.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 7,103 7,213 7,213 7,213 7,213
ON-STREET: 55.9% 3,922                             4,032                             4,032                             4,032                             4,032                             

OFF-STREET: 44.1% 3,181                             3,181                             3,181                             3,181                             3,181                             

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 68,718 £ 85,849 £ 85,849 £ 85,849 £ 85,849
ON-STREET (Higher): 44.8% £ 74,791 £ 87,905 £ 87,905 £ 87,905 £ 87,905
ON-STREET (Lower): 13.7% £ 22,906 £ 26,923 £ 26,923 £ 26,923 £ 26,923

new OFF-STREET 41.6% £ 81,591 £ 81,591 £ 81,591 £ 81,591 £ 81,591
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 1,832 £ 7,326 £ 7,326 £ 7,326 £ 7,326
ON-STREET: 55.9% £ 1,024 £ 4,095 £ 4,095 £ 4,095 £ 4,095

OFF-STREET: 44.1% £ 808 £ 3,231 £ 3,231 £ 3,231 £ 3,231

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 447,500 £ 3,088 £ 37,052 £ 38,164 £ 39,309 £ 40,488 £ 41,703
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 443,300 £ 3,059 £ 37,052 £ 38,164 £ 39,309 £ 40,488 £ 41,703

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 4,200 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 10,305 £ 7,041 £ 84,494 £ 87,029 £ 89,640 £ 92,329 £ 95,099
ON-STREET: 100% £ 10,305 £ 7,041 £ 84,494 £ 87,029 £ 89,640 £ 92,329 £ 95,099

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 2,325 £ 3,750 £ 11,292 £ 11,630 £ 11,979 £ 12,339 £ 12,709
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 2,325 £ 3,750 £ 11,292 £ 11,630 £ 11,979 £ 12,339 £ 12,709

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 29,650 £ 12,965 £ 85,385 £ 87,946 £ 90,584 £ 93,302 £ 96,101
ON-STREET: 55.9% £ 16,565 £ 7,244 £ 47,704 £ 49,136 £ 50,610 £ 52,128 £ 53,692

OFF-STREET: 44.1% £ 13,085 £ 5,722 £ 37,680 £ 38,811 £ 39,975 £ 41,174 £ 42,409

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 99,256 £ 119,459 £ 119,459 £ 119,459 £ 119,459
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 16,209) (£ 13,786) (£ 13,786) (£ 13,786) (£ 13,786)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 83,047 £ 105,673 £ 105,673 £ 105,673 £ 105,673

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 470,170 £ 17,344 £ 169,251 £ 174,328 £ 179,558 £ 184,945 £ 190,493
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 19,610 £ 9,472 £ 48,972 £ 50,441 £ 51,954 £ 53,513 £ 55,118
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 489,780 £ 26,815 £ 218,222 £ 224,769 £ 231,512 £ 238,458 £ 245,611

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 470,170) (£ 17,344) (£ 69,995) (£ 54,870) (£ 60,099) (£ 65,486) (£ 71,035)
OFF-STREET: (£ 19,610) (£ 9,472) (£ 65,181) (£ 64,226) (£ 65,740) (£ 67,298) (£ 68,904)

(£ 489,780) (£ 26,815) (£ 135,175) (£ 119,096) (£ 125,839) (£ 132,784) (£ 139,938)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 17,344) (£ 87,338) (£ 142,208) (£ 202,307) (£ 267,793) (£ 338,828)
OFF-STREET: (£ 9,472) (£ 74,652) (£ 138,879) (£ 204,618) (£ 271,916) (£ 340,820)

£ 0 (£ 26,815) (£ 161,990) (£ 281,086) (£ 406,925) (£ 539,710) (£ 679,648)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 470,170) (£ 487,514) (£ 557,509) (£ 612,378) (£ 672,478) (£ 737,964) (£ 808,998)
OFF-STREET: (£ 19,610) (£ 29,081) (£ 94,262) (£ 158,488) (£ 224,228) (£ 291,526) (£ 360,430)

(£ 489,780) (£ 516,595) (£ 651,770) (£ 770,866) (£ 896,705) (£ 1,029,490) (£ 1,169,428)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F1 EXT JOINT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F1 Joint
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
current rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F1 EXT JOINT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F1 Joint
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
current rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 7,106 7,216 7,216 7,216 7,216

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £68,786 £85,921 £85,921 £85,921 £85,921
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £1,829 £7,317 £7,317 £7,317 £7,317

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £83,113 £105,735 £105,735 £105,735 £105,735

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £447,500 £2,836 £34,027 £35,048 £36,100 £37,183 £38,298
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £32,914 £7,070 £84,840 £87,385 £90,007 £92,707 £95,488
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £10,778 £0 £265,879 £273,855 £282,071 £290,533 £299,249
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £22,683 £7,322 £48,261 £49,709 £51,200 £52,736 £54,318
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £513,875 £17,227 £433,007 £445,997 £459,377 £473,159 £487,353

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£513,875) (£17,227) (£349,894) (£340,262) (£353,642) (£367,423) (£381,618)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£17,227) (£367,122) (£707,384) (£1,061,026) (£1,428,449) (£1,810,067)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£531,103) (£880,997) (£1,221,259) (£1,574,901) (£1,942,325) (£2,323,943)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£347,316) (£650,149) (£947,073) (£1,238,107) (£1,523,274)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£861,192) (£1,164,024) (£1,460,949) (£1,751,982) (£2,037,150)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 134

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F1 EXT JOINT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F1 Joint

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 7,106 7,216 7,216 7,216 7,216
ON-STREET: 55.8% 3,920   4,030   4,030   4,030   4,030   

OFF-STREET: 44.2% 3,186   3,186   3,186   3,186   3,186   

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 68,786 £ 85,921 £ 85,921 £ 85,921 £ 85,921
ON-STREET (Higher): 44.7% £ 74,755 £ 87,874 £ 87,874 £ 87,874 £ 87,874
ON-STREET (Lower): 13.7% £ 22,884 £ 26,900 £ 26,900 £ 26,900 £ 26,900

new OFF-STREET 41.6% £ 81,716 £ 81,716 £ 81,716 £ 81,716 £ 81,716
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 1,829 £ 7,317 £ 7,317 £ 7,317 £ 7,317
ON-STREET: 55.8% £ 1,022 £ 4,086 £ 4,086 £ 4,086 £ 4,086

OFF-STREET: 44.2% £ 808 £ 3,231 £ 3,231 £ 3,231 £ 3,231

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 447,500 £ 2,836 £ 34,027 £ 35,048 £ 36,100 £ 37,183 £ 38,298
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 443,300 £ 2,809 £ 34,027 £ 35,048 £ 36,100 £ 37,183 £ 38,298

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 4,200 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 32,914 £ 7,070 £ 84,840 £ 87,385 £ 90,007 £ 92,707 £ 95,488
ON-STREET: 100% £ 32,914 £ 7,070 £ 84,840 £ 87,385 £ 90,007 £ 92,707 £ 95,488

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 10,778 £ 0 £ 265,879 £ 273,855 £ 282,071 £ 290,533 £ 299,249
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 10,778 £ 0 £ 265,879 £ 273,855 £ 282,071 £ 290,533 £ 299,249

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 22,683 £ 7,322 £ 48,261 £ 49,709 £ 51,200 £ 52,736 £ 54,318
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 18,464 £ 7,322 £ 48,261 £ 49,709 £ 51,200 £ 52,736 £ 54,318

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 4,219 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 99,197 £ 119,396 £ 119,396 £ 119,396 £ 119,396
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 16,084) (£ 13,661) (£ 13,661) (£ 13,661) (£ 13,661)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 83,113 £ 105,735 £ 105,735 £ 105,735 £ 105,735

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 494,678 £ 17,201 £ 167,128 £ 172,142 £ 177,306 £ 182,626 £ 188,104
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 19,198 £ 0 £ 265,879 £ 273,855 £ 282,071 £ 290,533 £ 299,249
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 513,875 £ 17,201 £ 433,007 £ 445,997 £ 459,377 £ 473,159 £ 487,353

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 494,678) (£ 17,201) (£ 67,931) (£ 52,746) (£ 57,910) (£ 63,229) (£ 68,708)
OFF-STREET: (£ 19,198) £ 0 (£ 281,963) (£ 287,516) (£ 295,732) (£ 304,194) (£ 312,910)

(£ 513,875) (£ 17,201) (£ 349,894) (£ 340,262) (£ 353,642) (£ 367,423) (£ 381,618)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 17,201) (£ 85,132) (£ 137,878) (£ 195,788) (£ 259,017) (£ 327,725)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 281,963) (£ 569,480) (£ 865,212) (£ 1,169,406) (£ 1,482,316)

£ 0 (£ 17,201) (£ 367,095) (£ 707,357) (£ 1,060,999) (£ 1,428,423) (£ 1,810,041)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 494,678) (£ 511,878) (£ 579,810) (£ 632,555) (£ 690,465) (£ 753,695) (£ 822,402)
OFF-STREET: (£ 19,198) (£ 19,198) (£ 301,161) (£ 588,677) (£ 884,409) (£ 1,188,603) (£ 1,501,514)

(£ 513,875) (£ 531,076) (£ 880,970) (£ 1,221,233) (£ 1,574,875) (£ 1,942,298) (£ 2,323,916)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F2 EXT JOINT IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F2 Joint
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
industry  rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F2 EXT JOINT IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F2 Joint
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
industry  rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 7,106 7,216 7,216 7,216 7,216

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £68,786 £85,921 £85,921 £85,921 £85,921
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962 £11,962
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £1,829 £7,317 £7,317 £7,317 £7,317

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £83,113 £105,735 £105,735 £105,735 £105,735

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £447,500 £2,836 £34,027 £35,048 £36,100 £37,183 £38,298
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £32,914 £6,153 £73,840 £76,055 £78,337 £80,687 £83,107
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £10,778 £0 £231,814 £238,768 £245,931 £253,309 £260,908
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £22,683 £5,514 £26,562 £27,359 £28,180 £29,025 £29,896
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £513,875 £14,502 £366,243 £377,230 £388,547 £400,204 £412,210

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£513,875) (£14,502) (£283,130) (£271,495) (£282,812) (£294,468) (£306,475)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£14,502) (£297,633) (£569,128) (£851,940) (£1,146,408) (£1,452,883)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£528,378) (£811,508) (£1,083,003) (£1,365,815) (£1,660,284) (£1,966,758)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£281,607) (£523,236) (£760,691) (£993,937) (£1,222,953)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£795,482) (£1,037,112) (£1,274,566) (£1,507,812) (£1,736,828)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: F2 EXT JOINT IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils

VERSION: MODEL F2 Joint

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 7,106 7,216 7,216 7,216 7,216
ON-STREET: 55.8% 3,920   4,030   4,030   4,030   4,030   

OFF-STREET: 44.2% 3,186   3,186   3,186   3,186   3,186   

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 68,786 £ 85,921 £ 85,921 £ 85,921 £ 85,921
ON-STREET (Higher): 44.7% £ 74,755 £ 87,874 £ 87,874 £ 87,874 £ 87,874
ON-STREET (Lower): 13.7% £ 22,884 £ 26,900 £ 26,900 £ 26,900 £ 26,900

new OFF-STREET 41.6% £ 81,716 £ 81,716 £ 81,716 £ 81,716 £ 81,716
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570) (£ 110,570)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962 £ 11,962

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 1,829 £ 7,317 £ 7,317 £ 7,317 £ 7,317
ON-STREET: 55.8% £ 1,022 £ 4,086 £ 4,086 £ 4,086 £ 4,086

OFF-STREET: 44.2% £ 808 £ 3,231 £ 3,231 £ 3,231 £ 3,231

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 447,500 £ 2,836 £ 34,027 £ 35,048 £ 36,100 £ 37,183 £ 38,298
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 443,300 £ 2,809 £ 34,027 £ 35,048 £ 36,100 £ 37,183 £ 38,298

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 4,200 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 32,914 £ 6,153 £ 73,840 £ 76,055 £ 78,337 £ 80,687 £ 83,107
ON-STREET: 100% £ 32,914 £ 6,153 £ 73,840 £ 76,055 £ 78,337 £ 80,687 £ 83,107

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 10,778 £ 0 £ 231,814 £ 238,768 £ 245,931 £ 253,309 £ 260,908
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 10,778 £ 0 £ 231,814 £ 238,768 £ 245,931 £ 253,309 £ 260,908

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 22,683 £ 5,514 £ 26,562 £ 27,359 £ 28,180 £ 29,025 £ 29,896
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 18,464 £ 5,514 £ 26,562 £ 27,359 £ 28,180 £ 29,025 £ 29,896

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 4,219 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 99,197 £ 119,396 £ 119,396 £ 119,396 £ 119,396
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 16,084) (£ 13,661) (£ 13,661) (£ 13,661) (£ 13,661)
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 83,113 £ 105,735 £ 105,735 £ 105,735 £ 105,735

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 494,678 £ 14,476 £ 134,430 £ 138,462 £ 142,616 £ 146,895 £ 151,302
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 19,198 £ 0 £ 231,814 £ 238,768 £ 245,931 £ 253,309 £ 260,908
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 513,875 £ 14,476 £ 366,243 £ 377,230 £ 388,547 £ 400,204 £ 412,210

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 494,678) (£ 14,476) (£ 35,233) (£ 19,066) (£ 23,220) (£ 27,498) (£ 31,905)
OFF-STREET: (£ 19,198) £ 0 (£ 247,898) (£ 252,429) (£ 259,592) (£ 266,970) (£ 274,569)

(£ 513,875) (£ 14,476) (£ 283,130) (£ 271,495) (£ 282,812) (£ 294,468) (£ 306,475)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 14,476) (£ 49,708) (£ 68,774) (£ 91,994) (£ 119,493) (£ 151,398)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 247,898) (£ 500,327) (£ 759,919) (£ 1,026,889) (£ 1,301,458)

£ 0 (£ 14,476) (£ 297,606) (£ 569,101) (£ 851,913) (£ 1,146,382) (£ 1,452,856)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 494,678) (£ 509,154) (£ 544,386) (£ 563,452) (£ 586,672) (£ 614,170) (£ 646,076)
OFF-STREET: (£ 19,198) (£ 19,198) (£ 267,095) (£ 519,524) (£ 779,117) (£ 1,046,087) (£ 1,320,656)

(£ 513,875) (£ 528,351) (£ 811,481) (£ 1,082,977) (£ 1,365,789) (£ 1,660,257) (£ 1,966,731)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 

RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 50 - April 2020 

APPENDIX G  The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using current contract rates. (G). ON and Off street 

combined service. 

Page 139

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: G all 3 EXT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL G
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
Current contract rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: G all 3 EXT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL G
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
Current contract rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 23,690 23,949 23,949 23,949 23,949

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £244,160 £294,928 £294,928 £294,928 £294,928
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £26,895 £26,895 £26,895 £26,895 £26,895
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £6,308 £25,231 £25,231 £25,231 £25,231

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £277,898 £347,589 £347,589 £347,589 £347,589

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £735,800 £10,409 £110,508 £113,823 £117,238 £120,755 £124,378
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £42,000 £16,275 £195,301 £201,160 £207,194 £213,410 £219,813
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £9,000 £0 £428,730 £441,592 £454,840 £468,485 £482,540
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £29,600 £14,058 £115,902 £119,379 £122,960 £126,649 £130,449
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £816,400 £40,743 £850,441 £875,954 £902,233 £929,300 £957,179

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£816,400) (£40,743) (£572,543) (£528,365) (£554,644) (£581,711) (£609,590)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£40,743) (£613,286) (£1,141,651) (£1,696,295) (£2,278,006) (£2,887,595)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£857,143) (£1,429,686) (£1,958,051) (£2,512,695) (£3,094,406) (£3,703,995)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£580,877) (£1,051,121) (£1,516,810) (£1,977,580) (£2,433,101)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£1,397,277) (£1,867,521) (£2,333,210) (£2,793,980) (£3,249,501)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: G all 3 EXT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL G

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 23,690 23,949 23,949 23,949 23,949
ON-STREET: 39.6% 9,231                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             

OFF-STREET: 60.4% 14,459                           14,459                           14,459                           14,459                           14,459                           

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 244,160 £ 294,928 £ 294,928 £ 294,928 £ 294,928
ON-STREET (Higher): 33.7% £ 168,060 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929
ON-STREET (Lower): 10.3% £ 51,447 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346

new OFF-STREET 56.0% £ 344,469 £ 344,469 £ 344,469 £ 344,469 £ 344,469
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 6,308 £ 25,231 £ 25,231 £ 25,231 £ 25,231
ON-STREET: 39.6% £ 2,499 £ 9,998 £ 9,998 £ 9,998 £ 9,998

OFF-STREET: 60.4% £ 3,808 £ 15,233 £ 15,233 £ 15,233 £ 15,233

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 735,800 £ 10,409 £ 110,508 £ 113,823 £ 117,238 £ 120,755 £ 124,378
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 735,800 £ 10,409 £ 110,508 £ 113,823 £ 117,238 £ 120,755 £ 124,378

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 42,000 £ 16,275 £ 195,301 £ 201,160 £ 207,194 £ 213,410 £ 219,813
ON-STREET: 100% £ 42,000 £ 16,275 £ 195,301 £ 201,160 £ 207,194 £ 213,410 £ 219,813

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 9,000 £ 0 £ 428,730 £ 441,592 £ 454,840 £ 468,485 £ 482,540
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 9,000 £ 0 £ 428,730 £ 441,592 £ 454,840 £ 468,485 £ 482,540

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 29,600 £ 14,058 £ 115,902 £ 119,379 £ 122,960 £ 126,649 £ 130,449
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 24,194 £ 14,058 £ 115,902 £ 119,379 £ 122,960 £ 126,649 £ 130,449

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 5,406 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 222,543 £ 280,809 £ 280,809 £ 280,809 £ 280,809
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 55,355 £ 66,780 £ 66,780 £ 66,780 £ 66,780
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 277,898 £ 347,589 £ 347,589 £ 347,589 £ 347,589

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 801,994 £ 40,743 £ 421,711 £ 434,362 £ 447,393 £ 460,815 £ 474,639
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 14,406 £ 0 £ 428,730 £ 441,592 £ 454,840 £ 468,485 £ 482,540
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 816,400 £ 40,743 £ 850,441 £ 875,954 £ 902,233 £ 929,300 £ 957,179

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 801,994) (£ 40,743) (£ 199,168) (£ 153,553) (£ 166,584) (£ 180,006) (£ 193,830)
OFF-STREET: (£ 14,406) £ 0 (£ 373,375) (£ 374,812) (£ 388,060) (£ 401,705) (£ 415,760)

(£ 816,400) (£ 40,743) (£ 572,543) (£ 528,365) (£ 554,644) (£ 581,711) (£ 609,590)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 40,743) (£ 239,910) (£ 393,463) (£ 560,047) (£ 740,053) (£ 933,883)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 373,375) (£ 748,187) (£ 1,136,247) (£ 1,537,953) (£ 1,953,713)

£ 0 (£ 40,743) (£ 613,286) (£ 1,141,651) (£ 1,696,295) (£ 2,278,006) (£ 2,887,595)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 801,994) (£ 842,737) (£ 1,041,904) (£ 1,195,457) (£ 1,362,041) (£ 1,542,047) (£ 1,735,877)
OFF-STREET: (£ 14,406) (£ 14,406) (£ 387,781) (£ 762,593) (£ 1,150,653) (£ 1,552,359) (£ 1,968,119)

(£ 816,400) (£ 857,143) (£ 1,429,686) (£ 1,958,051) (£ 2,512,695) (£ 3,094,406) (£ 3,703,995)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 51 - April 2020 

 

 

APPENDIX H  The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using industry average contract rates. (H). ON and Off 

street combined service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: H all 3 EXT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL H
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
Industry contract rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: H all 3 EXT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL H
ALL External on and off street combined
V3
Industry contract rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 23,690 23,949 23,949 23,949 23,949

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £244,160 £294,928 £294,928 £294,928 £294,928
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £26,895 £26,895 £26,895 £26,895 £26,895
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £6,308 £25,231 £25,231 £25,231 £25,231

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £277,898 £347,589 £347,589 £347,589 £347,589

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £735,800 £10,409 £110,508 £113,823 £117,238 £120,755 £124,378
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £42,000 £14,116 £169,397 £174,479 £179,713 £185,104 £190,658
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £9,000 £0 £372,310 £383,479 £394,983 £406,833 £419,038
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £29,600 £9,804 £64,845 £66,790 £68,794 £70,857 £72,983
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £816,400 £34,329 £717,059 £738,571 £760,728 £783,550 £807,056

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£816,400) (£34,329) (£439,161) (£390,982) (£413,139) (£435,961) (£459,467)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£34,329) (£473,490) (£864,472) (£1,277,611) (£1,713,571) (£2,173,038)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£850,729) (£1,289,890) (£1,680,872) (£2,094,011) (£2,529,971) (£2,989,438)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£448,632) (£796,604) (£1,143,484) (£1,488,805) (£1,832,146)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£1,265,032) (£1,613,004) (£1,959,884) (£2,305,205) (£2,648,546)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: H all 3 EXT
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL H

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 23,690 23,949 23,949 23,949 23,949
ON-STREET: 39.6% 9,231                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             

OFF-STREET: 60.4% 14,459                           14,459                           14,459                           14,459                           14,459                           

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 244,160 £ 294,928 £ 294,928 £ 294,928 £ 294,928
ON-STREET (Higher): 33.7% £ 168,060 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929
ON-STREET (Lower): 10.3% £ 51,447 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346

new OFF-STREET 56.0% £ 344,469 £ 344,469 £ 344,469 £ 344,469 £ 344,469
current OFF-STREET 100.0% (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816) (£ 319,816)

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895 £ 26,895

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 6,308 £ 25,231 £ 25,231 £ 25,231 £ 25,231
ON-STREET: 39.6% £ 2,499 £ 9,998 £ 9,998 £ 9,998 £ 9,998

OFF-STREET: 60.4% £ 3,808 £ 15,233 £ 15,233 £ 15,233 £ 15,233

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 735,800 £ 10,409 £ 110,508 £ 113,823 £ 117,238 £ 120,755 £ 124,378
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 735,800 £ 10,409 £ 110,508 £ 113,823 £ 117,238 £ 120,755 £ 124,378

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 42,000 £ 14,116 £ 169,397 £ 174,479 £ 179,713 £ 185,104 £ 190,658
ON-STREET: 100% £ 42,000 £ 14,116 £ 169,397 £ 174,479 £ 179,713 £ 185,104 £ 190,658

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 9,000 £ 0 £ 372,310 £ 383,479 £ 394,983 £ 406,833 £ 419,038
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 9,000 £ 0 £ 372,310 £ 383,479 £ 394,983 £ 406,833 £ 419,038

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 29,600 £ 9,804 £ 64,845 £ 66,790 £ 68,794 £ 70,857 £ 72,983
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 24,194 £ 9,804 £ 64,845 £ 66,790 £ 68,794 £ 70,857 £ 72,983

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 5,406 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 222,543 £ 280,809 £ 280,809 £ 280,809 £ 280,809
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 55,355 £ 66,780 £ 66,780 £ 66,780 £ 66,780
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 277,898 £ 347,589 £ 347,589 £ 347,589 £ 347,589

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 801,994 £ 34,329 £ 344,749 £ 355,092 £ 365,745 £ 376,717 £ 388,018
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 14,406 £ 0 £ 372,310 £ 383,479 £ 394,983 £ 406,833 £ 419,038
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 816,400 £ 34,329 £ 717,059 £ 738,571 £ 760,728 £ 783,550 £ 807,056

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 801,994) (£ 34,329) (£ 122,207) (£ 74,283) (£ 84,936) (£ 95,908) (£ 107,209)
OFF-STREET: (£ 14,406) £ 0 (£ 316,954) (£ 316,699) (£ 328,203) (£ 340,053) (£ 352,258)

(£ 816,400) (£ 34,329) (£ 439,161) (£ 390,982) (£ 413,139) (£ 435,961) (£ 459,467)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 34,329) (£ 156,536) (£ 230,819) (£ 315,754) (£ 411,662) (£ 518,872)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 (£ 316,954) (£ 633,653) (£ 961,856) (£ 1,301,909) (£ 1,654,167)

£ 0 (£ 34,329) (£ 473,490) (£ 864,472) (£ 1,277,611) (£ 1,713,571) (£ 2,173,038)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 801,994) (£ 836,323) (£ 958,530) (£ 1,032,813) (£ 1,117,748) (£ 1,213,656) (£ 1,320,866)
OFF-STREET: (£ 14,406) (£ 14,406) (£ 331,360) (£ 648,059) (£ 976,262) (£ 1,316,315) (£ 1,668,573)

(£ 816,400) (£ 850,729) (£ 1,289,890) (£ 1,680,872) (£ 2,094,011) (£ 2,529,971) (£ 2,989,438)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 52 - April 2020 

 

 

APPENDIX J  The Summary of a joint model for all 3 Districts, External service 

provision using current contract rates. (J). ON street only services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 147

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: J all 3 On
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL J
ALL External on street only
current rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: J all 3 On
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL J
ALL External on street only
current rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 9,231 9,490 9,490 9,490 9,490

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £243,677 £270,275 £270,275 £270,275 £270,275
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £3,183 £12,732 £12,732 £12,732 £12,732

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £247,396 £283,543 £283,543 £283,543 £283,543

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £725,950 £7,310 £80,518 £82,933 £85,421 £87,984 £90,623
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £47,914 £16,274 £195,285 £201,144 £207,178 £213,394 £219,796
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £31,783 £13,661 £111,130 £114,464 £117,898 £121,435 £125,078
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £805,647 £37,244 £386,933 £398,541 £410,498 £422,813 £435,497

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£805,647) (£37,244) (£139,537) (£114,998) (£126,955) (£139,270) (£151,954)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£37,244) (£176,782) (£291,780) (£418,735) (£558,005) (£709,959)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£842,891) (£982,429) (£1,097,427) (£1,224,382) (£1,363,652) (£1,515,606)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£168,883) (£271,232) (£377,825) (£488,140) (£601,689)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£974,530) (£1,076,879) (£1,183,472) (£1,293,787) (£1,407,336)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: J all 3 On
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL J

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 9,231 9,490 9,490 9,490 9,490
ON-STREET: 100.0% 9,231                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             

OFF-STREET: 0.0% -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 243,677 £ 270,275 £ 270,275 £ 270,275 £ 270,275
ON-STREET (Higher): 76.6% £ 186,566 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929
ON-STREET (Lower): 23.4% £ 57,112 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346

new OFF-STREET 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
current OFF-STREET 100.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 3,183 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 3,183 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 725,950 £ 7,310 £ 80,518 £ 82,933 £ 85,421 £ 87,984 £ 90,623
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 725,950 £ 7,310 £ 80,518 £ 82,933 £ 85,421 £ 87,984 £ 90,623

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 47,914 £ 16,274 £ 195,285 £ 201,144 £ 207,178 £ 213,394 £ 219,796
ON-STREET: 100% £ 47,914 £ 16,274 £ 195,285 £ 201,144 £ 207,178 £ 213,394 £ 219,796

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 31,783 £ 13,661 £ 111,130 £ 114,464 £ 117,898 £ 121,435 £ 125,078
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 31,783 £ 13,661 £ 111,130 £ 114,464 £ 117,898 £ 121,435 £ 125,078

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 247,396 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 247,396 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 805,647 £ 37,244 £ 386,933 £ 398,541 £ 410,498 £ 422,813 £ 435,497
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 805,647 £ 37,244 £ 386,933 £ 398,541 £ 410,498 £ 422,813 £ 435,497

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 805,647) (£ 37,244) (£ 139,537) (£ 114,998) (£ 126,955) (£ 139,270) (£ 151,954)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 805,647) (£ 37,244) (£ 139,537) (£ 114,998) (£ 126,955) (£ 139,270) (£ 151,954)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 37,244) (£ 176,782) (£ 291,780) (£ 418,735) (£ 558,005) (£ 709,959)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

£ 0 (£ 37,244) (£ 176,782) (£ 291,780) (£ 418,735) (£ 558,005) (£ 709,959)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 805,647) (£ 842,891) (£ 982,429) (£ 1,097,427) (£ 1,224,382) (£ 1,363,652) (£ 1,515,606)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 805,647) (£ 842,891) (£ 982,429) (£ 1,097,427) (£ 1,224,382) (£ 1,363,652) (£ 1,515,606)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 53 - April 2020 

 

 

APPENDIX K  The FULL joint model for all 3 Districts, External service provision 

using industry average contract rates. (K). ON street only services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL K
ALL External on street only
Industry rates

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 152

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL K
ALL External on street only
Industry rates

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 9,231 9,490 9,490 9,490 9,490

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £243,677 £270,275 £270,275 £270,275 £270,275
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £3,183 £12,732 £12,732 £12,732 £12,732

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £247,396 £283,543 £283,543 £283,543 £283,543

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £725,950 £7,310 £80,518 £82,933 £85,421 £87,984 £90,623
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £25,000 £14,116 £169,397 £174,479 £179,713 £185,104 £190,658
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £13,100 £9,406 £60,073 £61,875 £63,731 £65,643 £67,613
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £764,050 £30,832 £309,987 £319,287 £328,866 £338,732 £348,894

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£764,050) (£30,832) (£62,591) (£35,744) (£45,323) (£55,189) (£65,351)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£30,832) (£93,423) (£129,168) (£174,490) (£229,679) (£295,029)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£794,882) (£857,473) (£893,218) (£938,540) (£993,729) (£1,059,079)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£89,881) (£121,693) (£159,746) (£203,461) (£252,295)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£853,931) (£885,743) (£923,796) (£967,511) (£1,016,345)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 9,231 9,490 9,490 9,490 9,490
ON-STREET: 100.0% 9,231                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             9,490                             

OFF-STREET: 0.0% -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 243,677 £ 270,275 £ 270,275 £ 270,275 £ 270,275
ON-STREET (Higher): 76.6% £ 186,566 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929 £ 206,929
ON-STREET (Lower): 23.4% £ 57,112 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346 £ 63,346

new OFF-STREET 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
current OFF-STREET 100.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 3,183 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 3,183 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732 £ 12,732

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 725,950 £ 7,310 £ 80,518 £ 82,933 £ 85,421 £ 87,984 £ 90,623
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 725,950 £ 7,310 £ 80,518 £ 82,933 £ 85,421 £ 87,984 £ 90,623

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 25,000 £ 14,116 £ 169,397 £ 174,479 £ 179,713 £ 185,104 £ 190,658
ON-STREET: 100% £ 25,000 £ 14,116 £ 169,397 £ 174,479 £ 179,713 £ 185,104 £ 190,658

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 13,100 £ 9,406 £ 60,073 £ 61,875 £ 63,731 £ 65,643 £ 67,613
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 13,100 £ 9,406 £ 60,073 £ 61,875 £ 63,731 £ 65,643 £ 67,613

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 247,396 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 247,396 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543 £ 283,543

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 764,050 £ 30,832 £ 309,987 £ 319,287 £ 328,866 £ 338,732 £ 348,894
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 764,050 £ 30,832 £ 309,987 £ 319,287 £ 328,866 £ 338,732 £ 348,894

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 764,050) (£ 30,832) (£ 62,591) (£ 35,744) (£ 45,323) (£ 55,189) (£ 65,351)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 764,050) (£ 30,832) (£ 62,591) (£ 35,744) (£ 45,323) (£ 55,189) (£ 65,351)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 30,832) (£ 93,423) (£ 129,168) (£ 174,490) (£ 229,679) (£ 295,029)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

£ 0 (£ 30,832) (£ 93,423) (£ 129,168) (£ 174,490) (£ 229,679) (£ 295,029)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 764,050) (£ 794,882) (£ 857,473) (£ 893,218) (£ 938,540) (£ 993,729) (£ 1,059,079)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 764,050) (£ 794,882) (£ 857,473) (£ 893,218) (£ 938,540) (£ 993,729) (£ 1,059,079)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 154

A
genda Item

 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

SCHEDULE 1

ON-STREET & OFF STREET PAYMENTS

PCN ISSUE & PAYMENTS

PCNs PCNs % PAID VOLUME AMOUNT

Projected Number of PCNs 9,490                                                    ISSUED %PAID PAID BY BAND PAID PAID

Off-street PCN Higher Level  £70.00 0 78% 0 11% 0 £0

50% Discount  £35.00 65% 0 £0
50% Premium  £105.00 2% 0 £0 £0

Off-street PCN Lower Level  £50.00 0 78% 0 11% 0 £0
50% Discount  £25.00 65% 0 £0
50% Premium  £75.00 2% 0 £0 £0

On-street PCN Higher Level  £70.00 6,643 75% 4,982 10% 664 £46,501

50% Discount  £35.00 63% 4,185 £146,478

50% Premium  £105.00 2% 133 £13,950 £206,929
On-street PCN Lower Level  £50.00 2,847 75% 2,135 10% 285 £14,235

50% Discount  £25.00 63% 1,794 £44,840
50% Premium  £75.00 2% 57 £4,271 £63,346

9,490 75% 7,118 7,118 £270,275

Off-street total: £0

On-street Total: £270,275
£270,275

CURRENT RECEIPTS Net ECN Value

On-Street - 1 £20.00 £20.00 0 -                    0 £0

On-Street - 2 £40.00 £40.00 -                    0 £0

On-Street - 3 £0.00 £0.00 -                    0 £0
0.0%

Off-Street - 1 £70.00 £70.00 0 -                    0 £0

Off-Street - 2 £50.00 £50.00 -                    0 £0

Off-Street - 3 £35.00 £35.00 -                    0 £0 £0

Off-Street - 4 £25.00 £25.00 -                    0 £0 £0

Off-Street - 5 £40.00 £40.00 0 -                    0 £0

Off-Street - 6 £80.00 £80.00 -                    0 £0 £0
0 0 0 £0 £0

TOTAL / MARGINAL RECEIPTS 9,490 77% 7,118 7,118 £270,275

SCHEDULE 2

PERMIT PAYMENTS UNIT PROPOSED

TOTAL NOW NEW COST INCREASE AMOUNT

PERMIT ISSUES AND REVENUE BY PERMIT TYPE:

Permit - Staff/Public 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Business 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Doctor 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Resident 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Visitor 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - 0 0 0 £50 £0 £0

TOTAL PERMITS 0 0 0 £0

SCHEDULE 3

PAY & DISPLAY AND CAR PARK RECEIPTS AMOUNT

TOTAL NOW NEW

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY - AREA 1 £0 £0 £0 £0

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY - AREA 2 £0 £0 £0 £0

CAR PARK INCOME INCREASE Current £0 £0 £0 £0

FREE CAR PARKS CHARGED No £0 £0 £0 £0

VOL. INCREASE ONLY ON-STREET 1% £54,113 £53,577 £536 £536 Henley and Abingdon

VOL. INCREASE ONLY OFF-STREET 1% £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL RECEIPTS £536

SCHEDULE 4

PROCEEDS FROM COUNTY COURT & SUBSEQUENT ACTION

PROCEEDS FROM ACTION (See AW04) £17,382

COSTS OF ACTION (£4,650)

NET PROCEEDS £12,732

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 4 of 16

Page 155

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

SCHEDULE 5

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

TOTAL

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

Parking Manager 1.0 0.30 0.7 £42,000 £29,400

Asst Parking Manager 0.0 0.00 0.0 £27,500 £0

Parking officer 1.0 0.00 1.0 £22,000 £22,000

TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 2.0 0.3 1.7 £51,400 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Percentage of Salary 32.7% £16,808

  Accommodation Costs - Mgt. Annual Charge/New Office 1 1 0 £2,750 £0

  Accommodation Costs - Staff Annual Charge/New Office 1 0 1 £2,750 £2,750 £0

  Uniform Costs Cost Per Head £450 £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Cost Per New Head 2 £0 £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 1 1 £100 £100

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £19,658 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Head 2 1 1 £600 £600

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 2 1 1 £100 £100

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

  PC Cost Per Head 2 1 1 £1,000 £1,000

  PC Software Cost Per Head 2 0 2 £350 £700

  Printer Cost Per Head 1 1 0 £400 £0

  Networking Cost Per Head 1 1 0 £1,000 £0

  Equipment Lease Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Maintenance Cost of Equipment 20.0% £340

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS £440 £600 £1,700

OTHER COSTS:

  Telephone expenses Cost Per Head 2 1 1 £200 £200

  Public relations Estimate 1 £1,000 £1,000 £10,000

  Consultancy costs Set-Up expenses £12,000

  TRO/GIS set-up Survey and mapping of TROs on-site £180,000

  Signs & Lines remedial works Set-Up expenses £510,000

  Signs conversion in car parks 51 £150 £7,650

  TRO and OSPPO conversion Legal £3,500

  Lease car £0

  Training - Set-up Cost Per Head -all staff 2.0 0 2 £550 £1,100

  Training - on-going Cost Per Head -all staff 2.0 0 2 £250 £500

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 10.0% £7,320

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £9,020 £0 £724,250

£0
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £80,518 £600 £725,950

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 5 of 16

Page 156

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

SCHEDULE 6

ON STREET ENFORCEMENT

TOTAL

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  TUPEd Supervisors 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  Team Leaders 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  CEOs -                         0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  TUPEd CEOs 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0
TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Salary 32.7% £0

  Accommodation Costs Cost Per Head 0 0.0 0.0 £1,250 £0 £0

  Uniform Initial Costs Uniformed CEO's & Supervisors 0 0.0 0.0 £579 £0

  Uniform Maintenance Original Costs 50.0% £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Estimate £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 0.0 0.0 £400 £0

  Uniform Replacement Costs New staff 0.0 £200 £0

  Uniform Stock Costs Original Costs 0.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £0 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Manager / Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 £600 £0

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 0 0.0 0.0 £100 £0

  Radio base station 0.0 0.0 0.0 £550 £0

  No. of Sets of Equipment for CEOs 0.0

  Personal video 0.0 0.0 £150 £0

  Batteries & chargers 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  HHCT/ Android HHCT+Case+printer 0.0 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Software Per HHC 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  HHCT Spares Spares Holding % 5.0% 0.0 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Chargers Per Number of HHCT 0.0 0.0 £20 £0

  Digital cameras Per CEO 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  PCs (including software) 0.0 0.0 0.0 £340 £0

  PC Installation 0.0 0.0 0.0 £200 £0

  Printer 0.0 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  Equipment Lease 3 year lease rate per £1,000 Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Maintenance Cost of Equipment 20.0% £0 £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS £0 £0 £0

OTHER COSTS:

  Tickets issued Volume + % Spoilt 5.0% 9,965 9,965 £0.00 £0

  Telephone expense Estimate £0

  Stationery / Consumables Estimate 0.0 £40.00 £0

  Training - Set-up Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £750 £0

  Training Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £200 £0

  Private mileage Essential car user allowance -                   -             -                    £0.440 £0

  Car Purchase 0 0 0 £10,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 5 £230 £0

Operating Costs 1.5 0.0 1.5 £4,113 £6,169

  CEO Scooters Purchase 0 0 0 £2,500 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0 0 0 £1,800 £0

Protective Clothing/Helmets 0 0 0 £600 £0

  CEO Transport Purchase 0 0 0 £12,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0 0 0 £4,113 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 0.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £6,169 £0 £0

Contractors all inclusive CEO rate £21.50 £ 163,228

estimate £25,000
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £169,397 £0 £25,000

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 6 of 16

Page 157

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

SCHEDULE 7

OFF STREET ENFORCEMENT

TOTAL

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

  Senior Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 £23,000 £0

  Team Leaders 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  CEOs -                         0.00 0.00 0.00 £20,000 £0

TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Salary 32.7% £0

  Accommodation Costs Cost Per Head 0.0 0.0 0.0 £1,250 £0 £0

  Uniform Initial Costs Uniformed CEO's & Supervisors 0.0 0.0 0.0 £579 £0

  Uniform Maintenance Original Costs 50.0% £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Estimate £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  Uniform Replacement Costs New staff 0.0 £200 £0

  Uniform Stock Costs Original Costs 0.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £0 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Manager / Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 £600 £0

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 0.0 0.0 0.0 £100 £0

  Radio base station 0.0 0.0 0.0 £550 £0

  No. of Sets of Equipment for CEOs 0.0

  Personal video 0.0 £150 £0

  Batteries & chargers 0.0 £0 £0

  HHCT/ Android HHCT+Case+printer 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Software Per HHC 0.0 £250 £0

  HHCT Spares Spares Holding % 5.0% 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Chargers Per Number of HHCT 0.0 £20 £0

  Digital cameras Per CEO 0.0 £0 £0

  PCs (including software) 0.0 0.0 0.0 £340 £0

  PC Installation 0.0 0.0 0.0 £200 £0

  Printer 0.0 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  Equipment Lease 3 year lease rate per £1,000 Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Maintenance Cost of Equipment 20.0% £0 £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS £0 £0 £0

OTHER COSTS:

  Tickets issued Volume + % Spoilt 5.0% 0 0 £0.00 £0

  Telephone expense Estimate £0

  Stationery / Consumables Estimate 0.0 £40.00 £0

  Training - Set-up Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £750 £0

  Training Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £200 £0

  Private mileage Essential car user allowance 10,000             -             -                    £0.440 £0

  Car Purchase 0 0 0 £10,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0.0 0.0 0.0 £4,113 £0

  CEO Scooters Purchase 2 2 0 £2,500 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 2 2 0 £1,800 £0

Protective Clothing/Helmets 2 2 0 £600 £0

  CEO Transport Purchase 0 0 0 £12,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0 0 0 £4,113 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 10.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £0 £0 £0

Contractors all inclusive CEO rate £0.00 £ 0

estimated extra costs £ 0 £0

less current costs
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £0 £0 £0

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 7 of 16

Page 158

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

SCHEDULE 8

TICKET & PERMIT PROCESSING

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL TOTAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

  Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  PCN Processing Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £17,800 £0

  Reps, Court & TPT staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  Permit Processing Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  Parking Counter Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0
TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Salary 32.7% £0

  Accommodation Costs Cost Per Head 0.0 0 0 £1,500 £0 £0

  Uniform Initial Costs Counter staff 0 0 0 £250 £0

  Uniform Maintenance Original Costs 50.0% £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Estimate 0 £100 £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 0 0 £100 £0

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £0 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Head 1 0 1 £600 £600

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 0 0 0 £100 £0

COMPUTER SYSTEM COSTS 0

  PCN Processing Purchase Application software upgrade Per user 0 0 0 £7,800 £0

  Permits System - 4 user licence Application software upgrade 0 0 0 £5,300 £0

  Digital camera interface 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  Dispensations Module 0 0 0 £500 £0

  Suspensions Module 0 0 0 £500 £0

  Equipment maintenance Module 0 0 0 £1,350 £0

  Internet payment module 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  GIS Interface 0 0 0 £2,500 £0

  Cash Receipting 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  Postcode addressing 4 user licence 0 0 0 £2,050 £0

  Scanning Software 0 0 0 £1,900 £0

  DIP Viewing Software 0 0 0 £0 £0

  System Server System Hardware 0 0 0 £8,000 £0

  PCs 0 0 0 £950 £0

  Scanners 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  Bar Code Readers 0 0 0 £350 £0

  Cash Handling Equipment 0 0 0 £2,500 £0

  Heavy Duty - Continuous Printer Printers 0 0 0 £1,500 £0

  Laser Printers 0 0 0 £1,200 £0

  Network Cards & Software Cards / Software 0 0 0 £100 £0

  Network Cabling Cabling 0 0 0 £50 £0

  Computer System Lease Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Installation and Training Application Software(days) 3 0 3 £550 £1,650

  Implementation of systems 3 0 3 £550 £1,650

  Network Installation 1 0 1 £500 £500

  Software Support Cost of Application Software 20.0% £0

  Hardware Maintenance Cost of Equipment 12.0% £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT & SYSTEM COSTS £0 £4,400 £0

OTHER COSTS:

% OF TOTAL PCN ISSUE RELATING TO THE VOLUME INCREASE 100%

Levy per PCN excluding TEC and TPT on street extra PCNs 9490 £6.00 £56,941

  Letters (incl postage) 4,745 £0.00 £0

  DVLA enquiry 3,511 £0.00 £0

  Notices (incl postage) 3,336 £0.00 £0

  Cheque processing service Cheques received 712 £0.00 £0

  Adjudication cases % of PCNs issued 1.0% 95 £0 £0

  Adjudication Service Costs Est. Fixed Charge Joining Fee 0 £0 £0

  Adjudication Service Costs Est. Fixed Charge Annual Fee 0 £0 £0

  Adjudication Service Costs Unit cost/PCN 9,490 £0.30 £2,847

  Permit Stationery 0 £0.20 £0

  Telephone expense 1 £0 £0

  IT system set up costs 0.0% £0 £0

  Web site extensions £2,000.00

  IT Support Costs IT Departmental Support 1 £0 £0

  Initial training 1.0 £550 £1,100

  Training 0 £250 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 10.0% £285

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £60,073 £0 £3,100

extra costs rates £10,000

less current costs off street
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £60,073 £4,400 £13,100

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 8 of 16

Page 159

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

ADDITIONAL WORKINGS

(AW01)   PAYMENTS BY LOCATION: % NUMBER VALUE

MAILED PAYMENTS 40% 2,847 £108,110

TELEPHONE PAYMENTS 25% 1,779 £67,555

INTERNET PAYMENTS 35% 2,491 £94,592

TOTAL PAYMENTS 7,117

AVERAGE PAYMENT VALUE £37.97

(AW02)   PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION BY TIME OF PAYMENT

VOLUME AMOUNT

PAYMENTS MADE AT DISCOUNT LEVEL 5,979 £191,318

PAYMENTS MADE BEFORE CHARGE CERTIFICATE 949 £60,736

POST CHARGE CERTIFICATE PAYMENTS 190 £18,221

TOTAL PAYMENTS: 7,118 £270,275

(AW03)   ESTIMATED LEVELS OF CORRESPONDENCE / TRANSACTIONS

NB: TOTAL VOLUMES, NOT MARGINAL VOLUMES

  Receipts Mailed Payments 2,847
  Correspondence % of Tickets Issued 50% 4,745
  Pocket books checked % of Tickets Issued 6% 569
  Meter checks % of Tickets Issued 1% 95
  Site visits % of Tickets Issued 1% 95
  TRO/map checks % of Tickets Issued 1% 95
  Permits applications Number of Permits Issued 0
  Permits Correspondence % of Number of Permits 50% 0
  Cases to DVLA Tickets Issued less Payments before Notice 3,511
  DVLA successful responses % of Cases to DVLA 95% 3,336
  Manual DVLA VQ5 responses % of Cases to DVLA 5% 176
  Notices (NTOs) DVLA successful responses 3,336
  Charge Certificates % of NTOs 45% 1,501
  Telephone Calls % of Tickets Issued 50% 4,745
  Personal visits at Reception % of Tickets Issued 5% 475
  Permits Telephone calls % of Number of Permits 50% 0
  Representations % of Notices 33% 1,101
  Notices of Rejection % of Representations 75% 826
  Adjudication Cases % of Notices of Rejection 9% 74
  PCNs cancelled % of PCNs issued 11% 313
  C.Court Registrations Eligible Cases - See AW04 581
Enforcement Agents EA Action - See AW04 494
TOTAL CORRESPONDENCE / TRANSACTION VOLUMES 28,915

VOLUME PER DAY Based on 225 days / year 129

ADDITIONAL WORKINGS - CONTINUED

(AW04) COUNTY COURT ESTIMATE

ANNUAL PROJECTION OF ISSUE 9,490

NO. OF CASES STILL OPEN AFTER 72 DAYS: 1,186

% OF THESE FOR MULTIPLE OFFENDERS: 5% 59

% OF THESE ALREADY REGISTERED: 2% 24

% OF THESE WITH CURRENT CORRESPONDENCE, ETC 7% 83

% OF THESE WITH < £20 DUE 10% 119

% OF THESE OUTSIDE JURISDICTION: 2% 24

% WITH NO GOOD NAME AND ADDRESS: 25% 297

ELIGIBLE CASES: 581

ANNUAL COST OF REGISTRATION: £8.00 £4,650

% OF THESE PAYING AFTER REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: 15% 87

AVERAGE PCN VALUE AT THIS STAGE: £96.00

REVENUE FROM REGISTRATION PAYEES: £8,370

CASES ELIGIBLE FOR WARRANT REQUEST: 494

% AGAINST WHICH EA ACTION TAKEN: 95% 469

% PAYING AFTER EA ACTION: 20% 94

REVENUE FROM EA ACTION: £9,012

% OF PROCEEDS RETAINED BY EA: 0% £0
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS £12,732

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £70 0

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £50 0

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £70 6,643

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £50 2,847

CHARGE BAND: £70 £70

CHARGE BAND: £50 £50

CHARGE BAND: £70 £70

CHARGE BAND: £50 £50

TOTAL REVENUE(IGNORING DISCOUNT IMPACT): £607,360

AVERAGE PCN VALUE: £64

AVERAGE INCREMENTED PCN VALUE: £96

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 9 of 16

Page 160

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR

MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

(AW05) ESTABLISHMENT

Staffing Total Current New

Operational Management 2.00 0.30 1.70

On Street Enforcement 0.00 0.00 0.00

Off Street Enforcement 0.00 0.00 0.00

Removal CEOs 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ticket & Permit Processing 0.00 0.00 0.00

Machine maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Staffing 2.00 0.30 1.70

CEO's Only 0.00 0.00 0.00

(AW06) VEHICLE USAGE COSTS

Item Volume Unit Cost

Miles per day 70

Days per week 6

Weeks per year 50

Miles per year 21,000                    

Miles per gallon 45

Price per gallon £6.00 gallon

Fuel costs £2,800

Service cost £250 each service

Service Interval 12,000                    miles

Annual Service costs £438

Road Fund Licence £150

Insurance £225

Repairs £500
£4,113

Item Volume Unit Cost
Miles per day 40
Days per week 6
Weeks per year 50
Miles per year 12,000                    
Miles per gallon 75
Price per gallon £6.00 gallon
Fuel costs £960
Service cost £100 each service
Service Interval 5,000                      miles
Annual Service costs £240
Road Fund Licence £75
Insurance £225
Repairs £300

£1,800

(AW07) UNIFORMS

ITEM UNIT COST
NUMBER 

REQUIRED 
PER CEO

TOTAL 
ONE-OFF 
SET-UP

TOTAL 
ANNUAL 

RECURRING

Anorak/Coats £85.00 1 £85.00
Shirts/Blouses £9.95 6 £59.70 £29.85
Nato style Pullovers £19.50 2 £39.00
Trousers/skirts £31.00 4 £124.00 £62.00
Ties £3.20 1 £3.20
Gloves £19.95 1 £19.95
Scarves £5.95 1 £5.95
Shoes £30.00 3 £90.00 £45.00
Hats £42.00 1 £42.00
Shoulder badges £2.80 16 £44.80
Flashes £5.20 2 £10.40
Fleece jacket £25.00 1 £25.00
Bag £30.00 1 £30.00

£579.00 £136.85

Car/MPV Costs

Scooter Costs

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 10 of 16

Page 161

Agenda Item 9



CEOs

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

CEO RESOURCE CALCULATION:

ON -STREET ENFORCEMENT CEOs

Patrol hours required On -Street 146.00            CEO Hours/week

Travelling Time Estimate No. of CEOs: 3.72
Hours/CEO/day: 0 0.00 CEO Hours/week

Total Hours / week 146.00 100.0%
Eff't CEO hrs/week 39.20              

Total FTE CEOs Required On-Street 3.72

OFF-STREET CAR PARKS CEOs Hours/week

Patrol hours required for Off-Street car parks -                  CEO Hours/week

Travelling Time Estimate No. of CEOS: 0.00

Hours/CEO/day: 0 0.00 CEO Hours/week

Total Hours / week 0.00 0.0%
Eff't CEO hrs/week 39.20              

Total FTE CEOs Required Off-Street 0.00

Total Hours / week 146.00

TOTAL FTE CEOs REQUIRED 3.72

Workings for Calculation of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) CEOs Required

ON-STREET CEOs

Calculation of Absence Factor CEO Working Day & Effective Patrol Hours

Days in the Year 52 5 260 Average Shift Hours 8.00                
Public Holidays -8 Less: Local Travel & Admin -                  
Holidays -25 Average Patrol Hours Per Day 8.00                
Sickness 7.0% -15 Days Per Week 5.00                

  Days Available / Year 212 Patrol Hrs Per Week 40.00              

  Working Weeks / Year 42.40             Ambassadorial Duties 2% (0.80)               no other duties

  Absence Factor 0% Absence Factor 1.00                

Effective Patrol Hours / Week 39.20              

OFF-STREET CEOs

Calculation of Absence Factor CEO Working Day & Effective Patrol Hours

Days in the Year 52 5 260 Average Shift Hours 8.00                
Public Holidays -8 Less: Local Travel & Admin -                  
Holidays -25 Average Patrol Hours Per Day 8.00                
Sickness 7.0% -15 Days Per Week 5.00                

  Days Available / Year 212 Patrol Hrs Per Week 40.00              
  Working Weeks / Year 42.40             Ambassadorial Duties 2% (0.80)               no other duties

  Absence Factor 0% Absence Factor 1.00                

Effective Patrol Hours / Week 39.20              

RTA Associates Limited
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 11 of 16

Page 162

Agenda Item 9



PCNs

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL K

CALCULATION OF PCNS ISSUED

DISTRICT Total Hours Effective Patrol FTE PCN rate Effective PCNs Weeks/ PCNs/
per Week Hours/Week/CEO CEOs Per Week PCN Rate Issued/Wk Year Year

Didcot 7.00                 39.20 0.18 49 49 9 52.00 455
Henley 7.00                 39.20 0.18 49 49 9 52.00 455
Wallingford 7.00                 39.20 0.18 49 49 9 52.00 455
Thame 7.00                 39.20 0.18 49 49 9 52.00 455
Mobile patrols 3.00                 39.20 0.08 49 49 4 52.00 195

Sub-Total 31.00
Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0

Abingdon 9.00                 39.20 0.23 49 49 11 52.00 585
Botley 4.00                 39.20 0.10 49 49 5 52.00 260
Faringdon 6.00                 39.20 0.15 49 49 8 52.00 390
Wantage 9.00                 39.20 0.23 49 49 11 52.00 585
Mobile patrols 3.00                 39.20 0.08 49 49 4 52.00 195

Sub-Total 31.00
Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0 1.25

Banbury 50.86 39.20 1.30 49 49 64 52.00 3,306
Bicester 18.50 39.20 0.47 49 49 23 52.00 1,202
Kidlington 6.94 39.20 0.18 49 49 9 52.00 451
Mobile patrols 7.71 39.20 0.20 49 49 10 52.00 501

Sub-Total 84.00
Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0

146.00 3.72 183 9,490 100.0%

OFF-STREET

CAR PARKS Total Hours Effective Patrol FTE PCN rate Effective PCNs Weeks/ PCNs/
per Week Hours/Week/CEO CEOs Per Week PCN Rate Issued/Wk Year Year

P&D CDC 0.00 39.20 0.00 69 69 0 52.00 0
P&D SODC 0.00 39.20 0.00 15 15 0 52.00 0
P&D VWHDC 0.00 39.20 0.00 10 10 0 52.00 0
Currently Free CDC 0.00 39.20 0.00 19 19 0 52.00 0

Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0 #DIV/0!

0.00 0.00 0 0 0.0%

REMOVALS -                   

TOTAL PCN PROJECTION: 9,490

On-street PCNs issued at HIGHER level: % of On-street PCNs: 70% 6,643               70%
On-street PCNs issued at LOWER level: % of On-street PCNs: 30% 2,847               30%
Off-street PCNs issued at HIGHER level: % of Off-street PCNs: 7% -                   0%
Off-street PCNs issued at LOWER level: % of Off-street PCNs: 93% -                   0%

9,490               100%

PCNs issued at HIGHER level: 6,643               70%
PCNs issued at LOWER level: 2,847               30%

9,490               100%

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 12 of 16

P
age 163

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL K

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS START-UP

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 9,490
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 791

being: ON-STREET 791
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER -3 -2 -1 START-UP

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED 0% 0% 0%
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3 0 0 0
OFF-STREET 0% 0 0 0 0
TOTAL: PCNs 0 0 0 0

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs 0 0 0 0

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £191,318
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £15,943 £0 £0 £0

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £60,736
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £5,061 £0 £0 £0

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £18,221
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £1,518 £0 £0 £0

Per Year: £270,275
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3) £0 £0 £0 £0
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2) £0 £0 £0 £0
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3) £0 £0 £0 £0
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6) £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION 10% 20% 30%

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0 0 0 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED £0 £0 £0 £0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY £0 £0 £0 £0
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY £0 £0 £0 £0
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE £0 £0 £0 £0
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS £0 £0 £0 £0

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£309,987)

PER MONTH (£25,832) £0 £0 (£25,832) (£25,832)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£5,000) £0 £0 (£5,000) (£5,000)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) £0 £0 (£30,832) (£30,832)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE £0 £0 (£30,832)

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 13 of 16

P
age 164

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL K

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 9,490
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 791

being: ON-STREET 791
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3
OFF-STREET 0% 0
TOTAL: PCNs

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £191,318
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £15,943

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £60,736
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £5,061

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £18,221
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £1,518

Per Year: £270,275
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3)
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2)
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3)
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6)

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£309,987)

PER MONTH (£25,832)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£5,000)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

FIRST 12 MONTHS OF OPERATION

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 MTHS

664 704 746 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

664 704 746 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 9,231
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£13,386 £14,189 £15,041 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943

£4,250 £4,505 £4,775 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061

£1,275 £1,351 £1,432 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£13,386 £14,189 £15,041 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £186,105

£0 £0 £4,250 £4,505 £4,775 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £48,958
£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £1,275 £1,351 £1,432 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £8,614

£13,386 £14,189 £19,290 £20,448 £20,718 £21,005 £22,279 £22,356 £22,437 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £243,677

25% 10% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £536

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £3,183

(£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£309,987)
£0

(£12,401) (£11,598) (£6,497) (£5,340) (£5,070) (£4,783) (£3,508) (£3,432) (£3,351) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£62,591)

(£43,234) (£54,832) (£61,329) (£66,669) (£71,739) (£76,522) (£80,030) (£83,462) (£86,812) (£89,016) (£91,220) (£93,423)

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 14 of 16

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL K

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 9,490
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 791

being: ON-STREET 791
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3
OFF-STREET 0% 0
TOTAL: PCNs

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £191,318
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £15,943

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £60,736
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £5,061

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £18,221
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £1,518

Per Year: £270,275
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3)
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2)
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3)
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6)

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£309,987)

PER MONTH (£25,832)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£5,000)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

SECOND 12 MONTHS OF OPERATION

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 24 MTHS

791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 9,490
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943

£5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061

£1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £191,318

£5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £60,736
£1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £18,221

£22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £270,275

25% 10% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £536

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £12,732

(£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£309,987)
£0

(£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£26,444)

(£95,627) (£97,831) (£100,035) (£102,238) (£104,442) (£106,646) (£108,849) (£111,053) (£113,257) (£115,460) (£117,664) (£119,868)

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 15 of 16

P
age 166

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: K all 3 IR
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL K

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 9,490
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 791

being: ON-STREET 791
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3
OFF-STREET 0% 0
TOTAL: PCNs

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £191,318
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £15,943

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £60,736
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £5,061

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £18,221
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £1,518

Per Year: £270,275
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3)
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2)
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3)
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6)

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£309,987)

PER MONTH (£25,832)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£5,000)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

THIRD 12 MONTHS OF OPERATION

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 36 MTHS

791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 791 9,490
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943

£5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061

£1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £15,943 £191,318

£5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £5,061 £60,736
£1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £1,518 £18,221

£22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £22,523 £270,275

25% 10% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £536

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £1,061 £12,732

(£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£25,832) (£309,987)
£0

(£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£2,204) (£26,444)

(£122,072) (£124,275) (£126,479) (£128,683) (£130,886) (£133,090) (£135,294) (£137,498) (£139,701) (£141,905) (£144,109) (£146,312)

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 16 of 16

P
age 167

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 54 - April 2020 

 

 

APPENDIX L  APPENDIX K; with 40% dual role parking and environment 

enforcement and administration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 168

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: L all 3 IR Dual
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL L
ALL External on street only
Industry rates
With 40% environmental ambassador role 

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED:

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 1 of 17

P
age 169

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: L all 3 IR Dual
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL L
ALL External on street only
Industry rates
With 40% environmental ambassador role 

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 5,652 5,810 5,810 5,810 5,810

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £149,185 £165,469 £165,469 £165,469 £165,469
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £1,949 £7,795 £7,795 £7,795 £7,795

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £151,669 £173,799 £173,799 £173,799 £173,799

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £725,950 £7,310 £80,518 £82,933 £85,421 £87,984 £90,623
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £25,000 £22,734 £272,812 £280,996 £289,426 £298,109 £307,052
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £13,100 £7,465 £36,779 £37,883 £39,019 £40,190 £41,396
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £764,050 £37,509 £390,109 £401,812 £413,866 £426,282 £439,071

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£764,050) (£37,509) (£238,439) (£228,013) (£240,067) (£252,483) (£265,271)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£37,509) (£275,948) (£503,961) (£744,028) (£996,511) (£1,261,782)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£801,559) (£1,039,998) (£1,268,011) (£1,508,078) (£1,760,561) (£2,025,832)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£262,452) (£465,382) (£666,947) (£866,937) (£1,065,163)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£1,026,502) (£1,229,432) (£1,430,997) (£1,630,987) (£1,829,213)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 31/01/2020 Page 2 of 17

P
age 170

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: L all 3 IR Dual
MODEL DATE: 31-Jan-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL L

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 5,652 5,810 5,810 5,810 5,810
ON-STREET: 100.0% 5,652                             5,810                             5,810                             5,810                             5,810                             

OFF-STREET: 0.0% -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 149,185 £ 165,469 £ 165,469 £ 165,469 £ 165,469
ON-STREET (Higher): 76.6% £ 114,220 £ 126,687 £ 126,687 £ 126,687 £ 126,687
ON-STREET (Lower): 23.4% £ 34,965 £ 38,782 £ 38,782 £ 38,782 £ 38,782

new OFF-STREET 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
current OFF-STREET 100.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 1,949 £ 7,795 £ 7,795 £ 7,795 £ 7,795
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 1,949 £ 7,795 £ 7,795 £ 7,795 £ 7,795

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 725,950 £ 7,310 £ 80,518 £ 82,933 £ 85,421 £ 87,984 £ 90,623
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 725,950 £ 7,310 £ 80,518 £ 82,933 £ 85,421 £ 87,984 £ 90,623

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 25,000 £ 22,734 £ 272,812 £ 280,996 £ 289,426 £ 298,109 £ 307,052
ON-STREET: 100% £ 25,000 £ 22,734 £ 272,812 £ 280,996 £ 289,426 £ 298,109 £ 307,052

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 13,100 £ 7,465 £ 36,779 £ 37,883 £ 39,019 £ 40,190 £ 41,396
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 13,100 £ 7,465 £ 36,779 £ 37,883 £ 39,019 £ 40,190 £ 41,396

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 151,669 £ 173,799 £ 173,799 £ 173,799 £ 173,799
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 151,669 £ 173,799 £ 173,799 £ 173,799 £ 173,799

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 764,050 £ 37,509 £ 390,109 £ 401,812 £ 413,866 £ 426,282 £ 439,071
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 764,050 £ 37,509 £ 390,109 £ 401,812 £ 413,866 £ 426,282 £ 439,071

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 764,050) (£ 37,509) (£ 238,439) (£ 228,013) (£ 240,067) (£ 252,483) (£ 265,271)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 764,050) (£ 37,509) (£ 238,439) (£ 228,013) (£ 240,067) (£ 252,483) (£ 265,271)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 37,509) (£ 275,948) (£ 503,961) (£ 744,028) (£ 996,511) (£ 1,261,782)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

£ 0 (£ 37,509) (£ 275,948) (£ 503,961) (£ 744,028) (£ 996,511) (£ 1,261,782)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 764,050) (£ 801,559) (£ 1,039,998) (£ 1,268,011) (£ 1,508,078) (£ 1,760,561) (£ 2,025,832)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 764,050) (£ 801,559) (£ 1,039,998) (£ 1,268,011) (£ 1,508,078) (£ 1,760,561) (£ 2,025,832)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 17 Printed: 31/01/2020

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 9



Oxfordshire County Council Civil Parking Enforcement 
 

 
RTA Associates Ltd. Page - 55 - April 2020 

 

 

APPENDIX N The FULL joint model for all 3 Districts, External service provision 

using current Oxford City rates with central management by 

Oxfordshire County Council (N). ON street only services. 

 

Page 172

Agenda Item 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL N
Enforcement External on street only
Oxfordshire County Council undertake administration in full

MODEL OPTIONS SELECTED: 0

CIVIL Enforcement OFFICER TIME ALLOCATION: Parking Enforcement
If the CIVIL Enforcement OFFICERs have duties which reduce the effective time they will spend Options: Selected Option Balance
enforcing the parking regulations, this will be reflected by a proportional split On-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%
being entered for the Other Duties (Enforcement Duties will adjust automatically). Off-Street 0 - 100% 0% 100%

Actions: Enter required percentages under On-Street and/or Off-Street

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY CHARGING:
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option Option Number

Current Select for no-change to the current status on implementation of DPE Current Current 1
New P&D-1 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" New P&D-1 Refresh PCN Tables after Changing Selection

New P&D- 1&2 Includes the income and expenses derived from schedule "P&D-1" and schedule "P&D-2". New P&D-1&2
Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING 
The model has three possible options which can be selected as follows: - Options: Selected Option

Current Select for no change to tarrifs or transaction volumes Current Current
Option 1 Considers revised tarrifs, transaction volumes and distributions of transaction by tarrif. Option 1
Option 2 Considers same changes as Option 1 but for alternative tarrif structure. Option 2

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

OFF-STREET CAR PARK TRANSACTION VOLUMES INCREASE
This is the estimated increase in transaction volumes experienced in Off-Street Car Parks post DPE. Options: Selected Option

Apply percentage volume increase to "Current" Income Yes or No Yes
Actions: Select the required option to apply or not apply the percentage change to "Current Income";  then 0 - 100% 1%

Enter required percentage volume increase under "Selected Option"

OFF-STREET CAR PARK CHARGING IN FREE CAR PARKS
Selecting the "Yes" Option will include an estimated volume of transactions from Free Car Parks to be included in the Options: Selected Option
calculation of "Off-Street Car Park Charging". It will also modify the Enforcement required now these Car Parks are Yes No
charged for. No

Actions: Select one "Option" and copy over "Selected Option" to revise model 

CURRENT VAT RATE
The model will use this rate for all calculations involving VAT Range VAT Rate

Actions: Enter current VAT rate under "VAT Rate" 0 - 100% 20.0%

LEASING RATES
The model uses 3  or 5 year periods for leasing items, as selected per item.  Enter current rates per £1,000 per annum: Rate for 3 year leases: £310

Rate for 5 year leases: £230

Non-Parking Enforcement Duties

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 1 of 16

P
age 173

A
genda Item

 9



SUMMARY

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model ALL 3 DC's

VERSION: MODEL N
Enforcement External on street only
Oxfordshire County Council undertake administration in full

SUMMARY OF MARGINAL INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Enter 1 - 3 START-UP START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
START-UP = 1 MONTHS SCH PERIOD CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

REF (months)
INCOME 

PCNs ISSUED 0 5,464 5,617 5,617 5,617 5,617

PCN PAYMENTS 1 £0 £144,230 £159,973 £159,973 £159,973 £159,973
CLAMP & REMOVAL PAYMENTS £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMIT PAYMENTS 2 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CAR PARK RECEIPTS 3 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
ON STREET CHARGING 3 £0 £536 £536 £536 £536 £536
NET C.COURT PROCEEDS 4 £0 £1,884 £7,536 £7,536 £7,536 £7,536

TOTAL PAYMENTS £0 £146,650 £168,045 £168,045 £168,045 £168,045

EXPENSES:
Inflation factor 3% 3% 3% 3%

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 5 1 £716,600 £101 £1,210 £1,246 £1,284 £1,322 £1,362
ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT 6 1 £25,000 £9,561 £114,731 £118,173 £121,718 £125,370 £129,131
OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT 7 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
CLAMP & REMOVAL CONTROL 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING 8 1 £13,100 £8,191 £45,491 £46,855 £48,261 £49,709 £51,200
PAY & DISPLAY 9 1 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL EXPENSES £754,700 £17,853 £161,432 £166,275 £171,263 £176,401 £181,693

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) (£754,700) (£17,853) (£14,782) £1,770 (£3,218) (£8,356) (£13,648)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL (£17,853) (£32,635) (£30,865) (£34,083) (£42,439) (£56,087)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT)INCLUDING CAPITAL (£772,553) (£787,335) (£785,565) (£788,783) (£797,139) (£810,787)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (EXCLUDING CAPITAL) (£31,798) (£30,223) (£32,925) (£39,544) (£49,742)

NPV INTEREST RATE 6%
YEAR END NPVs (INCLUDING CAPITAL) (£786,498) (£784,923) (£787,625) (£794,244) (£804,442)

Notes:-

1 NPV - Calculation assumes that the Start Up Cost is a negative cash flow at the start of year 1 and that each years cash flow thereafter is received at the end of the year.  
2 SCH REF - Reference to the detailed working schedules attached.
3 Start up costs include capital costs, one-off costs incurred before commencement, and percentage of first year expenses calculated from number of months selected in Start-up Period.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 2 of 16

P
age 174

A
genda Item

 9



on-off

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

ANALYSIS BETWEEN ON-STREET AND OFF-STREET INCOME AND COSTS
NB: THE RESULTS BELOW ARE THE MARGINAL CHANGE TO THE PARKING ACCOUNT, AND DO NOT THEREFORE REPRESENT THE FULL ON-OFF-STREET RING FENCED ACCOUNT.

START-UP START-UP FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH FIFTH
CAPITAL EXPENSES 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS 12 MTHS

% SPLIT

PCNs ISSUED: 5,464 5,617 5,617 5,617 5,617
ON-STREET: 100.0% 5,464                             5,617                             5,617                             5,617                             5,617                             

OFF-STREET: 0.0% -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                

INCOME BASIS OF SPLIT

PCN PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 144,230 £ 159,973 £ 159,973 £ 159,973 £ 159,973
ON-STREET (Higher): 76.6% £ 110,428 £ 122,482 £ 122,482 £ 122,482 £ 122,482
ON-STREET (Lower): 23.4% £ 33,802 £ 37,491 £ 37,491 £ 37,491 £ 37,491

new OFF-STREET 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
current OFF-STREET 100.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PERMIT PAYMENTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON STREET CHARGING TOTAL: £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536
ON-STREET: 100% £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536 £ 536

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

NET C.COURT PROCEEDS TOTAL: £ 1,884 £ 7,536 £ 7,536 £ 7,536 £ 7,536
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 1,884 £ 7,536 £ 7,536 £ 7,536 £ 7,536

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

EXPENSES:

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT TOTAL: £ 716,600 £ 101 £ 1,210 £ 1,246 £ 1,284 £ 1,322 £ 1,362
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 716,600 £ 101 £ 1,210 £ 1,246 £ 1,284 £ 1,322 £ 1,362

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

ON-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 25,000 £ 9,561 £ 114,731 £ 118,173 £ 121,718 £ 125,370 £ 129,131
ON-STREET: 100% £ 25,000 £ 9,561 £ 114,731 £ 118,173 £ 121,718 £ 125,370 £ 129,131

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET ENFORCEMENT TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TICKET & PERMITS PROCESSING TOTAL: £ 13,100 £ 8,191 £ 45,491 £ 46,855 £ 48,261 £ 49,709 £ 51,200
ON-STREET: 100.0% £ 13,100 £ 8,191 £ 45,491 £ 46,855 £ 48,261 £ 49,709 £ 51,200

OFF-STREET: 0.0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

PAY & DISPLAY TOTAL: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
ON-STREET: 100% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

OFF-STREET: 0% £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

TOTALS:
INCOME ON-STREET: £ 0 £ 146,650 £ 168,045 £ 168,045 £ 168,045 £ 168,045
INCOME OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL INCOME: £ 0 £ 146,650 £ 168,045 £ 168,045 £ 168,045 £ 168,045

EXPENSES ON-STREET: £ 754,700 £ 17,853 £ 161,432 £ 166,275 £ 171,263 £ 176,401 £ 181,693
EXPENSES OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0
TOTAL EXPENSES: £ 754,700 £ 17,853 £ 161,432 £ 166,275 £ 171,263 £ 176,401 £ 181,693

ANNUAL NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT): ON-STREET: (£ 754,700) (£ 17,853) (£ 14,782) £ 1,770 (£ 3,218) (£ 8,356) (£ 13,648)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 754,700) (£ 17,853) (£ 14,782) £ 1,770 (£ 3,218) (£ 8,356) (£ 13,648)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) EXCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 17,853) (£ 32,635) (£ 30,865) (£ 34,083) (£ 42,439) (£ 56,087)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

£ 0 (£ 17,853) (£ 32,635) (£ 30,865) (£ 34,083) (£ 42,439) (£ 56,087)

CUMULATIVE NET SURPLUS OR (DEFICIT) INCLUDING CAPITAL ON-STREET: (£ 754,700) (£ 772,553) (£ 787,335) (£ 785,565) (£ 788,783) (£ 797,139) (£ 810,787)
OFF-STREET: £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0

(£ 754,700) (£ 772,553) (£ 787,335) (£ 785,565) (£ 788,783) (£ 797,139) (£ 810,787)

RTA Associates Ltd. Page 3 of 16 Printed: 06/02/2020

P
age 175

A
genda Item

 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

SCHEDULE 1

ON-STREET & OFF STREET PAYMENTS

PCN ISSUE & PAYMENTS

PCNs PCNs % PAID VOLUME AMOUNT

Projected Number of PCNs 5,617                                                    ISSUED %PAID PAID BY BAND PAID PAID

Off-street PCN Higher Level  £70.00 0 78% 0 11% 0 £0

50% Discount  £35.00 65% 0 £0
50% Premium  £105.00 2% 0 £0 £0

Off-street PCN Lower Level  £50.00 0 78% 0 11% 0 £0
50% Discount  £25.00 65% 0 £0
50% Premium  £75.00 2% 0 £0 £0

On-street PCN Higher Level  £70.00 3,932 75% 2,949 10% 393 £27,524

50% Discount  £35.00 63% 2,477 £86,701

50% Premium  £105.00 2% 79 £8,257 £122,482
On-street PCN Lower Level  £50.00 1,685 75% 1,264 10% 169 £8,425

50% Discount  £25.00 63% 1,062 £26,539
50% Premium  £75.00 2% 34 £2,528 £37,491

5,617 75% 4,213 4,213 £159,973

Off-street total: £0

On-street Total: £159,973
£159,973

CURRENT RECEIPTS Net ECN Value

On-Street - 1 £20.00 £20.00 0 -                    0 £0

On-Street - 2 £40.00 £40.00 -                    0 £0

On-Street - 3 £0.00 £0.00 -                    0 £0
0.0%

Off-Street - 1 £70.00 £70.00 0 -                    0 £0

Off-Street - 2 £50.00 £50.00 -                    0 £0

Off-Street - 3 £35.00 £35.00 -                    0 £0 £0

Off-Street - 4 £25.00 £25.00 -                    0 £0 £0

Off-Street - 5 £40.00 £40.00 0 -                    0 £0

Off-Street - 6 £80.00 £80.00 -                    0 £0 £0
0 0 0 £0 £0

TOTAL / MARGINAL RECEIPTS 5,617 77% 4,213 4,213 £159,973

SCHEDULE 2

PERMIT PAYMENTS UNIT PROPOSED

TOTAL NOW NEW COST INCREASE AMOUNT

PERMIT ISSUES AND REVENUE BY PERMIT TYPE:

Permit - Staff/Public 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Business 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Doctor 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Resident 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - Visitor 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0

Permit - 0 0 0 £50 £0 £0

TOTAL PERMITS 0 0 0 £0

SCHEDULE 3

PAY & DISPLAY AND CAR PARK RECEIPTS AMOUNT

TOTAL NOW NEW

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY - AREA 1 £0 £0 £0 £0

ON-STREET PAY & DISPLAY - AREA 2 £0 £0 £0 £0

CAR PARK INCOME INCREASE Current £0 £0 £0 £0

FREE CAR PARKS CHARGED No £0 £0 £0 £0

VOL. INCREASE ONLY ON-STREET 1% £54,113 £53,577 £536 £536 Henley and Abingdon

VOL. INCREASE ONLY OFF-STREET 1% £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL RECEIPTS £536

SCHEDULE 4

PROCEEDS FROM COUNTY COURT & SUBSEQUENT ACTION

PROCEEDS FROM ACTION (See AW04) £10,288

COSTS OF ACTION (£2,752)

NET PROCEEDS £7,536

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 4 of 16

Page 176

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

SCHEDULE 5

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

TOTAL

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

Parking Manager 1.0 1.00 0.0 £42,000 £0

Asst Parking Manager 0.0 0.00 0.0 £27,500 £0

Parking officer 1.0 1.00 0.0 £22,000 £0

TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 2.0 2.0 0.0 £0 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Percentage of Salary 32.7% £0

  Accommodation Costs - Mgt. Annual Charge/New Office 1 1 0 £2,750 £0

  Accommodation Costs - Staff Annual Charge/New Office 1 1 0 £2,750 £0 £0

  Uniform Costs Cost Per Head £450 £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Cost Per New Head 0 £0 £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 1 1 £100 £100

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £100 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £600 £0

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £100 £0

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

  PC Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £1,000 £0

  PC Software Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £350 £0

  Printer Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £400 £0

  Networking Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £1,000 £0

  Equipment Lease Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Maintenance Cost of Equipment 20.0% £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS £0 £0 £0

OTHER COSTS:

  Telephone expenses Cost Per Head 2 2 0 £200 £0

  Public relations Estimate 1 £1,000 £1,000 £10,000

  Consultancy costs Set-Up expenses £12,000

  TRO/GIS set-up Survey and mapping of TROs on-site £180,000

  Signs & Lines remedial works Set-Up expenses £510,000

  Signs conversion in car parks 51 £0 £0

  TRO and OSPPO conversion Legal £3,500

  Lease car £0

  Training - Set-up Cost Per Head -all staff 2.0 2 0 £550 £1,100

  Training - on-going Cost Per Head -all staff 2.0 2 0 £250 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 10.0% £110

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £1,110 £0 £716,600

£0
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £1,210 £0 £716,600

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 5 of 16

Page 177

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

SCHEDULE 6

ON STREET ENFORCEMENT

TOTAL

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  TUPEd Supervisors 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  Team Leaders 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  CEOs -                         0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  TUPEd CEOs 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0
TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Salary 32.7% £0

  Accommodation Costs Cost Per Head 0 0.0 0.0 £1,250 £0 £0

  Uniform Initial Costs Uniformed CEO's & Supervisors 0 0.0 0.0 £579 £0

  Uniform Maintenance Original Costs 50.0% £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Estimate £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 0.0 0.0 £400 £0

  Uniform Replacement Costs New staff 0.0 £200 £0

  Uniform Stock Costs Original Costs 0.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £0 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Manager / Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 £600 £0

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 0 0.0 0.0 £100 £0

  Radio base station 0.0 0.0 0.0 £550 £0

  No. of Sets of Equipment for CEOs 0.0

  Personal video 0.0 0.0 £150 £0

  Batteries & chargers 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  HHCT/ Android HHCT+Case+printer 0.0 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Software Per HHC 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  HHCT Spares Spares Holding % 5.0% 0.0 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Chargers Per Number of HHCT 0.0 0.0 £20 £0

  Digital cameras Per CEO 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  PCs (including software) 0.0 0.0 0.0 £340 £0

  PC Installation 0.0 0.0 0.0 £200 £0

  Printer 0.0 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  Equipment Lease 3 year lease rate per £1,000 Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Maintenance Cost of Equipment 20.0% £0 £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS £0 £0 £0

OTHER COSTS:

  Tickets issued Volume + % Spoilt 5.0% 5,897 5,897 £0.00 £0

  Telephone expense Estimate £0

  Stationery / Consumables Estimate 0.0 £40.00 £0

  Training - Set-up Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £750 £0

  Training Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £200 £0

  Private mileage Essential car user allowance -                   -             -                    £0.440 £0

  Car Purchase 0 0 0 £10,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 5 £230 £0

Operating Costs 3.0 0.0 3.0 £5,664 £16,992

  CEO Scooters Purchase 0 0 0 £2,500 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 3 0 3 £3,224 £9,672

Protective Clothing/Helmets 0 0 0 £600 £0

  CEO Transport Purchase 0 0 0 £12,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0 0 0 £4,113 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 0.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £26,664 £0 £0

Contractors all inclusive CEO rate £11.60 £ 88,067

set up estimate £25,000
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £114,731 £0 £25,000

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 6 of 16

Page 178

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

SCHEDULE 7

OFF STREET ENFORCEMENT

TOTAL

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

  Senior Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 £23,000 £0

  Team Leaders 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0

  CEOs -                         0.00 0.00 0.00 £20,000 £0

TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 £0 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Salary 32.7% £0

  Accommodation Costs Cost Per Head 0.0 0.0 0.0 £1,250 £0 £0

  Uniform Initial Costs Uniformed CEO's & Supervisors 0.0 0.0 0.0 £579 £0

  Uniform Maintenance Original Costs 50.0% £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Estimate £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  Uniform Replacement Costs New staff 0.0 £200 £0

  Uniform Stock Costs Original Costs 0.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £0 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Manager / Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 £600 £0

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 0.0 0.0 0.0 £100 £0

  Radio base station 0.0 0.0 0.0 £550 £0

  No. of Sets of Equipment for CEOs 0.0

  Personal video 0.0 £150 £0

  Batteries & chargers 0.0 £0 £0

  HHCT/ Android HHCT+Case+printer 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Software Per HHC 0.0 £250 £0

  HHCT Spares Spares Holding % 5.0% 0.0 £2,950 £0

  HHCT Chargers Per Number of HHCT 0.0 £20 £0

  Digital cameras Per CEO 0.0 £0 £0

  PCs (including software) 0.0 0.0 0.0 £340 £0

  PC Installation 0.0 0.0 0.0 £200 £0

  Printer 0.0 0.0 0.0 £250 £0

  Equipment Lease 3 year lease rate per £1,000 Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Maintenance Cost of Equipment 20.0% £0 £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS £0 £0 £0

OTHER COSTS:

  Tickets issued Volume + % Spoilt 5.0% 0 0 £0.00 £0

  Telephone expense Estimate £0

  Stationery / Consumables Estimate 0.0 £40.00 £0

  Training - Set-up Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £750 £0

  Training Cost Per Head - all staff 0 0 0 £200 £0

  Private mileage Essential car user allowance 10,000             -             -                    £0.440 £0

  Car Purchase 0 0 0 £10,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0.0 0.0 0.0 £4,113 £0

  CEO Scooters Purchase 2 2 0 £2,500 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 2 2 0 £1,800 £0

Protective Clothing/Helmets 2 2 0 £600 £0

  CEO Transport Purchase 0 0 0 £12,000 £0

Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

Operating Costs 0 0 0 £4,113 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 10.0% £0

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £0 £0 £0

Contractors all inclusive CEO rate £0.00 £ 0

estimated extra costs £ 0 £0

less current costs
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £0 £0 £0

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 7 of 16

Page 179

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

SCHEDULE 8

TICKET & PERMIT PROCESSING

TOTAL UNITS NEW UNIT ANNUAL TOTAL SET-UP SET-UP 

DESCRIPTION: MODEL ASSUMPTION % UNITS NOW UNITS COSTS EXPENSE EXPENSE CAPITAL

STAFFING / SALARY:

  Manager 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  Supervisor 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  PCN Processing Staff 1.0 0.0 1.0 £23,100 £23,100

  Reps, Court & TPT staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  Permit Processing Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0

  Parking Counter Staff 0.0 0.0 0.0 £0 £0
TOTAL STAFF / SALARY COSTS 1.0 0.0 1.0 £23,100 £0 £0

OTHER STAFFING COSTS:

  Salary Overhead Costs Salary 32.7% £7,554

  Accommodation Costs Cost Per Head 1.0 0 1 £1,500 £1,500 £0

  Uniform Initial Costs Counter staff 0 0 0 £250 £0

  Uniform Maintenance Original Costs 50.0% £0

  Initial Recruitment Costs Estimate 0 £100 £0

  Staff Turnover Recruitment % Turnover of Headcount 30.0% 0 0 £100 £0

TOTAL OTHER STAFF COSTS £9,054 £0 £0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

  Office Equipment Set-up Cost Per Head 1 0 1 £600 £600

  Maintenance Cost Per Head 0 0 0 £100 £0

COMPUTER SYSTEM COSTS 0

  PCN Processing Purchase Application software upgrade Per user 0 0 0 £7,800 £0

  Permits System - 4 user licence Application software upgrade 0 0 0 £5,300 £0

  Digital camera interface 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  Dispensations Module 0 0 0 £500 £0

  Suspensions Module 0 0 0 £500 £0

  Equipment maintenance Module 0 0 0 £1,350 £0

  Internet payment module 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  GIS Interface 0 0 0 £2,500 £0

  Cash Receipting 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  Postcode addressing 4 user licence 0 0 0 £2,050 £0

  Scanning Software 0 0 0 £1,900 £0

  DIP Viewing Software 0 0 0 £0 £0

  System Server System Hardware 0 0 0 £8,000 £0

  PCs 0 0 0 £950 £0

  Scanners 0 0 0 £1,000 £0

  Bar Code Readers 0 0 0 £350 £0

  Cash Handling Equipment 0 0 0 £2,500 £0

  Heavy Duty - Continuous Printer Printers 0 0 0 £1,500 £0

  Laser Printers 0 0 0 £1,200 £0

  Network Cards & Software Cards / Software 0 0 0 £100 £0

  Network Cabling Cabling 0 0 0 £50 £0

  Computer System Lease Lease over 3 or 5 years Lease Period in Years (or 0) = 0 £0 £0

  Installation and Training Application Software(days) 3 0 3 £550 £1,650

  Implementation of systems 3 0 3 £550 £1,650

  Network Installation 1 0 1 £500 £500

  Software Support Cost of Application Software 20.0% £0

  Hardware Maintenance Cost of Equipment 12.0% £0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT & SYSTEM COSTS £0 £4,400 £0

OTHER COSTS:

% OF TOTAL PCN ISSUE RELATING TO THE VOLUME INCREASE 100%

Levy per PCN excluding TEC and TPT on street extra PCNs 5617 £0.00 £0

  Letters (incl postage) 2,809 £1.00 £2,809

  DVLA enquiry 2,078 £0.15 £312

  Notices (incl postage) 1,974 £1.00 £1,974

  Cheque processing service Cheques received 421 £1.00 £421

  Adjudication cases % of PCNs issued 1.0% 56 £0 £0

  Adjudication Service Costs Est. Fixed Charge Joining Fee 0 £0 £0

  Adjudication Service Costs Est. Fixed Charge Annual Fee 0 £0 £0

  Adjudication Service Costs Unit cost/PCN 5,617 £0.30 £1,685

  Permit Stationery 0 £0.20 £0

  Telephone expense 1 £1,000 £1,000

  IT system set up costs 0.0% £0 £0

  Web site extensions £2,000.00

  IT Support Costs IT Departmental Support 1 £1,000 £1,000

  Initial training 1.0 £550 £1,100

  Training 0 £250 £0

  Departmental Overheads % of Total Operating Costs 10.0% £4,136

TOTAL OTHER COSTS £13,337 £0 £3,100

extra set up costs £10,000

less current costs off street
TOTAL ANNUAL EXPENSES / SET-UP COSTS £45,491 £4,400 £13,100

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 8 of 16

Page 180

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

ADDITIONAL WORKINGS

(AW01)   PAYMENTS BY LOCATION: % NUMBER VALUE

MAILED PAYMENTS 40% 1,685 £63,985

TELEPHONE PAYMENTS 25% 1,053 £39,986

INTERNET PAYMENTS 35% 1,474 £55,973

TOTAL PAYMENTS 4,212

AVERAGE PAYMENT VALUE £37.97

(AW02)   PAYMENT DISTRIBUTION BY TIME OF PAYMENT

VOLUME AMOUNT

PAYMENTS MADE AT DISCOUNT LEVEL 3,539 £113,239

PAYMENTS MADE BEFORE CHARGE CERTIFICATE 562 £35,949

POST CHARGE CERTIFICATE PAYMENTS 112 £10,785

TOTAL PAYMENTS: 4,213 £159,973

(AW03)   ESTIMATED LEVELS OF CORRESPONDENCE / TRANSACTIONS

NB: TOTAL VOLUMES, NOT MARGINAL VOLUMES

  Receipts Mailed Payments 1,685
  Correspondence % of Tickets Issued 50% 2,809
  Pocket books checked % of Tickets Issued 6% 337
  Meter checks % of Tickets Issued 1% 56
  Site visits % of Tickets Issued 1% 56
  TRO/map checks % of Tickets Issued 1% 56
  Permits applications Number of Permits Issued 0
  Permits Correspondence % of Number of Permits 50% 0
  Cases to DVLA Tickets Issued less Payments before Notice 2,078
  DVLA successful responses % of Cases to DVLA 95% 1,974
  Manual DVLA VQ5 responses % of Cases to DVLA 5% 104
  Notices (NTOs) DVLA successful responses 1,974
  Charge Certificates % of NTOs 45% 888
  Telephone Calls % of Tickets Issued 50% 2,809
  Personal visits at Reception % of Tickets Issued 5% 281
  Permits Telephone calls % of Number of Permits 50% 0
  Representations % of Notices 33% 652
  Notices of Rejection % of Representations 75% 489
  Adjudication Cases % of Notices of Rejection 9% 44
  PCNs cancelled % of PCNs issued 11% 185
  C.Court Registrations Eligible Cases - See AW04 344
Enforcement Agents EA Action - See AW04 292
TOTAL CORRESPONDENCE / TRANSACTION VOLUMES 17,115

VOLUME PER DAY Based on 225 days / year 76

ADDITIONAL WORKINGS - CONTINUED

(AW04) COUNTY COURT ESTIMATE

ANNUAL PROJECTION OF ISSUE 5,617

NO. OF CASES STILL OPEN AFTER 72 DAYS: 702

% OF THESE FOR MULTIPLE OFFENDERS: 5% 35

% OF THESE ALREADY REGISTERED: 2% 14

% OF THESE WITH CURRENT CORRESPONDENCE, ETC 7% 49

% OF THESE WITH < £20 DUE 10% 70

% OF THESE OUTSIDE JURISDICTION: 2% 14

% WITH NO GOOD NAME AND ADDRESS: 25% 176

ELIGIBLE CASES: 344

ANNUAL COST OF REGISTRATION: £8.00 £2,752

% OF THESE PAYING AFTER REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: 15% 52

AVERAGE PCN VALUE AT THIS STAGE: £96.00

REVENUE FROM REGISTRATION PAYEES: £4,954

CASES ELIGIBLE FOR WARRANT REQUEST: 292

% AGAINST WHICH EA ACTION TAKEN: 95% 278

% PAYING AFTER EA ACTION: 20% 56

REVENUE FROM EA ACTION: £5,334

% OF PROCEEDS RETAINED BY EA: 0% £0
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS £7,536

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £70 0

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £50 0

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £70 3,932

 TICKETS ISSUED AT: £50 1,685

CHARGE BAND: £70 £70

CHARGE BAND: £50 £50

CHARGE BAND: £70 £70

CHARGE BAND: £50 £50

TOTAL REVENUE(IGNORING DISCOUNT IMPACT): £359,490

AVERAGE PCN VALUE: £64

AVERAGE INCREMENTED PCN VALUE: £96

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 9 of 16

Page 181

Agenda Item 9



Workings

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N

MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

(AW05) ESTABLISHMENT

Staffing Total Current New

Operational Management 2.00 2.00 0.00

On Street Enforcement 0.00 0.00 0.00

Off Street Enforcement 0.00 0.00 0.00

Removal CEOs 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ticket & Permit Processing 1.00 0.00 1.00

Machine maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Staffing 3.00 2.00 1.00

CEO's Only 0.00 0.00 0.00

(AW06) VEHICLE USAGE COSTS

Item Volume Unit Cost

Miles per day 70

Days per week 6

Weeks per year 50

Miles per year 21,000                    

Miles per gallon 45

Price per gallon £6.00 gallon

Fuel costs £2,800

Service cost £250 each service

Service Interval 12,000                    miles

Annual Service costs £438

Road Fund Licence £150

Insurance £225

Repairs £500
£4,113

Item Volume Unit Cost
Miles per day 40
Days per week 6
Weeks per year 50
Miles per year 12,000                    
Miles per gallon 75
Price per gallon £6.00 gallon
Fuel costs £960
Service cost £100 each service
Service Interval 5,000                      miles
Annual Service costs £240
Road Fund Licence £75
Insurance £225
Repairs £300

£1,800

(AW07) UNIFORMS

ITEM UNIT COST
NUMBER 

REQUIRED 
PER CEO

TOTAL 
ONE-OFF 
SET-UP

TOTAL 
ANNUAL 

RECURRING

Anorak/Coats £85.00 1 £85.00
Shirts/Blouses £9.95 6 £59.70 £29.85
Nato style Pullovers £19.50 2 £39.00
Trousers/skirts £31.00 4 £124.00 £62.00
Ties £3.20 1 £3.20
Gloves £19.95 1 £19.95
Scarves £5.95 1 £5.95
Shoes £30.00 3 £90.00 £45.00
Hats £42.00 1 £42.00
Shoulder badges £2.80 16 £44.80
Flashes £5.20 2 £10.40
Fleece jacket £25.00 1 £25.00
Bag £30.00 1 £30.00

£579.00 £136.85

Car/MPV Costs

Scooter Costs

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 10 of 16

Page 182

Agenda Item 9



CEOs

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

CEO RESOURCE CALCULATION:

ON -STREET ENFORCEMENT CEOs

Patrol hours required On -Street 146.00            CEO Hours/week

Travelling Time Estimate No. of CEOs: 3.72
Hours/CEO/day: 0 0.00 CEO Hours/week

Total Hours / week 146.00 100.0%
Eff't CEO hrs/week 39.20              

Total FTE CEOs Required On-Street 3.72

OFF-STREET CAR PARKS CEOs Hours/week

Patrol hours required for Off-Street car parks -                  CEO Hours/week

Travelling Time Estimate No. of CEOS: 0.00

Hours/CEO/day: 0 0.00 CEO Hours/week

Total Hours / week 0.00 0.0%
Eff't CEO hrs/week 39.20              

Total FTE CEOs Required Off-Street 0.00

Total Hours / week 146.00

TOTAL FTE CEOs REQUIRED 3.72

Workings for Calculation of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) CEOs Required

ON-STREET CEOs

Calculation of Absence Factor CEO Working Day & Effective Patrol Hours

Days in the Year 52 5 260 Average Shift Hours 8.00                
Public Holidays -8 Less: Local Travel & Admin -                  
Holidays -25 Average Patrol Hours Per Day 8.00                
Sickness 7.0% -15 Days Per Week 5.00                

  Days Available / Year 212 Patrol Hrs Per Week 40.00              

  Working Weeks / Year 42.40             Ambassadorial Duties 2% (0.80)               no other duties

  Absence Factor 0% Absence Factor 1.00                

Effective Patrol Hours / Week 39.20              

OFF-STREET CEOs

Calculation of Absence Factor CEO Working Day & Effective Patrol Hours

Days in the Year 52 5 260 Average Shift Hours 8.00                
Public Holidays -8 Less: Local Travel & Admin -                  
Holidays -25 Average Patrol Hours Per Day 8.00                
Sickness 7.0% -15 Days Per Week 5.00                

  Days Available / Year 212 Patrol Hrs Per Week 40.00              
  Working Weeks / Year 42.40             Ambassadorial Duties 2% (0.80)               no other duties

  Absence Factor 0% Absence Factor 1.00                

Effective Patrol Hours / Week 39.20              

RTA Associates Limited
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 11 of 16

Page 183

Agenda Item 9



PCNs

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 

VERSION: MODEL N

CALCULATION OF PCNS ISSUED

DISTRICT Total Hours Effective Patrol FTE PCN rate Effective PCNs Weeks/ PCNs/
per Week Hours/Week/CEO CEOs Per Week PCN Rate Issued/Wk Year Year

Didcot 7.00                 39.20 0.18 29 29 5 52.00 269
Henley 7.00                 39.20 0.18 29 29 5 52.00 269
Wallingford 7.00                 39.20 0.18 29 29 5 52.00 269
Thame 7.00                 39.20 0.18 29 29 5 52.00 269
Mobile patrols 3.00                 39.20 0.08 29 29 2 52.00 115

Sub-Total 31.00
Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0

Abingdon 9.00                 39.20 0.23 29 29 7 52.00 346
Botley 4.00                 39.20 0.10 29 29 3 52.00 154
Faringdon 6.00                 39.20 0.15 29 29 4 52.00 231
Wantage 9.00                 39.20 0.23 29 29 7 52.00 346
Mobile patrols 3.00                 39.20 0.08 29 29 2 52.00 115

Sub-Total 31.00
Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0 0.74

Banbury 50.86 39.20 1.30 29 29 38 52.00 1,957
Bicester 18.50 39.20 0.47 29 29 14 52.00 712
Kidlington 6.94 39.20 0.18 29 29 5 52.00 267
Mobile patrols 7.71 39.20 0.20 29 29 6 52.00 296

Sub-Total 84.00
Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0

146.00 3.72 108 5,617 100.0%

OFF-STREET

CAR PARKS Total Hours Effective Patrol FTE PCN rate Effective PCNs Weeks/ PCNs/
per Week Hours/Week/CEO CEOs Per Week PCN Rate Issued/Wk Year Year

P&D CDC 0.00 39.20 0.00 69 69 0 52.00 0
P&D SODC 0.00 39.20 0.00 15 15 0 52.00 0
P&D VWHDC 0.00 39.20 0.00 10 10 0 52.00 0
Currently Free CDC 0.00 39.20 0.00 19 19 0 52.00 0

Travelling Time Estimate 0.00 39.20 0.00 0 0 0 52.00 0 #DIV/0!

0.00 0.00 0 0 0.0%

REMOVALS -                   

TOTAL PCN PROJECTION: 5,617

On-street PCNs issued at HIGHER level: % of On-street PCNs: 70% 3,932               70%
On-street PCNs issued at LOWER level: % of On-street PCNs: 30% 1,685               30%
Off-street PCNs issued at HIGHER level: % of Off-street PCNs: 7% -                   0%
Off-street PCNs issued at LOWER level: % of Off-street PCNs: 93% -                   0%

5,617               100%

PCNs issued at HIGHER level: 3,932               70%
PCNs issued at LOWER level: 1,685               30%

5,617               100%

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 12 of 16

P
age 184

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL N

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS START-UP

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 5,617
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 468

being: ON-STREET 468
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER -3 -2 -1 START-UP

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED 0% 0% 0%
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3 0 0 0
OFF-STREET 0% 0 0 0 0
TOTAL: PCNs 0 0 0 0

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs 0 0 0 0

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £113,239
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £9,437 £0 £0 £0

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £35,949
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £2,996 £0 £0 £0

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £10,785
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £899 £0 £0 £0

Per Year: £159,973
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3) £0 £0 £0 £0
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2) £0 £0 £0 £0
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3) £0 £0 £0 £0
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6) £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED £0 £0 £0 £0
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION 10% 20% 30%

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0 0 0 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED £0 £0 £0 £0

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY £0 £0 £0 £0
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY £0 £0 £0 £0
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE £0 £0 £0 £0
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS £0 £0 £0 £0

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£161,432)

PER MONTH (£13,453) £0 £0 (£13,453) (£13,453)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£4,400) £0 £0 (£4,400) (£4,400)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) £0 £0 (£17,853) (£17,853)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE £0 £0 (£17,853)

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 13 of 16

P
age 185

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL N

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 5,617
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 468

being: ON-STREET 468
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3
OFF-STREET 0% 0
TOTAL: PCNs

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £113,239
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £9,437

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £35,949
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £2,996

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £10,785
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £899

Per Year: £159,973
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3)
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2)
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3)
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6)

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£161,432)

PER MONTH (£13,453)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£4,400)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

FIRST 12 MONTHS OF OPERATION

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 MTHS

393 417 442 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

393 417 442 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 5,464
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£7,923 £8,399 £8,902 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437

£2,515 £2,666 £2,826 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996

£755 £800 £848 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£7,923 £8,399 £8,902 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £110,154

£0 £0 £2,515 £2,666 £2,826 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £28,978
£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £755 £800 £848 £899 £899 £899 £5,098

£7,923 £8,399 £11,418 £12,103 £12,263 £12,432 £13,187 £13,232 £13,280 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £144,230

25% 10% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £536

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £628 £628 £628 £1,884

(£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£161,432)
£0

(£5,485) (£5,009) (£1,990) (£1,305) (£1,145) (£976) (£221) (£176) (£128) £551 £551 £551 (£14,782)

(£23,337) (£28,347) (£30,337) (£31,642) (£32,788) (£33,763) (£33,984) (£34,160) (£34,288) (£33,737) (£33,186) (£32,635)

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 14 of 16

P
age 186

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL N

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 5,617
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 468

being: ON-STREET 468
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3
OFF-STREET 0% 0
TOTAL: PCNs

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £113,239
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £9,437

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £35,949
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £2,996

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £10,785
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £899

Per Year: £159,973
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3)
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2)
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3)
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6)

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£161,432)

PER MONTH (£13,453)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£4,400)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

SECOND 12 MONTHS OF OPERATION

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 24 MTHS

468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 5,617
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437

£2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996

£899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £113,239
£2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £35,949

£899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £10,785

£13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £159,973

25% 10% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £536

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £7,536

(£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£161,432)
£0

£551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £6,613

(£32,084) (£31,532) (£30,981) (£30,430) (£29,879) (£29,328) (£28,777) (£28,226) (£27,675) (£27,124) (£26,573) (£26,022)

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 15 of 16

P
age 187

A
genda Item

 9



Cashflow

TMA 2004 - FINANCIAL MODEL OF IMPLEMENTATION 

MODEL VERSION: N
MODEL DATE: 06-Feb-20

CLIENT: Combined Model 
VERSION: MODEL N

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

PCNs ISSUED PER YEAR 5,617
PCNs ISSUED PER MONTH 468

being: ON-STREET 468
OFF-STREET 0

MONTH NUMBER

START UP % OF PCNs ISSUED
Growth Rate No. Growth Periods

MONTHLY PCN ISSUE ON-STREET 6% 3
OFF-STREET 0% 0
TOTAL: PCNs

MONTHLY ECN ISSUE ECNs

MARGINAL REVENUE
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER YEAR £0
ECNs REVENUE EXCLUDED PER MONTH £0

PCNs AT DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £113,239
PCNs DISCOUNT PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £9,437

PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £35,949
PCNs FULL PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £2,996

PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER YEAR £10,785
PCNs INCREMENTED PAYMENT LEVEL PER MONTH £899

Per Year: £159,973
TIME DELAY IN PAYMENTS MONTHS FROM ISSUE

ECNs 0 (RANGE 0 - 3)
DISCOUNT 0 (RANGE 0 - 2)
NORMAL 2 (RANGE 0 - 3)
INCREMENTED 6 (RANGE 0 - 6)

TOTAL ECN / PCN PAYMENTS RECEIVED
PERMITS
NEW PERMIT ISSUE DISTRIBUTION

PERMIT VOLUMES
NEW PERMIT ISSUE VOLUMES 0

PERMIT REVENUE
NEW PERMIT ISSUE INCOME PER YEAR £0

TOTAL PERMIT ISSUE PAYMENTS RECEIVED

CAR PARK RECEIPTS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
ON STREET CHARGING - ADDITIONAL REVENUE ONLY
CLAMP & REMOVAL OPERATIONS - ADDITIONAL REVENUE
NET COUNTY COURT PROCEEDS

EXPENSES START UP = 1
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES PER YEAR (£161,432)

PER MONTH (£13,453)
ONE-OFF SET-UP EXPENSES ONE-OFF COST (£4,400)

MONTHLY SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

CUMULATIVE MONTHLY BALANCE

The cashflow assumes that the additional expenses of the new operations will be incurred immediately.
The marginal impact of  Pay & Display revenue is accounted for after implementation.

THIRD 12 MONTHS OF OPERATION

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 36 MTHS

468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 468 5,617
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437

£2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996

£899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £9,437 £113,239
£2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £2,996 £35,949

£899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £899 £10,785

£13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £13,331 £159,973

25% 10% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10% 20% 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £45 £536

£0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
£628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £628 £7,536

(£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£13,453) (£161,432)
£0

£551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £551 £6,613

(£25,471) (£24,919) (£24,368) (£23,817) (£23,266) (£22,715) (£22,164) (£21,613) (£21,062) (£20,511) (£19,960) (£19,409)

RTA Associates Ltd
Printed: 06/02/2020 Page 16 of 16

P
age 188

A
genda Item

 9



Page | 1   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

Civil Parking Enforcement – Business case 
 
Purpose 
 

1. 

To report on the findings of a study jointly commissioned by Oxfordshire 
County Council, Cherwell District Council, Vale of White Horse and South 
Oxfordshire Council on the options to introduce Civil Parking Enforcement 
(CPE) within the districts. 

2. 
To present a business case and recommended next steps to progress an 
application for CPE within the districts to the Department for Transport 

 
 

1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 Since 1991, local councils have been able to apply to the Secretary for State 

to take on powers for Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE), which allows local 
authorities to issue penalty charge notices (PCNs) for parking and bus lane 
contraventions under civil law. In districts and boroughs where CPE is not in 
place, enforcement is still carried out by the police under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA 84). 

 
1.2 To take on powers for civil enforcement, County Councils are required on 

behalf of District & Borough Councils to make an application to the 
Department for Transport and thorough assessment is needed to understand 
all the elements of how CPE will be successfully introduced and operated. 
This information forms part of the application and demonstrates to the 
Department for Transport that the highway authority would provide a service 
that conforms and delivers benefits set out within the Traffic Management Act 
2004 (TMA). 

 
1.3 Discussions regarding CPE have been ongoing and a working group of 

Oxfordshire County Council (OCC), South Oxfordshire District Council 
(SODC), Vale of White Horse (VWHDC) and Cherwell District Council (CDC) 
have agreed to jointly investigate the feasibility of implementing CPE within 
each respective District. CPE is already in place in Oxford City and West 
Oxfordshire. 

 
1.4 To assist in the development of a robust business case, a feasibility study has 

been commissioned to investigate the creation a Civil Enforcement Area and 
Special Enforcement Area (CEA/SEA) across the whole of the 3 Districts of 
Cherwell, South Oxfordshire District and Vale of White Horse administrative 
areas 

1.5 The commissioned study has been undertaken by RTA Associates who are 
experienced in Decriminalised Parking Enforcement and have undertaken 
similar studies for other authorities including Knowsley and Wokingham. 

 

Page 189

Agenda Item 9



Page | 2   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

1.6 The extensive feasibility study has covered all aspects of Civil Enforcement 
including; 

• Legal context 

• Benefits and disbenefits 

• Options for operating CPE 

• Financial implications 

• The CEA/SEA application process. 

• Traffic Regulation Orders and sign and line maintenance requirements. 

• Recommended approach – including short and long-term options. 
 

1.7 The study has been written to provide a 5-year business case for several 
options that are available to County should the decision to proceed with CPE 
be taken. 

 
1.8 The purpose of this summary report is to outline the key information from the 

feasibility study prepared by RTA associates, and to present 
recommendations based on its findings. 

 
 

2.  Overview of Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) 
 
2.1 The introduction of the Traffic Management Act 2004 placed an explicit duty 

on local authorities to plan and manage how traffic and road users moved 
around on the road network. The act also provides additional powers to do 
with parking, including increased scope to take over the enforcement of 
driving and parking offences from the police. 

 
2.2 The national picture shows that 314 out of 327 local authority areas now 

enforce under civil powers, which represents 96% of councils in England and 
Wales. In Oxfordshire, only Oxford and West Oxford have CPE, which means 
that in South Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse and Cherwell the majority of 
restrictions are enforced under criminal law by the police. 

 
2.3 Under sections within the RTRA 84, District/Town Councils retain some 

powers to issue Excess Charge Notices (ECNs) for motorists parking in 
contravention of on-street ‘parking places’, which is limited to residents 
parking bays and pay and display bays. Currently agency agreements are 
place between OCC and Henley, Abingdon and Wallingford to carry out on-
street parking enforcement of parking places within their areas. Off-Street car 
parks are managed by the District Councils, with enforcement contracted out 
to third party providers.  

 
 
 
2.4 The authorities that are part of the commissioning group each use their own 

external provider for on or off-street parking enforcement. The County recently 
entered into a 5-year contract with Conduent Transportation to manage  
on-street restrictions in Oxford and the provision of IT software associated 
with back office notice processing and appeals.  

Page 190

Agenda Item 9



Page | 3   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

 
2.5 For off-street enforcement, CDC currently have a contract with APCOA which 

is due to end in May 2022, and South & Vale use SABA Group, which has 5 
years left, ending in August 2025.  

 
2.6 In the three districts of Oxfordshire that currently do not have CPE in place, 

enforcement takes place under different legislation and by different agencies 
and authorities. This creates confusion for road users, residents and 
councillors about who is responsible for enforcement in their areas.   

 
2.7 Levels of enforcement activity between on-street parking restrictions and  

off-street car parks are also inconsistent with the Police having limited 
resources to attend to parking contraventions. This influences levels of 
compliance and where motorists choose to park. The local and wider impact 
of these factors affects the success on the collective strategic local transport 
objectives and the vibrancy of the local economy. 

 

2.8 The RTA report highlights that whether County are managing the CPE service, 

or the Districts as agents to County, the restrictions can be enforced wherever 
and whenever they are needed on the highway and this creates a very flexible 
service. This flexibility allows a responsive enforcement service which fulfils the 
traffic management requirements provided by CPE to “improve traffic flows”.  

 
2.9 A clear improvement of CPE is that enforcement would take place under the 

same legislation for both on and off-street enforcement. Parking fines would 
no longer be considered in the courts, and a PCN issued for a contravention 
of an on-street restriction will follow the same nationally standardised appeals 
process for an off-street ticket. A national independent adjudication service 
also considers appeals that are not resolved by the issuing authority.   

 
2.10 The introduction of CPE gives further opportunities to consider further parking 

measures to manage the demand for parking including the introduction of 
parking charges and residents parking schemes. The compliance and 
subsequent benefits of these types of restrictions is directly related to effective 
enforcement. 

 
 

3.  How is a CPE introduced – Key considerations  
 
3.1 Local authorities wishing to take on the powers for CPE need to make an 

application to the Department for Transport for the creation of Civil 
Enforcement Area (CEA) or Special Enforcement Area (SEA) which goes 
further enabling local authorities to enforce two additional offences of double 
parking and parking at dropped footways. 

3.2 Within a CEA/SEA, the responsibility for the enforcement of virtually all on street 

parking, passes from the Police to the Highway and Traffic Authority. The 
income from the on-street penalty charge notices (PCN) issued is retained by 
the Highway Authority, to be used to help fund the scheme.  

 

Page 191

Agenda Item 9



Page | 4   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

3.3 On-street and off street PCN surpluses are ring-fenced under Section 55 of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 for certain highway related matters. The on 
and off-street accounts are to be kept separate and monies raised off-street are 
retained by the District Council with off-street surpluses to be used to maintain 
existing or provide new off-street parking places. 

 
3.4 The powers to carry out Civil Bus Lane Enforcement under the Transport Act 

2000, requires a separate designation order and it is recommended by the 
Department for Transport that applications for a new CEA/SEA specify 
whether powers for Bus Lane Enforcement are also required so they can be 
included. 

 
3.5 The application process to introduce a CEA/SEA is extensive and local 

councils are encouraged to work closely with the Department for Transport. It 
is important that contact is made at an early stage so prior planning can take 
place with the Secretary of State around dates when applications can be put 
through parliament. New CEA/SEAs are introduced by the creation of a 
designation order and it is not unusual for several councils to be on the same 
Statutory Instrument, with enforcement commencing on the same date.   

 
3.6 The feasibility study highlights the importance of strong leadership and 

governance of the project with several services undertaken by the County 
Council and Districts, plus the Police to a much lesser degree, who would be 
involved in some way in implementing of CPE. The suggested way of co-
ordinating these groups is via a CPE Project Team or Steering Group, which 
is chaired by a senior officer.  

 
3.7 With the increase in service the report also recommends a single parking 

manager is in post with responsibility for all operational matters involved in on-
street parking, including enforcement and administration. Strategic and design 
issues relating to parking should continue to be kept under a responsibility 
separate from the service delivery issues. The three Districts combined 
represent only a small percentage increase on the contract covering Oxford 
City. 

 
3.8 A major part of the preparation for commencing Civil Enforcement, is ensuring 

that Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs), signs and lines associated with parking 
restrictions are accurate, enforceable and comply with current Traffic 
Regulations. This is to ensure the motorist understands the restrictions in 
place and traffic orders can be robustly enforced through the appeals process. 

 
 
 
 
 
3.9 It is now recognised that the conversion of text-based Traffic Orders to a  

map based orders is essential to deliver an efficient and effective civil 
enforcement service. This especially benefits the appeals process, where staff 
can quickly prepare a relevant extract map, and details of the Order, and 
enclose these with the adjudicator case file.  

Page 192

Agenda Item 9



Page | 5   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

 
3.10 The costs of the overall assessment provided by RTA, include a review to 

consolidate and digitise existing Traffic Regulation Orders. A related project 
lead by OCC to digitise the council’s TRO records is already underway and 
due to the wider benefits this brings, there is intention of progressing this work 
regardless of the decision around CPE. The costs of implementation (around 
£180k) should therefore in future be excluded from the CPE business case 
modelling. 

 
3.11 In considering making an application for CPE, the business case needs to 

support the financial viability of delivering an effective and efficient service to 
the public. Applications for a new CEA/SEA need to demonstrate that a 
comprehensive financial assessment has taken place which considers both 
the start-up costs and running costs once Civil Parking Enforcement is 
underway. As with all types of financial assessments, it is important that the 
estimated figures are as realistic as possible.  

 
3.12 The detailed feasibility study prepared by RTA Associates will assist in 

bringing forward a comprehensive and precise application for consideration by 
the DfT and give confidence that thorough assessments have been made for 
the introduction and management of new CEA/SEAs.  

 
3.13 Prior to applying for CPE, the lead authority is required to carry out extensive 

consultation with stakeholders, agencies and neighbouring authorities to gain 
support for a CEA/SEA being introduced. Reponses to these consultations 
are required as part of the application process.  

 
3.14 Discussions should begin as early as possible with the Police, Traffic Penalty 

Tribunal and Traffic Enforcement Centre notifying them of the Council’s 
intention to apply for CPE powers. 

 

 
4.   Appraisal of enforcement options  
 
4.1 Under the Traffic Management Act, applications for the designation of new 

CEA/SEAs can only be made by County Councils, Metropolitan District 
Councils and Unitary Authorities. However, highway authorities retain the 
ability to delegate their functions, including parking enforcement to other 
councils. The District Councils already undertake parking enforcement of off-
street council owned cars parks using external contractors, this therefore 
presents several potential operational models for enforcement under CPE. 

 
 
 
4.2 The financial appraisals undertaken by RTA Associates, have used detailed 

financial models to test the financial viability of each option. This is based 
broadly on a project recovering its total set-up and operational costs within a 
period of 5 to 7 years. 

 

Page 193

Agenda Item 9



Page | 6   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

4.3 The modelled options only look at the impact of the new CPE areas, and do 
not take include consideration the whole parking revenue account, e.g. 
existing paid parking. There are number of factors included in the appraisals 
but the key indicators for assessment include; 

  

• The number of PCNs which are likely to be issued; 

• The number of staff deployed hours required to patrol the areas defined; 

• The value of the PCN; 

• To a lesser degree, the effectiveness of the debt recovery operation. 
 
4.4 A level of enforcement has been specified in the model which is appropriate for 

the local circumstances, with a total of 146 deployed hours over all 3 districts. 
The deployment of CEOs (including supervisory staff) is estimated at an 
average of 31 hours a per week each for SODC and VWHDC and 84 hours per 
week for CDC for on-street areas. This is to allow for a minimum of 7 days per 
week operations, covering enforcement hours when required. 

 
4.5 The rates of by which PCNs will be issued has been based upon RTA 

Associates previous experience of broadly similar areas, although a 
conservative view being taken of the projected numbers. The rate of issue for 
on-street enforcement is estimated at 29 PCNs per fte CEO, per week. This 
breaks down to 0.74 PCNs issued per deployed hour. The number of PCNs 
issued per year is outlined for each option shown in table below. 

 
4.6 The business case has carried out appraisals on 15 different scenarios for the 

introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement which include; 
 

D (D1 & D2)  District Councils individually carry out their own enforcement (in 
house) under and agency agreement from OCC (on and off-
street). 

 
E (E1 & E2)  District Councils individually carry out their own enforcement but 

use an external contractor (on and off-street). 
F (F1 & F2)  A joint service of South Oxon and Vale of White Horse to match 

existing arrangements covering on and off-street enforcement. 
F1 looks at using an external contractor at current rates and F2 
looks at using an external contractor using industry rates.  

 
G  A joint service of Cherwell, Vale of White Horse and South 

Oxon, for on and off-street enforcement using an external 
service provider based on existing contract rates. 

 
H A joint service of Cherwell, Vale of White Horse and South 

Oxon, for on and off-street enforcement using an external 
service provider based on industry average contract rates. 

J A joint service of Cherwell, Vale of White Horse and South 
Oxon, for on-street enforcement only using an external service 
provider based on industry average contract rates. 

 

Page 194

Agenda Item 9



Page | 7   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

K A joint service of Cherwell, Vale of White Horse and South 
Oxon, for on-street enforcement only using an external service 
provider based on industry average contract rates. 

 
L A joint service of Cherwell, Vale of White Horse and South 

Oxon, for on-street enforcement as dual role with environmental 
enforcement. This would be based on option K using an external 
service provider based on industry average contract rates. 

  
N  The introduction of on-street enforcement as a joint service 

for all 3 Districts. Covering on street CPE only, using OCC’s 
existing external provider. District Councils to retain off-street 
enforcement using their existing external providers. 
 

 
 

 
DISTRICT 

Test 

PCN 

Level 

Collection 

rate 

Number 

of PCNs 

Years to 
cumulative 

operational 
surplus 

On street 

Ex.capital 

Annual 
surplus 

(deficit) in 

year 3 

Surplus (Deficit) 
pre-

commencement, 

including capital 

Surplus (Deficit), 
after 5 years, 

including capital 

CDC 
D £70/£50 75% 5460 Never (£127,000) (£349,000) (£1,023,000) 

SODC 
D1 £70/£50 75% 2015 Never (£86,500) (£271,000) (£715,000) 

VWHDC 
D2 £70/£50 75% 2015 Never (£86,300) (£274,000) (£715,000) 

CDC 
E £70/£50 75% 5460 Never (£122,000) (£336,000) (£986,000) 

SODC 
E1 £70/£50 75% 2015 Never (£57,100) (£269,000) (£566,000) 

VWHDC 
E2 £70/£50 75% 2015 Never (£56,700) (£269,600) (£563,000) 

SODC/VWHDC 
F £70/£50 75% 4032 Never (£60,100) (£488,000) (£809.000) 

SODC/VWHDC 
F1 £70/£50 75% 4030 Never (£57,900) (£512,000) (£822,000) 

SODC/VWHDC 
F2 £70/£50 75% 4030 Never (£23,200) (£510,000) (£646,000) 

ALL 3 
G £70/£50 75% 9490 Never (£166,600) (£843,000) (£1,736,000) 

ALL 3 
H £70/£50 75% 9490 Never (£84,900) (£836.000) (£1,321,000) 

ALL 3 
J £70/£50 75% 9490 Never (£127,000) (£843,000) (£1,516,000) 

ALL 3 
K £70/£50 75% 9490 Never (£45,300) £795,000) (£1,060,000) 

ALL 3 
L £70/£50 75% 5810 Never (£240,000) (£802,000) (£2,026,000) 

ALL 3 
N £70/£50 75% 5617 Never (£3,218) (£773,000) (£811,000) 

 
4.7 General findings were that the introduction of CPE on its own in-house, is not 

financially attractive if the pay back must cover set up and running costs.  
 
4.8 If CPE were to proceed, separate funding for the set up and running costs would 

need to be identified in advance, as the feasibility study identifies that a return 
on the investment is not enough to make repayments for the overall service. 
The Councils would need to identify budgets to be able to provide funding 
towards the set up and running of the on-street service.  

 
4.9 The business case highlights that a review of existing signs and lines is 

required prior to CPE being introduced.  The initial estimates within the 
business case report identified that this would be in the region of £510,000, 
however, sample survey work carried out by officers at OCC, estimates a 
more realistic figure to be £250,000. Any surplus generated through the CPE 
project could be used off-set these costs. 

 

Page 195

Agenda Item 9



Page | 8   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

4.10 A related project to digitise the council’s TRO records will support efficient 
operation of CPE.  Due to the wider benefits this brings, and intention of 
progressing this regardless of the decision around CPE, the costs of 
implementation (around £180k) should therefore be excluded from the CPE 
business case modelling. 

 
 

5.  Recommended approach  
 
5.1 The business case supports business case N, as being the most financially 

viable which would see OCC’s existing on-street enforcement arrangements 
extended to cover the new CEA/SEAs in Oxfordshire. The County Council 
have recently entered into a new 5-year contract with Conduent Enforcement 
Services, which subject to procurement could be used for this purpose. 

 
5.2 Under this model existing back office services, including appeals and 

administration would be accommodated with the existing Parking Services 
team with a minimal cost required to fund 1 FTE administrator to the team. 

 
5.3 Based on the preferred short-term approach of Oxfordshire County Council 

managing CPE on-street with the District Councils continuing to manage off-
street responsibilities (over a 5-year period), It is anticipated income and 
expenditure in running the service are set out in the table below: 

 

 
5.4 To mitigate the estimated deficit of £56,087 over the initial 5 years of the 

scheme, locations have been identified in the centres of Banbury, Bicester, 
Abingdon & Wallingford which would be suitable for the introduction of on-
street parking charges. Based on existing rates for on and off-street parking at 
these locations, charges would be set at £1.00 hour in Banbury and Bicester 
and 60p an hour in Abingdon and Wallingford.  

 
5.5 It is estimated that after covering operational costs and expenditure, the net 

revenue from this proposal would recover an average of £75,700 per annum 
over the 3 districts, which equates to £378,500 over 5 years. 

 

5.6 The introduction of paid parking would make the introduction of CPE 
financially viable and would bring wider benefits to the local economy by 
encouraging the turnover of parking spaces whilst encouraging users to think 
about their travel choices, especially for short journeys. 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 TOTAL 

Estimated Annual Income  £146,650 £168,045 £168,045 £168,045 £168,045 £818,830 

Estimated Annual Operating 
Costs £179,285 £166,275 £171,263 £176,401 £181,693 £874,917 
              

Surplus (+) Deficit (-) 
(excluding setup costs) -£32,635 £1,770 -£3,218 -£8,356 -£13,648 -£56,087 
       

Surplus (+) Deficit (-) 
(excluding setup costs but 
implementing  
on-street parking charges. £43,065 £77,470 £72,482 £67,344 £62,052 £322,413 

Page 196

Agenda Item 9



Page | 9   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

 

5.7 A substantial amount financial investment is required to introduce new 
CEA/SEAs, which includes updating traffic orders, ensuring signs and lines 
are compliant and putting place systems and processes to manage appeals 
for PCNs. Due to the importance of this element, officers at OCC have carried 
further assessments to provide more robust estimates, which includes; 

 
SET UP COSTS – All 3 districts 

 
Rectifying defects to signs and lines   £250,000  
Updating appeals software for new areas  £20,000 
Publicity and advertising costs    £60,000 
Start-up costs for new Pay and Display Bays £100,000 

      
TOTAL  £430,000 

 

5.8 The feasibility study has also identified costs to review and digitise Traffic 
Regulation Orders for the three districts at an estimated cost of £180,000. 
This project has wider benefits to the highways service and external users so 
is being funded independently from the CPE proposals. 

 

5.9 Under model N, off-street enforcement in the short-term would continue to be 
managed by the District Councils who have existing contracts with third party 
providers. In CDC car park enforcement is current contracted to APCOA 
which is due to end in May 2022, and South & Vale use SABA Group, which 
has 5 years left, ending in August 2025.  

 
5.10 With the introduction of an CEA/SEA off-street enforcement would also 

change with ECNs being replaced with PCNs. The back-office processes 
would also need to adapt to new legislation and there maybe additional costs 
to setup new IT systems and administrative processes. 

 
5.11 It is noted that the levels of fines levied under civil law are lower than those 

issued under criminal law. This may affect revenue for the District Council’s 
off-street car park accounts. However, the feasibility study identifies that the 
introduction of on-street parking charges often results in higher usage of off-
street car parks where charges could also be considered. 

 
5.12 To provide a cost effective and joined up approach to enforcement, the 

longer-term aspiration would be a single parking service (on and off-street) 
across Oxfordshire covering both on and off-street parking.  However, it is 
recognised that with existing council financial resilience and existing contracts 
in place, this would not be possible at the inception of CPE.  

 
 
 
5.13 Initially, on-street enforcement would be undertaken by Conduent on behalf of 

the County Council and off-street car parks would be enforced by existing 
providers, but with a change to civil enforcement. As contracts come to an 
end, opportunities will arise where the County and District Councils can 
consider the potential benefits to align enforcement services. 

Page 197

Agenda Item 9



Page | 10   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

 
 
6.  Summary and Recommendations 
 
6.1 The decision to proceed with the implementation of CPE is an important first 

step in moving towards the longer-term aspirations of a whole management 
approach for parking enforcement in Oxfordshire.  

 
6.2 The introduction of CPE will bring multiple benefits, including increased 

compliance of parking restrictions with associated improvements to traffic 
flow, road safety and a reduction in obstructive and dangerous parking.  

 
6.3 Under CPE, enforcement activity would be controlled locally, giving a higher 

level of control and flexibility to manage the demand for parking. The 
communities in each of the districts will see positive economic and social 
benefits from improved kerbside controls.  

 
6.4 From the initial baseline of enforcement at CPE’s inception will come 

opportunities to develop the service to meet local needs, and the feasibility 
study supports that CEA/SEAs can be successfully introduced where the on-
street parking charges are used in addition to support the service. 

 
6.5 The study identifies that business case N, which would see an extension of 

the existing OCC on-street enforcement operations to cover Cherwell, Vale of 
White Horse and South Oxon as being preferable to the other scenarios 
assessed. The enforcement of district owned car parks would continue to be 
managed by them under this arrangement until there was an opportunity for 
this to be reviewed. 

 
6.6 In the short term the extension of the Conduent contract will allow CPE to be 

introduced. Longer term it is recommended that the provision of off-street car 
park enforcement is reassessed as contracts come up for review and District 
Councils are given the opportunity to synergise with operations for on-street 
enforcement. 

 
6.7 If a decision was made to proceed with the recommended option N, a clear 

programme would need to be created that sought political support and 
involved key stakeholders including the police and Town Councils at an early 
stage. 

 
6.8 The need to agree a timeline with the Department for Transport is also a key 

aspect in the implementation process and their feedback should be sought 
prior to the preparation of any detailed programme for the introduction of CPE. 

 
 
6.9 An indicative timeline of the key milestones is set out below, but this would be 

subject the steps in sections 6.7 and 6.8 above being undertaken; 
 

 MILESTONE DATE 

Page 198

Agenda Item 9



Page | 11   RTA Associates Feasibility Study - Summary Report   Version 1.4 

 Completion of feasibility study & development of financial model  June 20 
 Early consultation with the DfT for Transport regarding potential 

dates. July 20 
 Cabinet approval sought for an application to be made based on the 

recommendations within this report. Oct 20 
 Development of the Draft Application for the introduction of a 

CEA/SEA in each of the districts. Oct 20-Dec 21 
 Commencement of review of signs, lines and TROs Jan 21-Aug 21 
 Commencement of the Statutory Consultation process Feb 21-April 21 
 Application submitted to the DfT April 21 
 DfT review & parliamentary process  April 21-Nov 21 
 Establishment of formal ‘back office’  July 21-Nov 21 
 Designation Order created and CPE brought into effect Nov 21 

 

7.  Risk Management 
 
7.1 The business case makes a number of assumptions, and whilst a 

conservative approach has been taken, there is a risk that the number of 
Penalty Charge Notices issued is less than predicted.  This can best be 
mitigated through Civil Enforcement Officer deployment plans.   
 

7.2 By taking a staged approach and utilising as far as possible existing contracts, 
the risks are low, allowing councils to better understand likely challenges and 
opportunities better prior to perusing the preferred model of a single parking 
service. 

  
7.3 Parking does cause issues for the councils and its residents, and if action is 

not undertaken when there is the ability to do so, may cause reputational 
challenges. 

 
7.4 To avoid any future disputes, a clear agreement will need to be in place prior 

to the setup and introduction of Civil Enforcement between the County and 
District Councils on how any costs incurred will be managed. 

 
7.5 The impact of the covid-19 pandemic has seen a marked change in how the 

public move around on the transport network. Although the road usage is 
likely to increase as government restrictions are eased, it is unknown at this 
stage whether demand for parking, especially in town centres and 
employment hubs will return to pre covid-19 levels. Any model for 
enforcement will need to be flexible in approach to meet changing demands 
for on-street parking.   

Page 199

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

List of areas in England designated as a Civil 
Enforcement Area (CEA) for the purposes of enforcing 

parking contraventions – 9 January 2018 

Page 200

Agenda Item 9



Number ONS Code Local Authority County Council CPE 

1 45UB Adur  
2 16UB Allerdale  
3 17UB Amber Valley  
4 45UC Arun  
5 37UB Ashfield  
6 29UB Ashford  
7 11UB Aylesbury Vale  
8 42UB Babergh  x 
9 00AB Barking and Dagenham  
10 00AC Barnet  
11 00CC Barnsley  
12 16UC Barrow-in-Furness  
13 22UB Basildon  
14 24UB Basingstoke and Deane  
15 37UC Bassetlaw  
16 00HA Bath and North East Somerset  
17 00KB Bedford  
18 00AD Bexley  
19 00CN Birmingham  
20 31UB Blaby  
21 00EX Blackburn with Darwen  
22 00EY Blackpool  
23 17UC Bolsover  
24 00BL Bolton  
25 32UB Boston   
26 00HN Bournemouth  
27 00MA Bracknell Forest  
28 00CX Bradford  
29 22UC Braintree  
30 33UB Breckland  
31 00AE Brent  
32 22UD Brentwood  
33 00ML Brighton and Hove  
34 00HB Bristol, City of  
35 33UC Broadland  
36 00AF Bromley  
37 47UB Bromsgrove   
38 26UB Broxbourne  
39 37UD Broxtowe  
40 30UD Burnley  
41 00BM Bury  
42 00CY Calderdale  
43 12UB Cambridge  
44 00AG Camden  
45 41UB Cannock Chase  
46 29UC Canterbury  
47 16UD Carlisle  
48 22UE Castle Point  
49 00KC Central Bedfordshire   
50 31UC Charnwood  
51 22UF Chelmsford  
52 23UB Cheltenham  
53 38UB Cherwell  x 
54 00EQ Cheshire East  
55 00EW Cheshire West and Chester  
56 17UD Chesterfield  
57 45UD Chichester  
58 11UC Chiltern  
59 30UE Chorley  
60 19UC Christchurch  
61 00AA City of London  
62 22UG Colchester  
63 16UE Copeland  
64 34UB Corby  
65 00HE Cornwall  
66 23UC Cotswold  
67 00CQ Coventry  
68 36UB Craven   
69 45UE Crawley  
70 00AH Croydon  
71 26UC Dacorum  
72 00EH Darlington  
73 29UD Dartford  
74 34UC Daventry   
75 00FK Derby  
76 17UF Derbyshire Dales  
77 00CE Doncaster  
78 29UE Dover  
79 00CR Dudley  
80 00EJ Durham   
81 00AJ Ealing  
82 12UC East Cambridgeshire  x 
83 18UB East Devon  
84 19UD East Dorset  
85 24UC East Hampshire   
86 26UD East Hertfordshire  
87 32UC East Lindsey√  
88 34UD East Northamptonshire  
89 00FB East Riding of Yorkshire  
90 41UC East Staffordshire  

Page 201

Agenda Item 9



Number ONS Code Local Authority County Council CPE 

91 21UC Eastbourne  
92 24UD Eastleigh  
93 16UF Eden  
94 43UB Elmbridge  
95 00AK Enfield  
96 22UH Epping Forest  
97 43UC Epsom and Ewell  
98 17UG Erewash  
99 18UC Exeter  

100 24UE Fareham  
101 12UD Fenland  x 
102 42UC Forest Heath  x 
103 23UD Forest of Dean  
104 30UF Fylde  
105 00CH Gateshead  
106 37UE Gedling  
107 23UE Gloucester  
108 24UF Gosport  x 
109 29UG Gravesham  
110 33UD Great Yarmouth  
111 00AL Greenwich  
112 43UD Guildford  
113 00AM Hackney  
114 00ET Halton  x 
115 36UC Hambleton   
116 00AN Hammersmith and Fulham  
117 31UD Harborough  
118 00AP Haringey  
119 22UJ Harlow  
120 36UD Harrogate  
121 00AQ Harrow  
122 24UG Hart  
123 00EB Hartlepool  
124 21UD Hastings  
125 24UH Havant  
126 00AR Havering  
127 00GA Herefordshire, County of  
128 26UE Hertsmere  
129 17UH High Peak  
130 00AS Hillingdon  
131 31UE Hinckley and Bosworth  
132 45UF Horsham  
133 00AT Hounslow  
134 12UE Huntingdonshire  x 
135 30UG Hyndburn  
136 42UD Ipswich  
137 00MW Isle of Wight  
138 15UH Isles of Scilly  x 
139 00AU Islington  
140 00AW Kensington and Chelsea  
141 34UE Kettering  x 
142 33UE King's Lynn and West Norfolk  
143 00FA Kingston upon Hull, City of  
144 00AX Kingston upon Thames  
145 00CZ Kirklees  
146 00BX Knowsley   
147 00AY Lambeth  
148 30UH Lancaster  
149 00DA Leeds  
150 00FN Leicester  
151 21UF Lewes  
152 00AZ Lewisham  
153 41UD Lichfield  
154 32UD Lincoln   
155 00BY Liverpool  
156 00KA Luton  
157 29UH Maidstone  
158 22UK Maldon  
159 47UC Malvern Hills   
160 00BN Manchester  
161 37UF Mansfield  
162 00LC Medway  
163 31UG Melton  
164 40UB Mendip   
165 00BA Merton  
166 18UD Mid Devon  
167 42UE Mid Suffolk  x 
168 45UG Mid Sussex  
169 00EC Middlesbrough  
170 00MG Milton Keynes  
171 43UE Mole Valley  
172 24UJ New Forest  
173 37UG Newark and Sherwood  
174 00CJ Newcastle upon Tyne  
175 41UE Newcastle-under-Lyme  
176 00BB Newham  
177 18UE North Devon  
178 19UE North Dorset  
179 17UJ North East Derbyshire  
180 00FC North East Lincolnshire  

Page 202

Agenda Item 9



Number ONS Code Local Authority County Council CPE 

181 26UF North Hertfordshire  
182 32UE North Kesteven   
183 00FD North Lincolnshire  
184 33UF North Norfolk  
185 00HC North Somerset   
186 00CK North Tyneside  
187 44UB North Warwickshire  x 
188 31UH North West Leicestershire  
189 34UF Northampton  
190 00EM Northumberland   
191 33UG Norwich  
192 00FY Nottingham  
193 44UC Nuneaton and Bedworth  
194 31UJ Oadby and Wigston  
195 00BP Oldham  
196 38UC Oxford  
197 30UJ Pendle  
198 00JA Peterborough  
199 00HG Plymouth  
200 00HP Poole  
201 00MR Portsmouth  
202 30UK Preston  
203 19UG Purbeck  
204 00MC Reading  
205 00BC Redbridge  
206 00EE Redcar and Cleveland  
207 47UD Redditch  
208 43UF Reigate and Banstead  
209 30UL Ribble Valley  
210 00BD Richmond upon Thames  
211 36UE Richmondshire   
212 00BQ Rochdale  
213 22UL Rochford  
214 30UM Rossendale  
215 21UG Rother  x 
216 00CF Rotherham  
217 44UD Rugby  
218 43UG Runnymede  
219 37UJ Rushcliffe  
220 24UL Rushmoor  
221 00FP Rutland  
222 36UF Ryedale   
223 00BR Salford  
224 00CS Sandwell  
225 36UG Scarborough  
226 40UC Sedgemoor   
227 00CA Sefton  
228 36UH Selby   
229 29UK Sevenoaks  
230 00CG Sheffield  
231 29UL Shepway  
232 00GG Shropshire  
233 00MD Slough  
234 00CT Solihull  
235 11UE South Bucks   
236 12UG South Cambridgeshire  x 
237 17UK South Derbyshire  
238 00HD South Gloucestershire  
239 18UG South Hams  
240 32UF South Holland   
241 32UG South Kesteven   
242 16UG South Lakeland  
243 33UH South Norfolk  
244 34UG South Northamptonshire  
245 38UD South Oxfordshire  x 
246 30UN South Ribble  
247 40UD South Somerset   
248 41UF South Staffordshire  
249 00CL South Tyneside  
250 00MS Southampton  
251 00KF Southend-on-Sea  
252 00BE Southwark  
253 43UH Spelthorne  
254 26UG St Albans  
255 42UF St Edmundsbury  x 
256 00BZ St. Helens  
257 41UG Stafford  
258 41UH Staffordshire Moorlands  
259 26UH Stevenage  
260 00BS Stockport  
261 00EF Stockton-on-Tees  
262 00GL Stoke-on-Trent  
263 44UE Stratford-on-Avon  
264 23UF Stroud  
265 42UG Suffolk Coastal  x 
266 00CM Sunderland  
267 43UJ Surrey Heath  
268 00BF Sutton  
269 29UM Swale  
270 00HX Swindon  

Page 203

Agenda Item 9



Number ONS Code Local Authority County Council CPE 

271 00BT Tameside  
272 41UK Tamworth  
273 43UK Tandridge  
274 40UE Taunton Deane  
275 18UH Teignbridge  
276 00GF Telford and Wrekin  x 
277 22UN Tendring  
278 24UN Test Valley  
279 23UG Tewkesbury  
280 29UN Thanet  
281 26UJ Three Rivers  
282 00KG Thurrock  
283 29UP Tonbridge and Malling  
284 00HH Torbay  
285 18UK Torridge  
286 00BG Tower Hamlets  
287 00BU Trafford  
288 29UQ Tunbridge Wells  
289 22UQ Uttlesford  
290 38UE Vale of White Horse  x 
291 00DB Wakefield   
292 00CU Walsall  
293 00BH Waltham Forest  
294 00BJ Wandsworth  
295 00EU Warrington  
296 44UF Warwick  
297 26UK Watford  
298 42UH Waveney  x 
299 43UL Waverley  
300 21UH Wealden  x 
301 34UH Wellingborough  
302 26UL Welwyn Hatfield  
303 00MB West Berkshire  
304 18UL West Devon  
305 19UH West Dorset  
306 30UP West Lancashire  
307 32UH West Lindsey   
308 38UF West Oxfordshire  
309 40UF West Somerset   
310 00BK Westminster  
311 19UJ Weymouth and Portland  
312 00BW Wigan  
313 00HY Wiltshire  
314 24UP Winchester  
315 00ME Windsor and Maidenhead  
316 00CB Wirral  
317 43UM Woking  
318 00MF Wokingham   
319 00CW Wolverhampton  
320 47UE Worcester  
321 45UH Worthing  
322 47UF Wychavon  
323 11UF Wycombe  
324 30UQ Wyre  
325 47UG Wyre Forest  
326 00FF York  
327  Transport for London  

    
 

Page 204

Agenda Item 9



 

1 
 

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee  
Report of Interim Head of Finance 

Author: Emma Creed 
Telephone: 01235 422498 
E-mail: emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 
Telephone: 01189 722565 
E-mail:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 
 
VWHDC cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 
Telephone: 01235 772134 
E-mail:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee; Cabinet; Council 

DATE: 26 November by Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
 3 December (S) / 4 December (V) by Cabinet  
 10 December (S) / 9 December (V) by Council  
 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 
2020/21 

Recommendations 

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee: 

1. notes the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2020/21. 
2. is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 

treasury management strategy and policy. 
 
That Cabinet: 

3. considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and       
recommends council to approve the report. 

 
Purpose of report 

1. The report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring of the 
treasury management activities and that each council’s prudential indicators are 
reported to their respective council mid-year (i.e. as at 30 September).  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the first six months of 2020/21 and an 
update on the current economic conditions with a view to the remainder of the year. 

Page 205

Agenda Item 10



 

2 
 

Strategic objectives  

2. Managing the finances of the authority in accordance with the treasury management 
strategy will help to ensure that resources are available to deliver its services and 
meet the council’s strategic objectives. 
 

Background 

Treasury management 
 

3. This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (revised 2017). 
 

4. The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  
 

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which 
sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management 
activities. 
 

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives. 
 

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-Year Review Report and an Annual 
Report, (stewardship report), covering activities during the previous year. 
 

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions. 

 
5. This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice 

on Treasury Management, and covers the following: 
 

 An economic update for the first part of the 2020/21 financial year; 
 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 

Investment Strategy; 
 A review of the Councils’ investment portfolio for 2020/21; 
 A review of the Councils’ borrowing strategy for 2020/21; 
 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2020/21. 

 
6. The first main function of the treasury management service is to ensure the councils’ 

cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising 
investment return. The Treasury Management Strategy determines to whom the 
council can lend, and this is the manifestation of its risk appetite. 
 

7. The second main function of the treasury management service is to ensure funding 
for the Councils’ capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the 
Councils can meet their capital spending operations. This management of longer-

Page 206

Agenda Item 10



 

3 
 

term cash may involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer term cash 
flow surpluses, and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to 
meet risk or cost objectives.  
 

8. Accordingly, treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash 
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.” 

 
9. The 2020/21 treasury management strategy was approved by each council in 

February 2020.  This report summarises the treasury activity and performance for the 
first six months of 2020/21 against those prudential indicators and benchmarks set for 
the year.  It also provides an opportunity to review and subsequently revise limits if 
required.  Full council is required to approve this report and any amendments to the 
Treasury Management Strategy. 

 
Treasury activity 

10. The mid-year performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below1.   

 
 

 
 

The forecast outturn position as at September 2020, based on known investments and 
maturities and an estimate for future earnings is shown in the table below: 

 
South Oxfordshire 

District Council 
Vale of White Horse 

District Council 
Annual budget as per MTFP £2,582,720 £833,350 
Forecast outturn £2,304,489 £978,376 
Variance against budget (£278,231) £145,026 
Borrowing Nil Nil 

 
 

 
1 For property, the balance shown is the fair value of investment properties as at 31 March 2020. 

 

South

Treasury 
investments 

£000

Non 
treasury 

loan £000
Sub Total 

£000

Property 
investment 

£000
Overall total 

£000
1 Average investment balance 160,759 15,000 175,759 7,763 183,522 
2 Budgeted investment income 980 311 1,291 1,291 
3 Actual investment income 785 312 1,097 379 1,476 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) (195) 1 (194) 184 
5 Annualised rate of return 0.98% 4.16% 1.25% 9.76% 1.61%

Vale

Treasury 
investments 

£000

Property 
investment 

£000
Overall total 

£000
1 Average investment balance 108,860 6,201 115,061 
2 Budgeted investment income 417 417 
3 Actual investment income 575 109 684 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 158 267 
5 Annualised rate of return 1.06% 3.51% 1.19%

Page 207

Agenda Item 10



 

4 
 

11. The Councils remain restricted regarding financial institutions meeting their 
investment criteria.  When it is possible, investments will be placed with highly rated 
institutions for a longer duration with a view to increasing the weighted average 
maturity of the portfolio, but this has meant that overall, there are less suitable 
counterparties available to the councils to deposit with. 

12. SODC.  The latest estimate is that income receivable on cash investments will be 
below budget by £0.3 million. This is due to the fall in interest rates since the 
coronavirus pandemic began.    
 

13. VWHDC.  The latest estimate is that income receivable on cash investments will be 
above budget by £0.1 million. This is due to investments made at higher interest rates 
than we have seen since the coronavirus pandemic began.  
 

14. As SODC has more reserves to invest, it has more maturities during the year.  This 
has resulted in reinvestment at much lower interest rates since April, unlike VWHDC, 
whose investments mature later in the year, and will therefore take advantage of the 
higher rates for longer.   
 

Performance measurement 

15. A list of investments as at 30 September is shown in Appendices A1 and A2.   
 

16. The councils’ performance against benchmarks for the first six months of the year are 
detailed in Appendices A3 and A4.  All investments were with approved 
counterparties. The average return on these investments is shown above in the table 
at paragraph 10.   
 

17. On 31 March 2020 the Interim Head of Finance waived financial procedure rule 53 
and allowed the councils to over-ride their counter party limits for money market 
funds.  This was to allow the councils to deal with the receipt of unprecedented levels 
of government grant funding to fund the business grant schemes administered by the 
councils on behalf of the government.   
 

18. As a result of the levels of government grant funding and a postponement of capital 
projects due to the Covid-19 pandemic in the first six months of the year, the councils 
found their counterparty limits insufficient to place investments.  Delegation 2.7 of the 
council constitutions allows the Interim Head of Finance, in consultation with the 
cabinet member for finance, to raise counterparty limits by £3,000,000 within a 
financial year. 
 

19. During October the counterparty limits for the institutions in the table below were 
increased.  These increased limits did not apply for the first six months of this year.  
 

Page 208

Agenda Item 10



 

5 
 

 
 

Treasury management limits on activity 

20. Each council is required by the Prudential Code to report on the limits set each year 
in their respective Treasury Management Strategies.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury functions remain within certain parameters, 
thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive, they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  The performance against the 
limits for both councils are shown in appendices B1 and B2. 

 
Debt activity during 2020/21 

21. During the first six months of 2020/21 there has been no need for either of the 
councils to borrow.  The Interim Head of Finance will continue to take a prudent 
approach to the councils’ debt strategies.  The prudential indicators and limits set out 
in appendices B1 and B2 provide the scope and flexibility for either of the councils to 
borrow in the short-term up to the maximum limits, if ever such a need arose within 
the cash flow management activities of the authority in order to achieve its service 
objectives. 

 
Negative interest rates 

22. While the Bank of England has said that it is unlikely to introduce a negative Bank 
Rate, at least in the next 6 -12 months, some deposit accounts are already offering 
negative rates for shorter periods.  As part of the response to the pandemic and 
lockdown, the Bank and the Government have provided financial markets and 
businesses with plentiful access to credit, either directly or through commercial 
banks.  In addition, as with our councils, the Government has provided large sums of 
grants to local authorities to help deal with the COVID crisis, causing sudden large 
increases in investment balances searching for an investment home, some of which 
was only very short term until those sums were able to be passed on.  

 
23. As for money market funds (MMFs), yields have continued to drift lower. Some 

managers have suggested that they might resort to trimming fee levels to ensure that 
net yields for investors remain in positive territory where possible and practical. 
Investor cash flow uncertainty, and the need to maintain liquidity in these 
unprecedented times, has meant there is a glut of money swilling around at the very 
short end of the market. This has seen a number of market operators, now including 
the DMADF, offer nil or negative rates for very short term maturities. This is not 
universal, and MMFs are still offering a marginally positive return, as are a number of 
financial institutions.  

 

Counterparty
£mil £mil

South Vale
Skipton Building Society 0 3
West Bromwich Building Society 3 3
Newcastle Building Society 3 3
Nottingham Building Society 3 3
National Counties Building Society 3 3
Progressive Building Society 3 3
Monmouthshire Building Society 3 3
Furness Building Society 3 3

Amount required

Page 209

Agenda Item 10



 

6 
 

24. Inter-local authority lending and borrowing rates have also declined due to the surge 
in the levels of cash seeking a short-term home at a time when many local authorities 
are probably having difficulties over accurately forecasting when disbursements of 
funds received will occur or when further large receipts will be received from the 
Government. 

 
25. Although the Bank of England has seemingly ruled out using negative interest rates 

for now, it has recently written to all UK banks and building societies, as well as large 
international banks and insurers, asking them to identify any operational challenges 
associated with implementation of zero or negative bank rate. It suggested that while 
negative rates can work in some circumstances, it would be “less effective as a tool to 
stimulate the economy” at this time when banks are worried about future loan losses. 
It also has “other instruments available”, including quantitative easing (QE) and 
forward guidance. 

 
26. A move to negative interest rates will see treasury investment income fall.  We are 

predicting that South will not reach their budgeted income levels for this year due to 
the drop in interest rates already experienced, and both councils will see a reduction 
in investment income in future years that will need to be built into future years 
budgets. 
 

27. There is a risk that the cash the councils hold short term for working capital will attract 
nominal interest charges.  However, we will mitigate this risk by investing the 
remaining balances longer term where possible, and also potentially making more 
use of notice accounts. 
 

28. We will continue to maintain a close dialogue with our treasury advisors (Link 
Treasury Services) and we will continue to work pro-actively in accordance with our 
treasury strategy to minimise any adverse impact on investment returns that may 
result in the event of bank rate becoming negative. 
 

 
Interest rate forecast and economic forecast  

29. The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Treasury Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 
 

 
 

30. The fall in GDP in the first half of 2020, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, of 28 
per cent was revised downwards to 23 percent.  This is still one of the largest falls in 
output of any developed nation but is only to be expected as the UK economy is 
heavily skewed towards consumer facing services, which were particularly vulnerable 
to being damaged by lockdown. 
 

Interest forecast September 2020
December March June September December March June September

2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022
Bank rate 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
6 month LIBID 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 - -
12 month LIBID 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 - -
5yr PWLB 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10
10yr PWLB 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30
25 yr PWLB 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70
50 yr PWLB 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50

Page 210

Agenda Item 10



 

7 
 

31. The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) still expects the £300 billion of QE purchases 
announced between the March and June meetings to continue until the “turn of the 
year”. This implies that the pace of purchases will slow further to about £4 billion a 
week, down from £14 billion a week at the height of the crisis and £7 billion more 
recently. 
 

32. The pace of recovery is not expected to be in the form of a rapid V shape, but a more 
elongated and prolonged one. There will also be some painful longer-term 
adjustments as office space and travel by planes, trains and buses may not recover 
their previous level of use for several years or possibly ever. There is also likely to be 
a reversal of globalisation as this crisis has shown how vulnerable long-distance 
supply chains are. On the other hand, digital services is one area that has already 
seen huge growth. 

.  
Financial Implications 

33. These are covered in the body of the report. 
 
Legal implications 

34. There are no significant legal implications as a result of the recommendations in this    
report.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Services and the CLG Local Government Investment Guidance provides 
assurance that the council’s investments are, and will continue to be, within its legal 
powers. 

 
Administration 
 
35. On 1 April 2020 the treasury management function was brought back in house.  Prior 

to this, it was managed by Capita. 
 

Conclusion 

36. This report provides details of the treasury management activities for the period 1 
April 2020 to 30 September 2020 and the mid-year prudential indicators to each 
respective council.  
 

37. This report also provides the monitoring information for joint audit and governance 
committee to fulfil its role of scrutinising treasury management activity at each 
council. 

 
Background papers 

 CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 
 CIPFA Prudential Code 2017 
 CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Guidance Notes 2018 
 CIPFA statement 17.10.18 on borrowing in advance of need and investments in 

commercial properties 
 CIPFA Bulletin 02 Treasury and Capital Management Update October 2018 
 Statutory investment guidance where it has been updated in 2018 (English local 

authorities) 
 Statutory MRP guidance where it has been updated in 2018 (English local authorities) 

Page 211

Agenda Item 10



 

8 
 

 Treasury Management Investment Strategy 2020/21 (South Oxfordshire & Vale of 
White Horse, February 2020) 

 
Appendices 

A1 – SODC List of investments as at 30 September 2020 
A2 – VWHDC List of investments as at 30 September 2020 
A3 – SODC Performance against benchmark 
A4 – VWHDC Performance against benchmark 
B1 – SODC Prudential Indicators 
B2 – VWHDC Prudential Indicators 
C1 – Note on Prudential Indicators 

Page 212

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A1 

A1 – 1 

 

South Oxfordshire 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investments as at 30 September 2020

Counterparty
Deposit 

type
Investment 

date Maturity date

Remaining 
investment 
duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)
Cambridge BS Fixed 02-Oct-19 01-Oct-20 1 3,000,000          1.15%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 22-Oct-19 21-Oct-20 21 1,000,000          1.10%
Cambridge BS Fixed 01-Nov-19 30-Oct-20 30 2,000,000          1.15%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 01-Nov-19 30-Oct-20 30 2,000,000          1.10%
Newbury Builiding Society Fixed 04-Nov-19 03-Nov-20 34 1,000,000          1.10%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 06-Nov-19 05-Nov-20 36 2,000,000          1.03%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 08-Nov-19 06-Nov-20 37 2,000,000          1.03%
Close Brothers Fixed 27-Nov-19 29-Nov-21 425 3,000,000          1.30%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 13-Dec-19 11-Dec-20 72 3,000,000          0.90%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 18-Dec-19 16-Dec-20 77 2,000,000          1.02%
Close Brothers Fixed 16-Mar-20 16-Mar-21 167 2,000,000          1.00%
Close Brothers Fixed 18-Mar-20 18-Mar-21 169 2,000,000          1.00%
Coventry CC Fixed 02-Apr-20 01-Apr-21 183 5,000,000          0.95%
Wokingham BC Fixed 02-Apr-20 01-Apr-21 183 5,000,000          1.90%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 02-Apr-20 01-Apr-21 183 2,500,000          1.18%
Close Brothers Fixed 03-Apr-20 06-Apr-21 188 2,000,000          1.00%
Close Brothers Fixed 09-Apr-20 09-Apr-21 191 2,000,000          1.00%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 01-May-20 30-Apr-21 212 1,000,000          1.16%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 25-Jun-20 24-Jun-21 267 2,000,000          0.57%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 01-Jul-20 01-Jul-21 274 4,000,000          0.50%
Principality Building Society Fixed 01-Jul-20 01-Jul-21 274 4,000,000          0.38%
Principality Building Society Fixed 02-Jul-20 16-Feb-21 139 4,000,000          0.29%
Principality Building Society Fixed 02-Jul-20 11-Mar-21 162 5,000,000          0.30%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 08-Jul-20 08-Jul-21 281 2,000,000          0.50%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 09-Jul-20 09-Jul-21 282 1,000,000          0.40%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 15-Jul-20 15-Jul-21 288 2,500,000          0.42%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 17-Jul-20 16-Jul-21 289 2,000,000          0.37%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 06-Aug-20 11-Mar-21 162 4,000,000          0.34%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 12-Aug-20 16-Feb-21 139 3,000,000          0.18%
Furness Building Society Fixed 19-Aug-20 19-Aug-21 323 2,000,000          0.45%
Thurrock BC Fixed 19-Aug-20 19-Jan-21 111 3,500,000          0.20%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 21-Aug-20 21-Feb-21 144 2,000,000          0.17%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 28-Aug-20 27-Aug-21 331 2,000,000          0.40%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 28-Aug-20 27-Aug-21 331 2,000,000          0.40%

Page 213

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A1 

A1 – 1 

South Oxfordshire Continued 
 

 
 
*  Rates are variable.  Returns shown represent prevailing rates at end Q2 2020. 
** Above figures exclude balance outstanding from Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander and SOHA loan 
***Last year total investments: £157 million

Investments as at 30 September 2020

Counterparty
Deposit 

type
Investment 

date Maturity date

Remaining 
investment 
duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)
Furness Building Society Fixed 07-Sep-20 07-Sep-21 342 2,000,000          0.45%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 10-Sep-20 16-Feb-21 139 2,000,000          0.15%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 15-Sep-20 14-Sep-21 349 2,000,000          0.30%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 16-Sep-20 16-Sep-21 351 3,000,000          0.35%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 15-Sep-20 15-Sep-21 350 2,000,000          0.30%
Furness Building Society Fixed 25-Sep-20 27-Sep-21 362 2,000,000          0.45%
Santander Call * 401,256             0.10%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call * 2,361                0.10%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call * 96,483              0.10%
Goldman Sachs MMF * 12,022,000        0.01%
Blackrock MMF * 690,000             0.01%

Total short term cash investments (<1 yr duration) 113,712,100

Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed 12-Jul-19 12-Jan-21 104 2,000,000          1.45%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed 15-Jan-14 15-Jan-21 107 2,000,000          2.50%
Close Brothers Fixed 14-Mar-19 15-Mar-21 166 3,000,000          1.50%
Close Brothers Fixed 29-Mar-19 29-Mar-21 180 1,000,000          1.50%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 08-Apr-19 08-Apr-21 190 3,000,000          1.75%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed 11-Apr-19 12-Apr-21 194 3,000,000          1.70%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 15-Apr-19 15-Apr-21 197 3,000,000          1.78%
Places for People Fixed 10-May-19 10-May-21 222 2,000,000          1.70%
Places for People Fixed 25-Jun-19 25-Jun-21 268 3,000,000          1.70%
Bury MBC Fixed 18-Jul-16 19-Jul-21 292 5,000,000          1.50%
Lloyds Bank Fixed 23-Jul-19 23-Jul-21 296 2,000,000          1.30%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed 18-Feb-19 20-Feb-23 873 2,000,000          2.46%

Total long-term cash investments (>1 yr duration) 31,000,000
CCLA Property 6,830,639 Variable
Legal & General Equities Unit Trust 10,742,510 Variable

Total Investments 162,285,249

Page 214

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A2 

A2 – 1 

 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 

 

 

*Last year total investments: £100 million  

 

Investments as at 30 September 2020

Counterparty
Deposit 

type
Investment 

date
Maturity 

date

Remaining 
investment 
duration in 

days Principal Rate (%)
Cambridge Building Society Fixed 02/10/2019 01/10/2020 1 2,000,000 1.15%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed 29/10/2019 29/10/2020 29 2,000,000 0.95%
Principality Building Society Fixed 15/11/2019 13/11/2020 44 1,500,000 0.95%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 15/11/2019 13/11/2020 44 1,500,000 1.03%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 29/11/2019 30/11/2020 61 1,500,000 1.05%
Principality Building Society Fixed 29/11/2019 30/11/2020 61 500,000 1.00%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 29/11/2019 30/11/2020 61 1,000,000 1.00%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 05/12/2019 07/12/2020 68 1,500,000 1.20%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 10/12/2019 10/12/2020 71 5,000,000 0.91%
Principality Building Society Fixed 13/12/2019 14/12/2020 75 2,000,000 1.00%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 03/01/2020 31/12/2020 92 2,000,000 0.90%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed 15/01/2014 15/01/2021 107 2,000,000 2.50%
North Tyneside Council Fixed 17/01/2020 15/01/2021 107 2,500,000 0.95%
Lloyds Bank Fixed 28/01/2020 28/01/2021 120 10,000,000 1.10%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed 14/02/2020 15/02/2021 138 1,500,000 1.20%
Nottingham Building Society Fixed 17/08/2020 16/02/2021 139 3,000,000 0.18%
Cambridgeshire County Council Fixed 28/02/2019 26/02/2021 149 2,000,000 1.45%
Cumberland Building Society Fixed 15/07/2020 11/03/2021 162 3,000,000 0.24%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed 08/09/2020 11/03/2021 162 500,000 0.20%
Southern Housing Group Fixed 19/03/2019 19/03/2021 170 5,000,000 1.60%
Newbury Building society Fixed 30/09/2020 22/03/2021 173 3,000,000 0.35%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 26/06/2020 25/06/2021 268 1,000,000 0.55%
Furness Building Society Fixed 26/06/2020 25/06/2021 268 3,000,000 0.65%
Progressive Building Society Fixed 26/06/2020 25/06/2021 268 3,000,000 0.55%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 27/07/2020 26/07/2021 299 1,000,000 0.55%
Cambridge Building Society Fixed 19/08/2020 18/08/2021 322 1,000,000 0.43%
National Counties Building Society Fixed 10/09/2020 09/09/2021 344 1,000,000 0.45%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed 10/09/2020 09/09/2021 344 1,000,000 0.35%
Principality Building Society Fixed 10/09/2020 09/09/2021 344 3,000,000 0.22%
Skipton Building Society Fixed 17/09/2020 17/09/2021 352 3,000,000 0.30%
LGIM MMF * 220,000 0.01%
Goldman Sachs MMF * 13,900,000 0.01%
Total short term cash investments (<1 yr duration) 84,120,000

Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed 11/04/2019 12/04/2021 194 2,000,000 1.70%
Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 17/06/2019 17/06/2021 260 2,000,000 1.70%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed 28/06/2019 28/06/2021 271 2,000,000 1.70%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed 29/07/2019 29/07/2021 302 1,000,000 1.60%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 27/09/2019 27/09/2021 362 2,000,000 1.30%
Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 31/10/2019 29/10/2021 394 1,000,000 1.70%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 18/11/2019 18/11/2021 414 2,000,000 1.30%
Worthing Borough Council Fixed 18/11/2019 18/11/2021 414 3,000,000 1.30%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 21/01/2020 21/01/2022 478 4,000,000 1.30%
Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed 19/02/2020 21/02/2022 509 2,000,000 1.80%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed 05/03/2020 07/03/2022 523 2,000,000 1.30%
Total long-term cash investments (>1 yr duration) 23,000,000

CCLA Property 2,529,312 variable

Total Investments 109,649,312

Page 215

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A3 

A3 – 1 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council 

Investment returns achieved against benchmark     

    
Benchmark 

Return 
Actual 
Return 

Growth 
(Below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks 
            
Bank & Building Society deposits - 
internally managed   0.11% 0.98% 0.87% 3 Month LIBID 
Equities   5.63% 7.45% 1.82% FTSE All Shares Index 
            

 

 All benchmarks managed by the treasury team were met in the first six months of the 
year.   

CCLA 

Annualised total return 
performance       
Performance to 28 September 2020 1 year 3 years 5 years 
The local authorities property fund -3.47% 3.64% 4.79% 
Benchmark - IPD property index -3.08% 3.59% 5.04% 

 

 The CCLA investment is a long term holding.  The above table shows the performance of 
the fund as a whole and the longer term performance should be used as a guide to 
returns achievable in the medium term. 

 South invested £5 million into the fund and in the first six months of 2020/21, achieved a 
return of 4.48 per cent calculated as a ratio of income over the market value held as at 30 
September 2020.  This is not the same basis upon which the performance of the fund 
above is calculated.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 216

Agenda Item 10



Appendix A4 

2 
 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Investment returns achieved against benchmark     
  Benchmark 

return 
Actual return Growth 

(below)/above 
benchmark 

Benchmarks 

  % % %   

Internally managed - Bank 
& Building Society deposits 0.11% 1.06% 0.95% 

3 month LIBID 

          
 

 All benchmarks managed by the treasury team were met in the first six months of 
the year.   

CCLA 

 

Annualised total return 
performance       
Performance to 28 September 2020 1 year 3 years 5 years 
The local authorities property fund -3.47% 3.64% 4.79% 
Benchmark - IPD property index -3.08% 3.59% 5.04% 

 

 The CCLA investment is a long term holding.  The above table shows the 
performance of the fund as a whole and the longer-term performance should be 
used as a guide to returns achievable in the medium term. 

 Vale invested £2 million into the fund and in the first six months of 2020/21, 
achieved a return of 4.48 per cent calculated as a ratio of income over the market 
value held as at 30 September 2020.  This is not the same basis upon which the 
performance of the fund above is calculated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 217

Agenda Item 10



Appendix B1 

B1 - 1 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council 
 

 

Prudential indicators as at 30th September 2020     
   2020/21 Actual  as at 

   
Original 

Estimate 30-Sep 
Debt  £m £m 
Authorised limit for external debt     

Borrowing  30 0 

Other long term liabilities  0 0 

   30 0 
Operational boundary for external debt     

Borrowing  25 0 

Other long term liabilities  0 0 

   25 0 
Interest rate exposures     
Maximum fixed rate borrowing  100% 0 
Maximum variable rate borrowing  100% 0 
      
Investments     
Interest rate exposures     

Limits on fixed interest rates  100% 81% 

Limits on variable interest rates  50 13 
      
Principal sums invested > 364 days     

Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 days  70 31 
        

Page 218

Agenda Item 10



Appendix B2 

B2 - 1 

 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
 

Prudential indicators as at 30th September 2020     
    2020/21 Actual  as at 

   
Original 
estimate 30-Sep 

   £m £m 
Authorised limit for external debt     
Borrowing  30 0 
Other long term liabilities  5 0 

   35 0 
Operational boundary for external debt     
Borrowing  25 0 
Other long term liabilities  5 0 

   30 0 
Interest rate exposures     
Maximum fixed rate borrowing  100% 0 
Maximum variable rate borrowing  100% 0 
      
Investments     
Interest rate exposures     
Limits on fixed interest rates  100% 85% 
Limits on variable interest rates  50 14 
      
Principal sums invested > 364 days     
Upper limit for principal sums invested >364 days  40 23 
        

 

 

 

Page 219

Agenda Item 10



Appendix C1 

C1 - 1 

Prudential indicators – explanatory note 

Debt 

There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with 
approved treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based 
on estimates of most likely, but not worst case scenario.   

The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash 
flows.   

The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position. 

Interest rate exposures 

The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable 
rate of interest. 

Investments 

Interest rate exposure 

The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the 
net position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding. 

Principal sums invested 

This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days. 

 

Page 220

Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 adoption
	8 Council Tax Base 2021/22
	9 Civil parking enforcement
	Appendix A1, 03/12/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix A2, 03/12/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix B, 03/12/2020 Cabinet
	Appendic C, 03/12/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix D, 03/12/2020 Cabinet

	10 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2020/21



